

# Sales Management

ramco

# User Guide

Version 5.3

© 2010. Ramco Systems

### DISCLAIMER

©2010 Ramco Systems Ltd. All rights reserved. All trademarks acknowledged.

This document is published by **Ramco Systems Ltd.** without any warranty. No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose without the written permission of **Ramco Systems Limited**.

Improvements and changes to this text necessitated by typographical errors, inaccuracies of current information or improvements to software programs and/or equipment, may be made by Ramco Systems Limited, at any time and without notice. Such changes will, however, be incorporated into new editions of this document. Any hard copies of this document are to be regarded as temporary reference copies only.

The documentation has been provided for the entire Aviation solution, although only a part of the entire solution may be deployed at the customer site, in accordance with the license agreement between the customer and Ramco Systems Limited. Therefore, the documentation made available to the customer may refer to features that are not present in the solution purchased / deployed at the customer site.

# **About this manual**

This manual briefly describes the basic processes and functions in Ramco Aviation Solution.

#### Who Should Read This Manual

This manual is intended for users who are managing the Aviation industry processes and are new to Ramco Aviation Solution.

This manual assumes that the user is familiar with the Aviation Industry nomenclatures and systems based software.

#### How To Use This Manual

Ramco Aviation Solution provides extensive Online Help that contains detailed instructions on how to use the application. Users are suggested to use this manual for specific references, along with the Online Help. This manual contains enough information to help the users perform the basic tasks and points toward the Online Help for more detailed information.

#### How This Manual is organized

The User Guide is divided into 3 chapters and index. Given below is a brief run-through of what each chapter consists of.

Chapter 1 provides an overview of the entire **Sales Management** business process. The sub processes are explained in the remaining chapters.

Chapter 2 focuses on the Service Sales Management sub process.

Chapter 3 dwells on the Part Sales Management sub process.

The Index offers a quick reference to selected words used in the manual.

#### **Document Conventions**

- The data entry has been explained taking into account the "Create" business activity. Specific references (if any) to any other business activity such as "Modify" and "View" are given as "Note" at the appropriate places.
- Boldface is used to denote commands and user interface labels.
   Example: Enter Company Code and click the Get Details pushbutton.
- Italics used for references.
   Example: See Figure 1.1.
- ▶ The *→* icon is used for Notes, to convey additional information.

#### **Reference Documentation**

This User Guide is part of the documentation set that comes with Ramco Aviation Solution.

The documentation is generally provided in two forms:

- The Documentation CD in Adobe® Systems' Portable Document Format (PDF).
- Context-sensitive Online Help information accessible from the application screens.

#### Whom To Contact For Queries

Please locate the nearest office for your geographical area from www.ramco.com for assistance.

# **Table of Contents**

Chapter 1/ Introduction	1
Chapter 2/ Service Sales Management	3
Setting options and quick codes for creating customer order	4
Setting options for customer order	
Defining quick codes for customer order	6
Accepting customer order	7
Creating customer order details	7
Estimating customer order	23
Estimating work scope for a customer order	
Authorizing customer order	
Canceling customer order	
Revoking customer order	
Amending customer order	
Editing Additional Work Scope Details	
Processing customer order	
Receiving customer goods	41
Setting options for customer goods receipt	41
Creating quick codes for customer goods receipt	
Creating customer order based goods receipt	
Creating customer goods receipt	
Creating purchase order based customer goods receipt	
Canceling the customer goods receipt	
Creating direct customer goods receipt	
Moving customer goods to warehouse	
Recording tracking reference document details	

Executing service	
Preparing Material Quotation	73
Authorizing additional work scope	76
Reporting execution details	77
Maintaining Correspondence details	79
Initiating invoice processing	81
Invoice processing for customer order	81
Invoice processing for parts	89
Processing TCD for invoice	
Editing additional charges	94
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer	96
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip Allocating materials for pack slip	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip Allocating materials for pack slip Issuing materials for pack slip	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip Allocating materials for pack slip Issuing materials for pack slip Holding or releasing pack slip	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip Allocating materials for pack slip Issuing materials for pack slip Holding or releasing pack slip Short closing pack slip	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip Allocating materials for pack slip Issuing materials for pack slip Holding or releasing pack slip Short closing pack slip Shipping goods	
Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer Generating pack slip for customer goods Generating customer order based pack slip Allocating materials for pack slip Issuing materials for pack slip Holding or releasing pack slip Short closing pack slip Closing customer order	

## Chapter 3/ Part Sales Management ...... 111

Generating pack slip	112
Setting options for pack slip	
Creating quick codes for pack slip	113
Generating pack slip for part sales	
Creating pack slip	115
Allocating materials for pack slip	
Selecting pack slip for allocation	
Allocating materials for the selected pack slip	

Issuing materials for pack slip	
Selecting pack slip for issuing materials	
Issuing materials for the selected pack slip	125
Holding or releasing pack slip	
Short closing pack slip	130
Shipping goods	
Shipping goods	<b>132</b> 132

Index	-	-1	l
-------	---	----	---

# **Chapter 1/ Introduction**

Large execution facilities with specialized equipment and skilled labor makes aviation asset maintenance execution highly capital intensive. Airline operators typically enter into long term contracts with maintenance service providers for outsourcing their maintenance requirements. Outsourcing of maintenance services, especially those related to components, have become increasingly popular among airline operators.

Outsourcing offers advantages of lower capital investments on maintenance facilities and increased operational efficiencies through leverage of the service provider's core competencies. In addition to providing maintenance services, maintenance service providers also engage in trading or sale of aircraft/component spares, fuel etc.

The **Sales Management** business process aims to address the requirements of both part and service sales for maintenance service providers.

The **Service Sales Management** sub process facilitates the process of receiving the component and the spares supplied by the customer and the shipment of the component and excess spares/cores to the customer.

The **Part Sales Management** sub process facilitates the generation of pack slip, issue and shipment of goods for the sales of parts/goods from the maintenance shop to the customer.

Introduction

# **Chapter 2/ Service Sales Management**

In the aviation scenario, Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul (MRO) processes occupy a strategic position in ensuring reliability and safety of aviation assets. A service provider carries out airline maintenance operations such as C checks and D checks, repair and overhaul activities on rotables and components, line maintenance, ground support, fuelling and engine removal or installation and engineering support services. These processes allow the MRO to create a customer order, based on the quotation raised for the service. You can process the customer order for the execution of the service.

The **Service Sales Management** sub process provides support for managing service orders such as customer order for both aircraft and components, managing customer supplied spares, tools and core components through the generation of customer goods receipt and delivery of customer goods through pack slips based on customer goods or customer order.

The **Customer Order** business component enables you to create a customer order for the service to be carried out on the customer maintenance object.

The **Customer Order Management** business component enables you to estimate process and release a customer order for the execution of service or repair.

**Customer Goods Receipt** business component enables you to generate the customer goods receipt on receipt of the part(s) from the customer to the Repair/Maintenance shop. The customer part(s) are delivered to the maintenance shop, for performing the services, or to be used as spares on the maintenance object.

**Pack Slip** business component enables you to generate a pack slip for the sale of goods or the maintenance object to the customer, with or without a customer order. Pack Slip is the delivery notice sent to the customer along with parts/goods sold, containing information such as customer details, item details, quantities and shipping details.

# Setting options and quick codes for creating customer order

## Setting options for customer order

You can define the various system parameters for customer order. You can also set options for automatic creation of visit package, repair order and work scope the customer order.

1. Select the **Set Options** link in the **Customer Order** business component. The **Set Options** page appears. *See Figure 2.1.* 

•	Set Options						📑 🐼 Trailbar 🔹 🏡 🚔 🎫
						Date Format DD/MM/YY	YY
Opti	on Setting Details						
			Validity of Service Price List to a Custor	mer Required	~		
			Approval of Customer Or	der Not Required	~		
			Automatic Creation of Visit Pack	age Not Required	~		
			Automatic Creation of Repair Or	der On Confirm	~		
			Automatic Creation of Work Sci	ope On Confirm	~		
		4	utomatic Creation of Component Work Or	der On Confirm	~		
			Capability Check for Auto Generated Ord	lers Not Required	~		
			Numbering Type for Visit Pack	age VP 🗸			
			Numbering type for Repair Or	der REPR 🗸			
			Numbering type for Work so	ope WS 🗸			
			Numbering Type for Component Work Or	der CWC 🗸			
		M	laterial Quotation Prior to Quote Confirmal	tion Required	×		
		Pa	rt Invoice Processing Prior to Invoice Rele	ase Required	×		
Add	itional Option Settings						
		Category	~				
<	<li>1 -2/2 🕨 🔊</li>	)   +		1		3   🖪 😑   All	<b>▼</b>
#	Category	Parameter	Permitted Values	Value	Status	Error Message	
1	A/C Work Execution	A/C Work Execution Route	Please enter "0" for A/C Maint.Exec	0	Defined		
2	A/C Work Execution	Automatic Creation of	Please enter "0" for On	0	Defined		
3							
	4						•
			5	et Options			

Figure 2.1 Setting options for customer order

- 2. For a customer order, specify whether service price list validity must be checked or not, by selecting the appropriate option in the **Validity of Service Price List to a Customer** field.
- 3. Indicate whether the approval of customer order is required or not, in the **Approval of Customer Order** field.

- 4. In the Automatic Creation of Visit Package drop-down list box, specify the stage at which visit package can be created automatically. The options are "On Confirm", "On Authorize" and "Not Required". You can select "On Confirm" or "On Authorize" to indicate that the visit package must be created on confirmation or on authorization of the customer order.
- 5. In the Automatic Creation of Repair Order drop-down list box, specify the stage at which the repair order can be created automatically. The options are "On Confirm", "On Authorize" and "Not Required". You can select "On Confirm" or "On Authorize" to indicate that the repair order must be created on confirmation or on authorization of the customer order. You can select "Not Required" if the automatic repair order creation is not required.
- 6. In the Automatic Creation of Work Scope drop-down list box, specify the stage at which the work scope can be created automatically. The options are "On Confirm", "On Authorize" and "Not Required". You can select "On Confirm" or "On Authorize" to indicate that the work scope must be created on confirmation or on authorization of the customer order. You can select "Not Required" if the automatic work scope creation is not required.
- 7. In the Automatic Creation of Component Work Order drop-down list box, specify the option by which the component work order can be created automatically. The system provides the following options "On Confirm", "On Authorize" and "Not Required". By default, this field is set as "On Authorize".
- 8. Select "Required" in the **Capability Check for Auto-generated Orders** field, to indicate that the work center capability must be checked for execution orders that are generated automatically.
- Select the numbering type for visit package, repair order and work scope in the Numbering Type for Visit Package, Numbering Type for Repair Order and Numbering Type for Work Scope fields.
- 10. Specify the **Numbering Type for Component Work Order** associated to the customer order.
- 11. In the **Material Quotation Prior to Quote Confirmation** drop down list box, specify whether material quotation prior to confirmation of quote is required or not. The system lists the options "Yes" and "No".
- 12. In the **Part Invoice Processing Prior to Invoice Release** drop down list box, specify whether part invoice processing prior to invoice release is required or not.
- 13. Select the **Category** from the drop-down list box to specify the category type of the parameter and specify the **Value** for the parameter.
- 14. Enter **Category** and **Value** details in the Additional Option Setting Multiline.
- 15. Click Set Options pushbutton to save the options.

## Defining quick codes for customer order

#### What are quick codes?

Quick Codes are user-defined values, used to categorize a set of details of identified behavior. These quick codes are later used in the process of retrieving or addressing the details by referring to the attached quick code.

Quick codes act as additional qualifiers for a business entity or document. Quick codes can assume user-provided values, which can be used to categorize/group an entity/document record to satisfy specific needs in a user organization's internal processes, especially with respect to unique reporting requirements.

The basic quick code types "Order Category" and "User Status" are predefined in the system. You can create the quick codes for these quick code types. For e.g. "Hold", "Deferred" can be defined as quick codes under the quick code type "User Status".

- 1. Select **Create Quick Codes** in the **Customer Order** business component. The Create Quick Codes page appears. *See Figure 2.2*.
- 2. Use Quick Code Type drop-down list box to select the quick code to be created.
- 3. Enter the **Description** for the quick code.
- 4. Click the Create Quick Codes pushbutton.
- Note: The system assigns the "Active" status to the quick codes entered.

•	Creat	te Quick Codes				式 Trailbar 🔹	🏡 🖨 🗟 💆	<u>105</u> (e)
		Quick Code Type Order Categor	<b>v</b>					
Quic	k Cod	e Details						
<b>(</b>	•	1 - 1/1 🕨 🔌   + - 🗗 🗸		🔂 🔛 💷 💷 💷 🔳	¶] (=]   All	~		Q
#	F	Quick Code	Description					
1	E.							
2	E.							
		1						1
				reate Quick Codes				

Figure 2.2 Creating quick codes for customer order

## Accepting customer order

A *Customer Order* is a document that is created to communicate the details of service to be performed on an aviation asset. This customer order is dispatched to the internal maintenance department that will carry out the maintenance work.

## Creating customer order details

- 1. Select **Create Customer Order** link under **Customer Order** business component. The **Create Customer Order** page appears. *See Figure 2.3.*
- 2. Select the **Numbering Type** based on which the customer order will be numbered.
- 3. Enter the **Order Description** pertaining to the customer order.
- 4. Enter a unique code identifying the customer in the **Customer #** field.
- 5. Enter the area to which the maintenance object must be shipped or delivered in **Delivery Area** field.
- 6. Use the drop-down list box to select the **Engagement Mode**, which could be "Regular" or "Contract".
- 7. Use the **Order Type** drop-down list box to select the type of the customer order. The system provides the options "Bid", "Prospect", "Regular" and "Warranty Claim".
- 8. Enter the **Expected Receipt Date** on which the maintenance object will be received for service.
- 9. Enter the date on which the serviced maintenance object will be delivered to the customer, in the **Promised Delivery Date** field.
- 10. Use the drop-down list box to select the **Priority**, which could be, "High", "Low", "Normal" etc;
- 11. Use the **Work Center Capability Check** drop-down list box to indicate whether work center capability must be checked or not. The system provides the options "Required" and "Not Required".
- 12. Click the Order Execution Details tab to update the order execution details.

Refer to the topic "Entering customer order execution details" to proceed further.

13. Click the **Object Details** tab to update the object details.

Refer to the topic "Entering object details" to proceed further.

14. Click on the Work Units Details tab to update the work unit details.

Refer to the topic "Entering work unit details" to proceed further.

- 15. Enter the time frame for which the customer is valid in the **Price Held Firm Time** field in the **Order Value Details** group box. Use the drop-down list box provided alongside to select the time unit which could be "Days", "Weeks" or "Months".
- 16. Click the **Create Customer Order** pushbutton to create the customer order. And, click the **Confirm Customer Order** pushbutton to confirm the customer order.
- 17. Click the **Compute Price** pushbutton to compute the pricing details for the customer order.

#### Entering customer order execution details

- 1. Select the **Order Execution Details** tab in the **Create Customer Order** page. *See Figure 2.3.*
- 2. Enter the purchase order number against which the customer order is being created in **Customer PO #** field in **Reference Document Details** group box.
- 3. Enter the **PO Date** on which the purchase order was created.
- 4. Enter the Material Value Limit, Resource Value Limit, Total Routine Hrs Budgeted, Total Non routine Hrs – Budgeted, Total Labour Hrs – Budgeted and the Total Order Value Limit specified in the purchase order.
- 5. Enter the **Quotation #** against which the customer order is being created.
- 6. Enter the **Customer Representative** code in **Order Execution Details** group box.
- 7. Use the **Spares Supplied By** drop-down list box to indicate the source that supplies the spares. The system provides the options "Customer", "Internal", and "Internal & Customer".
- 8. Use the **Preferred Stock Status** drop-down list box to select any one of the preferred stock status.
- 9. Use the **Primary Part Group** drop-down list box to select any one of the primary part groups.
- 10. Use the **Approval of Additional Work Scope** drop-down list box to specify whether work units added to the customer order during the execution stage needs to be approved or not. The system provides the options "Required" and "Not Required.

Create Customer Order			😅 Trailbar 🔹 🏡 🚔 🌄 🔟
		Date Forma	t dd/mm/yyyy
Customer Order Details			
Customer Order #		Numbering Type	
Order Description		Statu	5
Customer # K		Customer Name	
Delivery Area		Engagement Mode	
Order Category	00/07/2000	Oser Statu:	
Order Date	U8/U7/2009		
Currency		Order Type	
Expected Receipt Date		Promised Delivery Date	
Priority	very Low	Work Center Capability Cheo	
Order Execution Details Object Details	Work Unit Details		
Reference Document Details			
Customer PO #		PO Date	
Material Value Limit		Resource Value Limit	
Total Routine Hrs - Budgeted		Total Non routine Hrs - Budgeted	
Total Labour Hrs - Budgeted		Total Order Value Limit	
Quotation #			
Other References			
Order Supplementary Details			
Operator #		Customer Representative Q	
Spares Supplied By	Customer 💌	Preferred Stock Status	Customer-Civil
Primary Part Group	×	Approval of Additional Work Scope	Not Required 💌
Invoice Details			
Invoice Applicable?	Yes 💌	Invoice Basis	v
Quotation Level	~	Invoice Level	~
Order Pricing Details			
Resource Pricing Method	Service Price List	Service Price List #Q	
Std. Labor Rate / Hr		Std. Facility Rate / Hr	
Material Pricing Method	Service Price List	Part Price List #Q	
-			
- L			
Order Value Details			
Total Value		Price Held Firm Time	Days 🗸
Basic Value		Misc. Cos	t
Tax		Charges	5
Discount			
Remarks			
Document Attachment Details			
File Name Q		View File	
Create Customer Order		Confirm Customer Order	Compute Price
Edit Terms & Conditions Edit Address Details Edit TCD Details Maintain Quality Audit	Edit Certificate De Edit Estimates Edit Additional Cha View Component C	talis Edit Parts Supp Edit Object De roes View Consolida Japability View Aircraft M	alied by Customer tails ted Materials Requirements lodel Capability

Figure 2.3 Recording order execution details for customer order

- 11. Use the **Invoice Applicable**? drop-down list box to specify whether invoice is applicable for the customer order or not, in the **Invoice Details** group box. The system provides the options "Yes" and "No".
- 12. Use the **Invoice Basis** drop-down list to select the basis on which the invoice is raised. The system provides the options "Actuals" and "Quotes".
- Use the Quotation Level drop-down list to specify the quotation level of the customer order. The system provides the options "Task Level", "Order Level", "Order Line Level".
- 14. Use the **Invoice Level** drop-down list to select the following options "Task Level", "Order Level".
- 15. Specify the **Resource Pricing Method** in the **Order Pricing Details** group box. The system provides the options "Service Price List", "Work Unit Wise Flat" and "As Entered".
- 16. Enter the **Service Price List #** that you wish to associate with the customer order.
- 17. Enter the labour rate charged for an hour in the **Std. Labor Rate / Hr** field, if you have selected "As Entered" in the **Resource Pricing Method** field.
- 18. Enter the facility labour rate charged for an hour in the **Std. Facility Rate / Hr** field, if you have selected "As Entered" in the **Resource Pricing Method** field.
- 19. Use the **Material Pricing Method** drop-down list to select any one of the following material pricing methods. The system provides the options "Part Price List", "Service Price List" and "Work Unit Wise Flat".
- 20. Specify the Part Price List #.

#### **Entering object details**

- 1. Select the **Object Details** tab in the **Create Customer Order** page. *See Figure* 2.4.
- 2. Enter the Aircraft Reg #, Manufacturer Serial # and the Aircraft Model # in the Aircraft Effectivity Details group box and select the Execute Through options.
- 3. Enter the Primary Work Center # in the Work Center Details group box.

#### Service Sales Management

Create Customer Order				😼 Trailbar 🗸 🔮		🏂 🌄 🌆
			Date Format 🛚	nm/dd/yyyy		-
Customer Order Details						Ŀ
Customer Order #			Numbering Type	C0 💌		
Order Description			Status			
Customer #Q			Customer Name			
Delivery Area			Engagement Mode	Regular 💌		
Order Category			User Status			
Order Date	01/06/2010		Order Applicability	Components 💌		
Expected Receipt Date		Promi	order Type	Kegular 🔹		
Priority	Deliability Y	Work Cen	ter Canability Check	Not Required		
Phoney	Reliability	Work Cen	ter capability check [	Not Required		
Order Execution Details Object Details	Work Unit Details					
Aircraft Effectivity Details						
Aircraft Reg # Q		Manufa	acturer Serial # 🭳			
Aircraft Model #Q			Execute Through A/d	c Maintenance Exec. Ref.	~	
Work Center Details						
Primary Work Center #						
P I ST I I P I I						
Part Effectivity Details						Ĺ.
(<) [No records to display] () > (+)	- 🖻 🐇	1 🔁 🔝 📖 💷 💷 🚛 🗐 💷	😑   All	~		Q
# 🗉 <i>Line #</i> Part # 🥄	0	ustomer Part # 🍳	Part Serial # 🔍		Lot # Q	
1 🗉						
8						>
Warmanha Chaim Dahaile						
Warranty Claim Details						<u> </u>
Claim Status		*				
Reference Customer Order # %		vvarra	anty Reference #			
Audit Report Required?	NO		Audit Report #			
wananty Remarks						_
Other Details						۵.
Customer Inspection	Required 💌	Salv	/age Main Core At	~		
Receiving Location	DemoOU 💌	Salvage Co	re Returnables At	<b></b>		
Shipping Location	DemoOU 💌	Receiv	ving Warehouse #	×		
General Instructions						
Order Value Details						Ŀ
Total Value			Price Held Firm Time		D	ays 💌
Basic Value			Misc. Cost			
Tax			Charges			
Discount						
Remarks						
Document Attachment Details						ŀ
File Name 🭳		<u>View File</u>				
Create Customer Order		Confirm Customer Order		Compute Price		
Edit Terms & Conditions Edit Address Details Edit TCD Details Maintain Quality Audit View CO. Cost History	Edit Certificate De Edit Estimates Edit Additional Ch View Component View Consolidate	<u>ttails</u> arges Capability Resource Requirements	Edit Parts Supplie Edit Object Detail View Consolidater View Aircraft Mod View Customer O	ed by Customer Is d Materials Requirements del Capability redit Information		

Figure 2.4 Recording object details for customer order

In the Part Effectively Details multiline:

- 4. Enter the **Part #** to which the maintenance object belongs. This needs to be entered only when order applicability is component.
- 5. Enter the Customer Part #, Part Serial # and, Lot #.
- 6. Enter the Part Qty. for which the maintenance must be carried out.
- 7. Enter the Shop Job Type and, Stock Status.
- 8. Specify the **Execution Facility** of the maintenance service. The system lists the options "External" and "Internal".
- 9. Use the **Execution Location** drop- down list box to select the organizational unit in which the execution of maintenance work is carried out.
- Note: If the "Execution Facility" is selected as "Internal" the execution location must be set to work center organizational units. If the "Execution Facility" is selected as "External" then the execution location must be set to Repair order organization units.
  - 10. Specify the Work Center in which the maintenance work is carried out.
  - 11. Use the **RO Location** drop-down list box to select the organizational unit in which the repair order will be executed.
  - 12. Enter the **Repair Shop** in which the repair will be carried out.
  - 13. Enter the Salvage Value / Unit, Position Code and the Level Code in the multiline.
  - 14. Specify the Claim Status, Reference Customer Order #, Warranty Reference #, Audit Report Required? and Warranty Remarks in the Warranty Claim Details group box.
  - 15. Use the **Customer Inspection** drop-down list box in the **Other Details group** box, and select the option "Required" if the customer inspection of the maintenance work is required. Else select the option "Note Required".
  - 16. Use the **Salvage Main Core At** drop-down list box to specify the location of salvage action for the specific part. The system lists the following options "MRO" and "Operator".
  - 17. Use the **Receiving Location** drop-down list box to identify the organizational unit in which the object will be received.
  - 18. Use the **Salvage Core Refundables At** drop-down list box to select the location at which the spares associated with main core are salvaged.

- 19. Use the **Shipping Location** drop-down list box to select the organizational unit from which the serviced object must be shipped. The system lists all the organizational units in which the pack slip can be created.
- 20. Use the **Receiving Warehouse #** drop-down list box to specify the warehouse in which the parts required for maintenance service will be received. The system lists all the warehouses associated with the "Receiving Location".
- 21. Enter the **General Instructions** pertaining to the customer order.

#### Entering work unit details

- 1. Select the **Work Unit Details** tab in the **Create Customer Order** page. See *Figure 2.5.*
- Specify the Work Unit #, Work Unit Type, Applicability Group, Revision #, Repair Process Code, Maintenance Type, Customer Task Card #, Billable ?, AMM/CMM Item #, Work Description and Related Task Count in the Work Unit Details multiline.
- 3. Use the **Quotation Required** drop-down list box to specify whether quotation for work unit is required or not. The system lists the options "Yes" and "No".

Treate Customer Order					20	🕏 Trailbar 🕶 🛛 🔮	2 🖨 🛛	i 🚛 🔟
				Date Format	mm/dd/yyy	у		
Customer Order Details								E
Customer Order #			Numb	ering Type	CO 🕶			
Gustemer #9			0.0	Status				
Delivery Area			Engag	ement Mode	Peqular	~		
Order Category	<b>v</b>		Englig	User Status	×			
Order Date	01/06/2010		Order	Applicability	Componen	ts 💌		
Currency	USD 💌			Order Type	Regular	~		
Expected Receipt Date			Promised De	livery Date				
Priority	Reliability 💌		Work Center Cap	ability Check	Not Requir	ed 💌		
Order Execution Details Object Details V	Vork Unit Details							
Total Object Count	t							
Work Unit Details								
(C 4 No records to display)				All		v		
				All		Devision #		
# Une # Work Unit # %	Work U	nit i ype	Applicability Group 🤏			Revision #		
	Task	•						
Conter Instructions Work Requested Work Restriction Execution Document Details Package Type # Visit Group Work Scope Category RO Category	Select		Doc Visi CWC	. Category	Select		V	>
<u>View Task</u> <u>View AMM Reference</u>	<u>View Eng. Doc.</u>		<u>View</u>	<u>ı Task Card</u>				
Order Value Details								[
Total Value			Price He	eld Firm Time			Da	ays 💌
Basic Value				Misc. Cost				
Tax				Charges				
Discount								
Remarks								
Document Attachment Details								
File NameQ		<u>View File</u>						
Create Customer Order		Confirm Customer Order				Compute Price		
Edit Terms & Conditions Edit Address Details Edit TCD Details Maintain Quality Audit View CO Cost History	Edit Certificate De Edit Estimates Edit Additional Cha View Component C View Consolidated	<u>tails</u> arges Iapability Resource Requirements	Ed Ed Vie Vie	it Parts Suppli it Object Deta w Consolidate w Aircraft Mo w Customer C	ed by Custo ils ed Materials del Capabili Tredit Inform	omer Requirements ty mation		

Figure 2.5 Recording work unit details for customer order

- 4. Enter the total man-hours to complete the non-routine work unit (Decimal). Ensure that the value entered is positive in **Non Routines Est. Man Hrs**.
- 5. Enter the total price estimated for resource utilization in **Total Est. Resource Price** and the total price estimated for material usage in **Total Est. Material Price**.
- 6. Enter the fee charged by the service provider for holding parts supplied by the customer in **Embodiment Fee** field.
- 7. Enter the **Misc Cost** that will be incurred by the work unit execution.
- 8. Enter the **Remarks** or Comment regarding the work unit.
- 9. Enter the textual instructions in **Work Requested**, **Work Restriction** and **Other Instruction** fields.
- 10. Use the **Package Type #** drop-down list box to specify the type of package that needs to be planned and the **Doc. Category** to specify the document category.
- 11. Use the Visit Group drop-down list box to specify the group to which the visit package belongs and the Visit Category drop-down list box to specify the category to which the visit package belongs in the Execution Document Details group box. Also, specify the Work Scope Category, CWO Category, RO Category and the RO Priority
- 12. In the **Order Value Details** group box, enter the duration for which the customer order is valid, in the **Price Held Firm Time** field.
- 13. Enter the miscellaneous cost incurred on the customer order, in the **Misc. Cost** field.

To provide additional information for customer order,

- ▼ Select the Edit Terms & Conditions link to specify terms and conditions for the customer order.
- ▼ Select the Edit Certificate Details link to enter certificate information for the customer order.
- Select the Edit Parts Supplied by Customer link to enter details of parts supplied by the customer.
- Select the Edit Address Details link to enter the address details for the customer order.
- Select the Edit Estimates link at the bottom of the page to map the customer task and the Internal task.

- ▼ Select the Edit Object Details link to enter details for the maintenance object for which the customer order is created.
- ▼ Select the Edit TCD Details link to enter taxes, charges and discount details for the customer order.
- ▼ Select the **Edit Additional Charges** link to enter details of additional charges pertinent to the customer order.
- Select the Maintain Quality Audit link to enter details of quality audit carried out on the customer order.
- Select the View Component Capability link to know the work center- part number mapping details.
- Select the View Aircraft Model Capability link to know work center- aircraft model mapping details.
- ▼ Select the View CO Cost History link to know comprehensive details of cost pertinent to the customer order.
- ▼ Select the View Consolidated Resource Requirements link to view consolidated resource requirements for the customer order.
- ▼ Select the View Customer Credit Information link to know currency and credit limit details of the customer associated with the customer order.\
- ▼ Select the View Task Card link to view the task card created in the third party application.
- ▼ Select the **View AMM Reference** link to view the details of aircraft maintenance manual for the task.

#### Entering customer-supplied part details for a customer order

You can record the details of parts supplied by the customer for MRO operations.

- 1. Select Edit Parts Supplied by Customer link in the Create Customer Order page. The Edit Parts Supplied by Customer page appears.
- 2. Enter the part number supplied by the customer in the **Part #** field.
- 3. Enter the **Customer Part #** field and select the mode in which the part must be replenished, in the **Replenishment Policy** field
- 4. Enter the **Remarks** pertaining to the customer-supplied part.
- 5. Click the **Edit Part Details** pushbutton to update the customer-supplied part details.

#### Entering terms and conditions for customer order

You can enter the terms and conditions that are applicable to the customer order.

- 1. Select Edit Terms & Conditions link at the bottom of the Create Customer Order page. The Edit Terms & Conditions page appears. See Figure 2.6.
- 2. Enter General Terms Agreement Details for customer order.

To specify General Payment Terms for the customer order,

- 3. Select the method by which the payment will be received, in the **Receipt Method** field.
- 4. Enter the **Pay Term** applicable for the customer order.
- 5. Indicate who should bear the insurance amount in the **Insurance Liability** field. Furnish the other insurance details such as the **Insurance Amount** and **Insurance Terms**.

To specify Advance Payment Terms for the customer order,

- 6. Specify whether advance payment is applicable or not by selecting "Yes" or "No" in the **Advance Applicable** field.
- 7. Enter the date by which the advance payment must be made, in the Advance Payable By Date field.
- 8. Enter the percentage of amount that is to be received as advance, in the **Advance Percent** field.
- 9. Select the option by which the advance payment must be made, in the **Advance Percent On** field, which could be "Total Value" and "Basic Value".
- 10. Enter the amount that is to be received as advance in the **Advance Payable** field.
- 11. Enter the **Advance Tolerance Percent** field to indicate the maximum deficit / excess amount in percentage that can be received as advance.
- 12. Select the action to be taken on non-payment of advance, in the Action on Non payment field.

To enter general outbound delivery terms,

- 13. Identify the **INCO Term**, **Carrier #**, **Port of Departure** and **Port of Destination** for serviced goods shipment.
- 14. Specify whether the freight charge is billable to the customer, in the **Freight Billable** field and enter the **Freight Amount**.
- 15. Enter Packaging Notes and Shipping Notes fields.
- 16. Furnish **Outbound Delivery Terms** for the serviceable component, cores and spares as required.

#### To enter Part Salvage Terms details,

- 17. Enter the price that will be incurred on evaluating the part for Beyond Economic Repair in the **BER Value** field.
- 18. Specify the salvage action for the part declared as BER, in the Salvage At field.
- 19. Click the Edit Terms and Conditions pushbutton.

Edit Terms & Conditions		😂 Trailbar 🗸   🏡 🚔 🌄 🌃
		D. C. D. MM MYY
Customer Order Details		Date Format Dominipation
Customer Order Decails	512114	Amendment #
Status	Fresh	
General Terms Agreement Details		
GTA Reference #		Ref. Document Date
GTA Remarks		
File Name		Order Settlement Mu Soloct the paymont
Initiate Invoicing At	Task Closure	Allow Shipping After receipt mode
General Payment Terms		
Receipt Method R	eqular 🗸	Receipt Mode CA Y
Pay Term Q	ash	Insurance Liability None
Insurance Amount	USD	,
Insurance Terms	Indicate whether advance	
Advance Payment Terms	payment is applicable or not	
Advance Applicable N	• 2	Advance Payable By Date
Advance Percent		Advance Percent On Basic Value
Advance Payable	USD	Advance Tolerance Percent
DD Charges borne by N	lone 💌	Action on Non Payment None
Remarks		
Outbound Delivery Terms :General		
Inco Term	<b>v</b>	Carrier / Agency #Q
Port Of Departure		Port Of Destination
Freight Billable	es 💌	Freight Amount USD
Packaging Notes		
Shipping Notes		
Outbound Delivery Terms :Serviceable Co	mponent	
Transportation Mode	×	Freight Term
Packaging Code	~	Shipping Label
Outbound Delivery Terms :Cores		
Transportation Mode	×	Freight Term
Packaging Code	<b>v</b>	Shipping Label
Outbound Delivery Terms :Spares		
Transportation Mode	×	Freight Term
Packaging Code	<b>v</b>	Shipping Label
Forward Cover Exchange Rate Details		
Forward Cover Applicable	No	Forward Rate
Warranty Agreement Details		
Warranty Period (Days)		Warranty Expiry Date
Warranty From Date		Warranty Reference #
Warranty Terms		
Agreement Details		
	Edit Tar	ms & Conditions
	Lacre	

Figure 2.6 Entering terms and conditions for customer order

#### Specifying TCD details for a customer order

You can specify the different taxes, charges and discounts applicable for the customer order.

1. Select Edit TCD Details link at the bottom of the Create Customer Order page. The Edit TCD Details page appears. See Figure 2.7.

•	Edit	TCD Details				🛛 💐 Trailbar 🔹 🧙 🚔 📑	, 🌄 🚾 🙆
Cust	omer	Order Details					
		Customer Order #	512114		Amendment #		
		Status	Fresh		Applicable On Order	Level 💙	
		Delivery Area	UNKNOWN		Order Currency USD		
				Get Details			
TCD	Detai	s					
<	•]	1 -1/1 🕨 🔌   🕂 🗖 🐇	]	🔂 💽 📶 XLS ESU TXT	💶 🏭   💻 🖶   All	~	Q
#	E	TCD # 🭳	TCD Description		TCD Variant #	TCD Variant Description	
1	Е	ATS1	Add to Stock 1 %		1	ATS-1	
2	Е						
		<					>
				Edit TCD Details			
				Luit rep betalls			

Figure 2.7 Specifying TCD details for a customer order

- 2. Select the **Part #** for which you wish to define the TCD details.
- 3. Select the **TCD Mode**, which could be "Labor", "Material" or "Document".
- 4. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the existing TCD details for the TCD mode and part selected.
- 5. Enter the code identifying the TCD and the number identifying the variant of the TCD in the **TCD #** and **TCD Variant #** fields in the multiline.
- 6. Enter the rate of the TCD in the **TCD Rate** field.
- 7. Identify the **Pay to Supplier #** to whom the payment must be made.
- 8. Click the Edit TCD Details pushbutton to save the TCD details.

#### Identifying certificate requirements for a customer order

You can enter the certificates that are applicable to customer order.

1. Select Edit Certificate Details link at the bottom of the Create Customer Order page. The Edit Certificate Details page appears. See Figure 2.8.

•	Edit	Certificate Details		💐 Trailbar 🗸   🏡 🚔 🐺 🌆
Custo	omer	Order Details		[4
		Customer Order # 512114	Am	endment #
		Status Fresh		
Certi	ficate	e Details		
[	•]	1 -1/1 🕨 🔌 🕂 🗕 🗗 🐇	🔂 🔝 💷 💷 💷 💷	All V
#	E	Part Certification Type	Description	Supplier Certification Type
1	E			RELEASE TO SERVICE
2	E			
				>
			Edit Certificate Details	

Figure 2.8 Identifying certificate requirements for a customer order

- 2. Select the type of the certificate applicable to the customer order in the **Certificate Type** field.
- 3. Enter the file name of the document that contains the certificate details in the **Template** field.
- 4. Click the **Edit Certificate Details** pushbutton to update the certificate details for the customer order.

#### Entering address details for a customer order

You can enter address details of the 'bill to' and 'ship to' customers identified for a customer order.

1. Select Edit Address Details link at the bottom of the Create Customer Order page. The Edit Address Details page appears.

To enter bill to customer details,

- 2. Select the customer to whom the service is billed, in the **Bill To Customer #** field.
- 3. Select the address of the 'bill to' customer in the **Bill To Address** field.
- 4. Furnish the Address, Contact Person, Work Phone #, Email and Fax details for the 'bill to' customer.

To enter ship to customer details,

- 5. Select the customer to whom the serviced goods are to be shipped, in the **Ship To Customer #** field.
- 6. Select the address of the 'ship to' customer in the **Ship To Address** field.
- 7. Furnish the Address, Contact Person, Work Phone #, Email and Fax details for the 'ship to' customer.
- 8. Click the Edit Address Details pushbutton.

## Estimating customer order

You can estimate a customer order after creation.

As a part of estimation, you can furnish the detailed work scope for the customer order line number. If the sub-components need maintenance service, you can also enter the details of work units that must be carried out on the sub-components. The system retrieves all the work units for which the "Estimation required" is marked as "Yes" in the "Customer Order" business component.

For the maintenance objects, you can update technical records by entering aircraft, component and parameter information. You can also create an aircraft or the component for which maintenance work has to be carried out.

### Estimating work scope for a customer order

You can furnish detailed work scope information for a customer order line number. This information can be entered only for a customer order for which the estimation status is "Pending" and the order status is "Fresh".

The work units, which must be performed as a part of the maintenance service work, are attached to the customer order in the "Create Customer Order" page. Each work unit is assigned a customer order line number, by which it is referred to, in other activities. You can furnish detailed work scope information for the customer order line number.

- 1. Select **Prepare Quotation** link under **Customer Order Management** business component. The **Select Customer Order** page appears.
- 2. Provide **Search Criteria** to search for the customer order, which needs estimation. Click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Check the box in the multiline to select the customer order for estimation.
- 4. Select the **Edit Estimates** link at the bottom of the multiline to estimate work scope details for customer order. The **Edit Estimate** page appears. *See Figure 2.9.*

Edit Estimate			🔯 Trailbar 🗸   🏡 🖨	) 📑 📮 📧
		Da	ate Format dd/mm/yyyy	
Customer Order Details Customer Order # CO-000003-2009 Order Description Overhaul User Status Order Applicability Components Customer Order Line # 1	Select the user status of the customer order	Amendment Ordering Poi Aircraft Reg Quotation Require ork Description / Customer Task Card	# 0 nt ELAL # d? Yes M # RESTORATION OF MAIN GEAR	
Work Scope Details			- 1	
Image: Constraint of the customer order	Select the customer order line number for which the estimation must be done	erhaul	Work Unit Type Task Task	Est. Man Hrs.
Work Requested Work Restriction Other Instructions	Edit Work Scope Compute D			
View Consolidated Material Requirements	/iew Consolidated Resource Requirements	Edit Object D	etails	

Figure 2.9 Estimating work scope for a customer order

- 5. In the **Customer Order Details** group box, select the **User Status** and the **Customer Order Line #** for which you wish to define the work scope details.
- 6. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the customer order line number details.

To enter detailed Work Scope Details multiline,

- 7. Enter the **Work Unit #** and **Revision #** of the work unit, if any, and select the **Work Unit Type** and the **Maintenance Type**.
- Note: The work unit can be of type "Task", "Standard Procedure", "Aircraft Work Package", "Component Work Package" or "Engineering Order".
- Note: The maintenance type can be "Overhaul", Repair", "Inspection" and "Others".
  - 8. Specify whether the work unit is billable or not in the Billable (Y / N) field..
  - 9. Click the Edit Work Scope pushbutton to save the work scope details.

To provide further information,

- Select the View Consolidated Materials Requirements link to view consolidated material requirements for the customer order.
- Select the View Consolidated Resource Requirements link to view consolidated resource requirements for the customer order.
- ▼ Select the Edit Object Details link to enter details for the maintenance object for which the customer order is created.

#### Updating technical records

You can add new records or modify existing records for the maintenance objects associated with the customer order. You can create a new aircraft or component record, which is automatically updated in the "Aircraft" business component.

1. Select the Edit Object Details link in the Edit Estimate page. The Update Technical Records page appears. See Figure 2.10.

•	Upda	te Technical Records			式 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	🖨 🗟 두 🔟 🙆	
Custo	mer	Order Details					
		Customer Order # CO-00000	<u>)3-2009</u>	Amendment #			
		Description Overhaul					
Aircra	aft De	etails					
		Aircraft Reg #		Manufacturer S	Serial #		
		Aircraft Model #		Primary Work Center # IND-BASE			
Part I	Detai	ls					
[]		1 - 1/1 🕨 🔌   🕂 🗕 🗗 🐇		🔂 💽 🚥 🚥 💷 🚛 🗐 🚍 🗖	All 👻	Q	
#	E.	Part #	Part Type	Serial # 🍳	▼ Lot # Q	Part Qty.	
1	E.	011355	Component				
2	E.,						
		<ul> <li>III</li> </ul>				>	
			Edit Mair	ntenance Object			

Figure 2.10 Updating technical records

- 2. Enter the Serial # and Lot # of the part in the Part Details multiline.
- 3. Enter the **Part Qty.**, and the **Stock Status** of the part.
- 4. Click the **Edit Maintenance Object** pushbutton to save the maintenance object details.

# Authorizing customer order

If you have set "Approval of Customer Order" option as "Required" in the "Set Options" activity, you must authorize the customer order after estimation, to be able to process the customer order.

1. Select Authorize Customer Order link under Customer Order business component. The Authorize Customer Order page appears. See Figure 2.11.

Authorize Customer Order				🔤 Trailbar 🔹 🔮	2 🖨 🛛	ļ 🍋	105
			Date Format dd/mm/	уууу			
Search Criteria							-
Customer Order #			Amendment #				
Order Date From			Order Date To				
Aircraft Reg #			Part #				
Customer #		Customer Name					
Order Applicability	~		Priority	~			
		Search					
Search Results							-
(<) [No records to display] () [>) [-]		1	i 💷 🏦   📮 🖨   All	~			٩
# 🗉 Customer Order #	Amendment #	Order Date	Order Applicability	Priority			
		Found no rows to dis	play!!!				
		_					
l.	Authorize Customer Order		ancel Customer Order				
View Customer Credit Information							

Figure 2.11 Authorizing customer order

- 2. Provide Search Criteria to search for the customer order to be authorized.
- 3. Select the **Customer Order #** in the multiline and click the **Authorize Customer Order** pushbutton.

- 4. To authorize customer orders in bulk, check the **Select All** box below the multiline and click the **Authorize Customer Order** pushbutton.
- Note: On authorization, the customer order attains the "Authorized" status. The system creates the visit package, work scope or the repair order if the "Automatic Creation of Visit Package", "Automatic Creation of Work Scope" or the "Automatic Creation of Repair Order" option is set as "On Authorize" in the "Set Options" activity.

## **Canceling customer order**

- 1. Select **Authorize Customer Order** under **Customer Order** business component. The Authorize Customer Order page appears.
- 2. Provide Search Criteria to search for the customer order to be cancelled.
- 3. Select the **Customer Order #** in the multiline and click the **Cancel Customer Order** pushbutton.
- Note: The customer order attains "Canceled" status.

## Revoking customer order

You can revoke a customer order that is cancelled. You cannot revoke a customer order when the associated execution orders (visit package, work scope or repair order) are released.

1. Select **Revoke Customer Order** under **Customer Order** business component. The **Revoke Customer Order** page appears. *See Figure 2.12*.

•	Revo	oke Customer Order				🕸 Trailbar 🔹   🏡 🗎 [	🛱 🌄 🔟		
					Date Format dd/mm/yy	уу			
Searc	h Cri	iteria							
		Customer Order #			Description				
		Order Date From	•		Order Date To				
		Aircraft Reg #			Part #				
		Customer #			Customer Name				
		User Status			Order Category	~			
		Order Applicability	~		Priority	~			
				Search					
Searc	h Re	sults					-		
[]		1 - 5 / 500 🕨 🔊 🔚		🔂 🔝 💷 💷 🖬 📊	🖺 🖶   All	~	Q		
#	E.	Customer Order #	Order Date	Order Applicability	Priority	Total Value			
1	Е	519670	04/04/2003	Components	Normal				
2	E	549246	17/11/2003	Components	Normal				
3	E	549261	17/11/2003	Components	Normal				
4	1	591378	28/10/2004	Components	Normal		1		
5	E	592780	08/11/2004	Engine	Normal				
		C • 16							
							>		
	Revoke Order								

Figure 2.12 Revoking customer order

- 2. Provide Search Criteria to search for the customer order to be revoked.
- 3. Select the **Customer Order #** in the multiline and click the **Revoke Order** pushbutton.
- Note: The customer order attains the "Revoked" status.
# Amending customer order

You can amend the customer order details after authorization or processing. Amendment of the customer order is carried out to modify the details after authorization.

When you amend a customer order in the "Authorized" or "Processed" status, the status changes to "Under Amendment". You must confirm the customer order for further processing. On confirmation, the status is updated as "Confirmed".

You can also cancel the most recent amendment of a specific customer order. The system sets the Status of the cancelled customer order and amendment to "Cancelled". However, you can cancel an amendment only if the status is "Under Amendment".

- 1. Select **Amend Customer Order** under **Customer Order** business component. The Select Customer Order page appears.
- 2. Provide **Search Criteria** to search for the customer order that must be amended and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Click the hyperlinked **Customer Order #** in the multiline to amend the customer order. The **Amend Customer Order** page appears. See Figure 2.13.

Modify the following details of the customer order if required.

- 4. The textual description of the customer order in the **Order Description** field.
- 5. Use the drop-down list box to modify the **Engagement Mode**, which could be "Regular" or "Contract".
- 6. Use the **User Status** drop-down list box to modify the user status of the customer order.
- 7. The date of creation of the customer order in the **Order Date**.
- 8. The date on which the maintenance object will be received for service in **Expected Receipt Date.**
- 9. The date on which the serviced maintenance object will be delivered to the customer in **Promised Delivery Date**.
- 10. Use the **Priority** drop-down list box to modify the priority for the execution of the customer order.
- 11. Use the **Work Center Capability Check** drop-down list box to indicate whether work center capability must be checked or not. The system provides the options "Required" and "Not Required".

The Amend Customer Order			📑 Trailbar 🔹 🏠 🚔 🎩 🍱
			. dd/mm/uanu
		Date Forma	, dominiyyyy
Customer Order Details	519670	Amondana ta	- 72
Customer Order #		Amenament :	= 72
Order Description	2048	Statu	
Customer #			
Delivery Area	Overtement Jah	Engagement Moo	e Regular
Order Category		User Statu	s V
Order Date	04/04/2003	Order Applicabilit	y Components
Currency	USD	Order Typ	e Regular
Expected Receipt Date	04/04/2003	Promised Delivery Date	e 28/08/2012
Priority	Normal	Work Center Capability Chec	k Not Required
Amendment Comments	14/02/07 Revised target date awaiting	g admin of job	
Order Execution Details Object Details	Work Unit Details		
Reference Document Details			
Customer PO #	¢ C/C8308	PO Date	04/04/2003
Material Value Limit	t	Resource Value Limit	
Total Routine Hrs - Budgeted	4	Total Non routine Hrs - Budgeted	
Total Labour Hrs - Budgeted	4	Total Order Value Limit	1372.50
Quotation #		Change Quotation Status	~
Other References			
Order Supplementary Details			
Operator #	-	Oustomer Penrecentative	
Sparse Supplied By	, Internal	Dreferred Stock Status	Internal-Civil
Bringer Back Croup	GA PROPS	Approval of Additional Work Scope	Not Required
Tavaica Dataila	,	Approval of Additional Work Scope	
Invoice Details	Yes	Terreire Desis	Actuals
Invoice Applicable?	- Tack Lovel		
Quotation Leve	J Task Level	Invoice Level *	
Order Pricing Details	· Convice Drice I		
Resource Pricing Method	J Service Price L	Service Price List # 4	JSD DASE RATE
Std. Labor Rate / Hr		Std. Facility Rate / Hr	
Material Pricing Method	J Service Price L	Part Price List #	
Order Value Details			
Total Value	53.00	Drice Held Firm Tim	e Dave Y
Total Pasis Value Original (Addis	53.00	Proce read from the	
Total Basic Value Original/Addin.	0.00	Misc. Cos	- 0.00
Discount	0.00	Charge	5 0.00
Berrarko			
Document Attachment Datails			
File Name Q	v	iew File	
	· ·		
_Amend Cus	stomer Order Confirm Custor	mer Order Cancel Amendment Comp	pute Price
Edit Terms & Conditions Edit Address Details	Edit Certificate Det	tails Edit Parts Sup rkscope Edit Object Do	plied by Customer etails
Edit TCD Details	Edit Additional Cha	arges View Concolda	ated Material Requirements
View CO Cost History	View Consolidated	Resource Requirements	iorer copability

Figure 2.13 Amending customer order details

12. Click on the "Order Execution Details" tab to amend the order execution details.

Refer to the topic "Entering work order execution details" to proceed further.

13. Click on the "Object Details" tab to amend the object details.

Refer to the topic "Entering object details" to proceed further.

14. Click on the "Work Units Details" tab to amend the work unit details.

Refer to the topic "Entering work unit details" to proceed further.

15. Click the Amend Customer Order pushbutton to save the amended details.

**Cancel Amendment** 

- 16. Select the **Cancel Amendment** pushbutton to cancel the most recent amendment of the customer order.
- Note: You cannot modify details of the customer order, before cancellation of amendment.

#### **Status Change Details (Amendment)**

#### **Before Amendment**

Customer Order #	Amendment #	Status
CusOrd001		AUTHORIZED/

#### **After Amendment**

Customer Order #	Amendment #	Status
CusOrd001		AUTHORIZED/ PROCESSED
CusOrd001	1	UNDER AMENDMENT

The row that is in **bold** represents the current status of the customer order after amendment.

17. Click the **Confirm Customer Order** pushbutton to confirm the customer order.

#### **Status Change Details (Confirmation)**

#### **Before Confirmation**

Customer Order #	Amendment #	Status
CusOrd001		AUTHORIZED/ PROCESSED
CusOrd001	1	UNDER AMENDMENT

#### **On Confirmation**

Customer Order #	Amendment #	Status
CusOrd001		AMENDED
CusOrd001	1	PROCESSED

The row that is in **bold** represents the current status of the customer order.

- 18. Click the **Compute Price** pushbutton to compute the pricing details for the customer order.
- Note: The system retrieves the pricing details from the "Pricing Settings" business component according to the information supplied in this page. Service price list number, work unit number, part number (that is identified as material requirement), part supplied by MRO or service provider, resource requirements, customer order date and customer order currency are supplied as inputs to the pricing engine. Based on the predefined settings and the inputs supplied, the system retrieves the flat and estimated material price, flat and estimated resource price and miscellaneous price details.

## Entering work order execution details

- 1. Select the **Order Execution Details** tab in the **Amend Customer Order** page. See Figure 2.13.
- 2. Enter the purchase order number against which the customer order is being created in **Customer PO #**, in **Reference Document Details** group box.
- 3. Enter the **PO Date** on which the purchase order was created.
- 4. Enter the total material limit specified in the purchase order in **Material Value** Limit field.
- 5. Enter the total resource limit specified in the purchase order in **Resource Value** Limit field.
- 6. Enter the total routine hours budgeted for all the resources specified in the purchase order in **Total Routine Hrs Budgeted** field.

- 7. Enter the total additional or non-routine hours budgeted for all the resources specified in the purchase order in **Total Non Routine Hrs Budgeted** field.
- Enter the total labour hours budgeted for the purchase order in Total Labour Hrs

   Budgeted field.
- 9. Enter the maximum total amount that can be incurred for the specified order in **Total Order Value Limit** field.
- 10. Use the **Change Quotation Status** drop-down list box to indicate the acceptance of the quotation by the quotation.
- 11. Enter the reference pertaining to customer order creation in **Other References** field.
- 12. Enter the **Misc Cost** incurred on the customer order in **Order Value Details** group box.

## **Entering object details**

1. Select the **Object Details** tab in the **Amend Customer Order** page. See Figure 2.14.

Amend Customer Order				🔯 Trailbar 🕶	≙ 🗟 🖗	105
			Date Format	ddimm/www		
Sustanan Ordan Dataila			Dato Format	aquini())))		-
Customer order becaus	0.000010.2000		A			
Customer Order # O	0-000010-2009		Amendment #	Descended		
	LST-PS		Status	Processed		
Customer # L			Customer Name	DELTA AIRLINES		
Delivery Area A	IL-LINE		Engagement Mode	Regular		
Order Category A	.d Hoc	_	User Status			
Order Date 1	14/12/2009	<u> </u>	Order Applicability	Aircraft		
Currency U	5D	_	Order Type	Regular		
Expected Receipt Date 1	14/12/2009	٥	Promised Delivery Date	14/12/2009	<u> </u>	
Priority R	Reliability 💌		Work Center Capability Check	Not Required		
Amendment Comments						
Order Execution Details Object Details Work U	nit Details					
Aircraft Effectivity Details						
Aircraft Don # C	ST-PS		منيحيحة القرماني م	320		
Aircraft Reg # C	ST-DS-1		Aircrart model # A	/c Maintenance Ever, Def		
Manuracturer Serial # C	1-6-1		Execute Inrough A	re maintenance exec, ker,		
Work Center Details						
Primary Work Center # A	MA-HVY					
Warranty Claim Details						
Claim Status						
Reference Customer Order #			Warranty Reference #			
Audit Report Required? N	lo		Audit Report #			
Hadic Report Requires:			Hour Report #			
Other Details						
Customer Inspection R	equired 💌		Salvage Main Core At	~		
Receiving Location D	emoOU 💌		Salvage Core Returnables At	~		
Shipping Location D	emoOU 💙		Receiving Warehouse #	~		
General Instructions				N		
Order Value Details						-
Total Value 0.1	00		Price Held Firm Time		Days V	
Total Pacis Value Ovicinal/Adda 0.0	00		Mice Cost	L	0.07	
Total basic Value Original/Adult. 0.4	00		Charles	0.00	0.00	<u>,</u>
Tax 0.0	00		Charges	0.00		
Discount 0.4				120		
Remarks						
Document Attachment Details						<b></b>
File Name 🤍		View File				
Amend Custon	ner Order Confirm	n Customer Order	Cancel Amendment Compu	te Price		
Edit Torme & Conditions	eda estre	te Detaile	rda pues r	lhu Customer		
Edit Address Details	Edit Additiona	al Workscope	Edit Object Details	i by customer		
Edit TCD Details Prepare Quote	Edit Additiona View Compose	al Charges pent Capability	View Consolidated View Aircraft Mode	Material Requirements		
View CO Cost History	View Consolic	lated Decource Dequirements	VICW AILCIGIT MOU	a coponicy		

Figure 2.14 Amending object details of customer order

- 2. Enter the **Price Held Firm Time** in **Order Value Details** group box. Use the drop-down list box to select the time unit. The time unit could be "Hours", "Days", "Weeks" or "Months".
- 3. Enter the **Misc Cost** incurred on the customer order in **Order Value Details** group box.

4. Enter the **File Name** of the document that you wish to attach to the customer order details in **Document Attachment Details** group box. Click the "**View File**" link provided alongside to view the file details.

## Entering work unit details

- 1. Select the **Work Unit Details** tab in the **Amend Customer Order** page. See *Figure 2.15.*
- 2. Enter the number identifying the work unit that must be performed on the maintenance object in the **Work Unit #** field in the **Work Unit Details** multiline.
- 3. Specify the **Work Unit Type**. The system lists the options "Task", "Standard Procedure", "Aircraft Work Package", "Component Work Package", "Maintenance Change Request" and "Engineering Order".
- 4. Enter the Applicability Group of the work unit.
- 5. Use the **Repair Process Code** drop-down list box to select the repair process for the customer.
- 6. Enter the **Revision #** of the work unit.
- 7. Use the **Maintenance Type** drop-down list box to specify the maintenance type of the work unit. The system lists the options "Overhaul", "Repair", "Inspection" and "Others".
- 8. Use the **Billable?** drop-down list box, to specify whether the work unit is billable or not. The system provides the options "Yes" and "No".
- 9. Enter the Related Task Count of the work unit.
- 10. Use the **Quotation Required** drop-down list box to specify whether estimation for work unit is required or not. The system provides the options "Yes" and "No".
- 11. Enter the total man-hours to complete the non-routine work unit in the **Non Routines Est. Man Hrs** field. Ensure that the value entered is positive.
- 12. Enter the **Total Est. Material Price**, **Total Est. Resource Price**, **Embodiment Fee** and **Misc Cost** in the multiline.
- 13. Enter the Remarks or Comment regarding the work unit.
- 14. Specify the Work Scope Category, CWO Category, RO Category, and RO priority in Execution Document Details group box.
- 15. Enter the **Price Held Firm Time** in **Order Value Details** group box. Use the drop-down list box provided alongside to select the time unit. The time unit could be "Hours", "Days", "Weeks" or "Months".

📑 🖬 Amend Custom	er Order					式 Trailbar 🕶	🔝 🖨 🛱 🖉 🛛
					Date Format dd/mm/www		
- Furthermor Order Deta	ile				Date Format dayming yyyy		
customer order beta	Customer Order #	CO-000010-2009			ûmendment #		
	Order Description	CO-GBBBID-2007			Status Processed		
	Customer #	DELTA			Cuctomer Name DELTA AIRI II	VES	
	Delivery Area	ATL-LINE					
	Order Category	Ad Hor					
	Order Category Order Date	A dive leader		Ovdev Applicability Direction			
	Gurrongu	14/12/2009 USD		Order Type Regular			
	Evpected Deceipt Date	u diselecce.					
	Priority	14/12/2009 Deliability	×	Work Ce	enter Canability Check Not Required		
	Amendment Comments	Reliability		Work Ct	since capability chock (Not Required		
Order Execution Detail	s Object Details Work L	Jnit Details					
	Total Object Count	1					
Work Unit Details							
		ৰা দে				v	0
			and the set				
#	Work Unit # 🔧		work Unit Type	Applicability Group 🤜	Revision #		Repair Proci
1 1			Task 💌				
_							
<u> </u>							Þ
Execution Document	Details						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Package Type#	Heavy			Doc. Category DAMAGE		
View Task				View EO			
Order Value Detail-							
order value Decalls	Tabaliti	0.00			Duine Hald Time Time		Davis 17
_	Total Value	0.00			Price Held Firm Time		Days 💌
Т	otal Basic Value Original/Addin.	0.00			Misc. Cost		0.00
	Tax	0.00			Charges U.UO		
	Discount	0.00					
	Remarks						
Document Attachmen	t Details						
	File Name 🤍		View File				
	Amend Cust	tomer Order	Confirm Customer Order	Cancel Amendment	Compute Price		
Edit Terms & Conditions			Edit Certificate Details		Edit Parts Supplied by Oustomer		
Edit Address Details			Edit Additional Workscope		Edit Object Details		
Edit TCD Details Prepare Quote			Lait Additional Charges View Component Capability		view Consolidated Material Requ View Aircraft Model Capability	urements	
View CO Cost History			View Concolidated Decourse Decryiver	entr			

Figure 2.15 Amending work unit details of customer order

- 16. Enter the **Misc Cost** incurred on the customer order.
- 17. Enter the **File Name** of the document that you wish to attach to the customer order details in **Document Attachment Details** group box. Click the "**View File**" link provided alongside to view the file details.

# Editing Additional Work Scope Details

This activity allows you to edit the additional work scope details. This page allows you to modify the work scope that is added to the customer order from the execution centers. The system retrieves the additional work scope details and you can modify them.

1. Select the Edit Additional Workscope link at the bottom of Amend Customer Order page. The Edit Additional Workscope page appears. See Figure 2.16.

•	Edit Additional \	Workscope				式 Trailbar	·   🏡 🗟 🌄 🛛	<u>6</u>
				Date Format				
Sear	ch Criteria							
Custor	ner Order #			Amendment #				
			Get	Customer # Details				
Addit	tional WorkScope	Details						
<	<ul> <li>■ 1 -9/9</li> </ul>	» + - D 4		🛛 🔁 🔝 ATA ALS ESU TAT	🛃   📳 🚍   All	~	J	P
#	7	Part #	Serial #		Lot #	Shop J	lob Type	
1						▼		
2						•		
3						•		
4						•		
5								
0 7						• •		
8	8					· ·		
9	E1					•		
	N							7
			Edit Addition	nal Workscope				

Figure 2.16 Estimating additional work scope details of customer order

- 2. The system displays the **Customer Order #, Amendment #, Customer Order Desc.** and **Customer #** in the **Search Criteria** group box.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton, to display the additional workscope details in the multiline.
- 4. The system displays the CO Line #, Work Unit #, Work Unit Type, Revision #, Description, Execution Order #, Execution Order Type, Execution Location, Est.Man Hrs., Part #, Serial #, Lot#, Shop Job Type, Aircraft Reg #, Model #, Estimated Total and Authorization Status in the Additional WorkScope Details multiline.
- 5. Use the **Billable?** drop-down list box to specify whether the work unit is billable.
- 6. Use the **Quotation Required?** drop-down list box to specify whether quotation is required or not for the work unit.
- 7. Click the **Edit Additional Workscope** pushbutton, to edit the additional work scope details.

# Processing customer order

Processing customer order involves generating visit package, work scope and repair order. Visit package, work scope and repair order are created to carry out the maintenance activity on the maintenance object.

Only customer orders that are in the "Confirmed" or "Authorized" status can be processed into execution orders.

- 1. Select **Process Customer Order** under **Customer Order Management** business component. The Select Customer Order page appears.
- 2. Provide **Search Criteria** to search for the customer order that must be processed and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Click the hyperlinked **Customer Order #** in the multiline to process the customer order. The **Process Customer Order** page appears. *See Figure 2.17.*

Process Customer Order			🔤 Traibar 🔹 🏫 🚔 💆
Customer Order Details			
Customer Order # CO-0053	24-2009	Amendment # 0	)
Description ··		Order Category	Customer Job
Check Capability Required	~	User Status	<b>v</b>
Assign to Aircraft Vicit Package			
Assign to Aircraft Visit Package		1	
Visit Category CUSTOME	Specify whether work center	Visit Group	MAJOR
Execution Unit SALOU	capability must be checked	Primary Work Center #	6401-ACFT MAINT NO 1 HANGAR
Aircraft Reg # ZK-EFS	or not for customer order	Model # L	INEMAINT
Title		Priority	Normal
	Create Visit	Backana	
	Create Visit i	Package	
Work Scope Details			<b></b>
< 📢 [No records to display] 🕨 🔌   🕂 🗕 🗗 🐇	1	n 💷 💷 💷 🚛   🚇 🖶   All	<b>ب</b>
# 🖻 Part #	Serial #	Execution Facility	Execution Unit
1 🗉		External	•
			>
Create Work Scope	Create Repa	air Order	Create Component Work Order
Review Work Execution	E	dit Object Details	

Figure 2.17 Processing customer order

- 4. To cancel work scope, select appropriate option in the **Action** drop-down list box in the **Canceling Work Scope** group box below the multiline and click the **Cancel** pushbutton.
- Note: Ensure that the visit package, work scope and repair order that you wish to cancel, is not in "Released" status.
  - 5. Select the **User Status** for the customer order.

To create visit package,

- 6. In the **Assign To Aircraft Visit Package** group box, select the category for the visit package in the **Visit Category** field, and select the **Visit Group**.
- 7. Enter the **Title** of the visit package and select the **Execution Unit** and **Primary Work Center #** where the visit package will be executed.
- 8. Select the **Priority** of the customer order.
- 9. Click the Create Visit Package pushbutton to create a visit package.

To create repair order,

- 10. In the Work Scope Details multiline, set the Execution Facility as "External".
- 11. Select the **RO Location** and enter **Repair Shop #** where the repair will be performed.
- 12. Select the category of the repair order in the **RO Category field**, and select the **RO Priority.**
- 13. Click the Create Repair Order pushbutton to create a repair order.
- Note: For components for which the execution facility is "External", a repair order is created.

To create work scope,

- 14. In the Work Scope Details multiline, set the Execution Facility as "Internal".
- 15. Select the **Execution Unit** and **Execution Center** where the work scope will be carried out.
- 16. Click the Create Work Scope pushbutton to create a work scope.
- Note: For components for which the execution facility is "Internal", a work scope is created.

To create component work order,

- 17. In the Work Scope Details multiline, set the Execution Facility as "Internal".
- 18. Select the CWO Category and the Work Scope Category.
- 19. Click the **Create Component Work Order** pushbutton to create a component work order.

To view work execution details,

▼ Select the **Review Work Execution** link.

To provide further information,

▼ Select the Edit Object Details link to update the maintenance object details.

# Receiving customer goods

In the maintenance shop, on receipt of customer goods, a customer goods receipt is generated. The customer part(s) are delivered to the maintenance shop, for performing the services, or to be used as spares on the maintenance object. The delivery of customer goods to the maintenance shop can occur with or without a customer order.

The generation of a customer goods receipt against a customer order is termed as *Customer Order Based Goods Receipt.* Generation of customer goods receipt against a customer without any reference to the customer order is termed as *Direct Customer Goods Receipt.* 

Once the customer goods receipt details are finalized and the receipt details are frozen, further modifications of the customer goods receipt cannot be done. Then the parts are moved to the designated warehouses. The receipt process is complete only when the item is moved to the warehouse.

Before moving to the designated warehouse, the customer goods receipt undergoes the following status transformation:

- Fresh: The status of the customer goods receipt on creation.
- Partially Freezed: The status of the customer goods receipt document when only certain line item quantities of the part numbers are in the "Freezed" status.
- Freezed: The status of the customer goods receipt document when the details have been frozen and can no longer be modified.
- Partially Moved: The status of the customer goods receipt document when only certain line item quantities of the part numbers have been moved to the warehouse.
- Moved: The status of the customer goods receipt document when all the part numbers available in the line(s) have been moved to the warehouse.

## Setting options for customer goods receipt

You can set the default option for the "Customer Goods Receipt" business component. You can set the option for allowing or disallowing the movement of the goods to the warehouse on freezing the customer goods receipt.

- 1. Select the **Set Options** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The **Set Options** page appears. *See Figure 2.18*.
- Set the Movement to Warehouse on Freeze Receipt as "Required" in the Option Setting Details group box to enable the movement of the goods to the warehouse on freezing the customer goods receipt. Select "Not Required" otherwise.

Set Options		😂 Traibar 🗸   🏡 🖨 🐺 😡 🔟
		Date Format dd/mm/yyyy
Option Setting Details		
	Movement to Warehouse on Freeze Receipt Not Required	
	Set Options	
Record Statistics		
	Last Modified by DMUSER	Last Modified Date 30/04/2009

Figure 2.18 Setting options for customer goods receipt

3. Click the **Set Options** pushbutton to set the options.

# Creating quick codes for customer goods receipt

Quick codes are user-defined values, used to categorize details based on certain characteristics. You can define the quick code values for each of the quick code types; These quick codes are later used in other activities, where the details are classified.

The basic quick code types for customer goods receipt are defined in the system. The basic quick code types such as "CGR Category" and "User Status" are defined in the system. Quick codes can be defined under each of these quick code types.

1. Select the **Create Quick Codes** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The **Create Quick Codes** page appears. *See Figure 2.19*.

Create Qu	iick Codes			式 Trailbar 🕶	🏡 📇 🛤 💭 🚳 🙆
Quic	k Code Type CGR Category	×			
Quick Code Deta	ails				
< 🖪 [No reco	rds to display] 🕨 测   🕂 [	- 6 4	🔁 🖳 🚥 🚥 🚥 💷   📮 🚍	All 👻	Q
# 티 Quicł	k Code	Description			
1 🗉					
<					>
		Creat	Quick Codes		

Figure 2.19 Creating quick codes for customer goods receipt

2. Select the Quick Code Type as "CGR Category" or "User Status".

- 3. Enter the Quick Code and Description in the Quick Code Details multiline.
- 4. Click the Create Quick Codes pushbutton to create the quick codes.
- Note: The system assigns the "Active" status to the quick codes entered in the multiline.

# Creating customer order based goods receipt

The Customer Order Based Goods Receipt is created based on the customer order referring to the details of the aviation asset and /or spares sent to the Repair/ Maintenance shop for performing services. A customer order communicates the details of the service to be performed on the maintenance object. It contains details such as the work units, sub-component information, customer-supplied part details, discrepancies and maintenance object details.

You are also provided with the option of freezing the customer goods receipt, when all the details pertaining to the customer goods receipt are recorded.

Note: The details of customer goods receipts that are in "Freezed" status cannot be modified.

# Creating customer goods receipt

- 1. Select the **Create Customer Order Based Goods Receipt** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The Select Customer Order page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Customer Order #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Create Customer Goods Receipt** link provided along side.

Or

- 3. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Customer Order #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Create Customer Goods Receipt** page appears. *See Figure 2.20*.
- 5. Select the **Numbering Type** in the **Customer Goods Receipt Details** group box to specify the numbering pattern for the generation of customer goods receipt.
- 6. Enter the Receipt Date on which the customer goods were received.
- 7. Enter the **Reference Document #** and the **Reference Document Date** in the **Reference Document Details** group box.
- 8. Select the **Ordering Point** to specify the location where the customer order is placed.

Create Customer Goods Receipt		🔀 Trailbar 🗸 🏠 🚔 📮 👅
	Date Format d	d/mm/yyyy
Customer Goods Peceint Natails		
Customer Goods Receipt Details	Numbering Turns	
CGR #	The type of the reference document	
Receipt Date	Which could be "Customer Order", User Status	•
CGR Category	Purchase Order", or "Others" Status	
Reference Document Details		(A)
Ref. Doc Type	ustomer Order Ref Document # C	0-004040-2008
Ref. Document Date	12/02/2008 Ordering Point A	BC Limited
Other References	N	
Customer Information		
Customer #	Customer Name S	AFE AIR LTD
Delivery Information	Enter the additional reference	A
Way Bill #	of the customer goods receipt Way Bill Date	
Gate Pass #	Gate Pass Date	
No. of Packs	Consignment Weight	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Packaging Condition		
Warehouse Information		
Warehouse #	11	
Desciet Teferenties		
		× P
# Line # PO Line #	PO Part # Part # Q	Received Qty Material Ty
	S-1001	Regular
2 1		Regular
Other Details		
Liser Defined Detail 1		
User Defined Detail 2		
Bemarka	Enter the name of the reference	
Remarks		
Document Attachment Details		
File Name		
	Create Receipt Freeze Receipt	
Edit Serial # /Lot # & Storage Information Maintain External Stock Allocation Record Tracking Ref. Document Details	Move Goods to Warehouse         Edit References           Generate Part Barcode Label         Generate Custom           Record Hazmat Compliance         Generate Custom	er Goods Receipt Document Report

Figure 2.20 Creating customer goods receipt

- 9. Enter the **Way Bill #**, **Way Bill Date**, **Gate Pass#** and **Gate Pass Date** in the **Delivery Information** group box.
- Note: The way bill date and gate pass date should be later than the reference document date.

- 10. Enter the **No of Packs**, to specify the number of cartons or packages in which the customer part(s) have been packed.
- 11. Enter the Packaging Condition of the customer goods
- 12. Select the **Warehouse #** in the **Warehouse Information** group box to specify the warehouse to stock the goods.
- 13. Enter the Part # in the Receipt Information multiline.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Customer Order', ensure that a value is entered in "Part #" and the same value exists in "Customer Order" as defined in the "Customer Order" business component.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Purchase Order', ensure that a value is entered in "Part #" and the same value exists in "Purchase Order" as defined in the "Purchase Order" business component.
  - 14. Enter the **Received Quantity** to specify the actual quantity of parts received from the customer.
  - 15. Use the **Material Type** drop down list box to select the material type of the part. The system lists the options 'Main Core' and 'Regular'.
  - 16. Use the Stock Status drop-down list box to assign a user-defined stock status.
  - 17. Enter the **Customer Part #** and **Pack Slip Quantity**.
  - 18. Enter the user-defined details in the Other Details group box.
  - 19. Click the **Create Receipt** pushbutton to create the customer goods receipt.
- Note: The system generates the customer goods receipt number based on the numbering type selected and updates the status as "Fresh".

#### Freezing the customer goods receipt

- 20. Click the **Freeze Receipt** pushbutton to freeze the customer goods receipt.
- Note: The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt as "Freezed".
- Note: In the "Set Options" activity, if "Movement To Warehouse on Freeze Receipt" is set as "Required":

• For the CGR Line #, the system moves the quantity of parts received to the designated warehouse, updates the status of the CGR line item as "Moved" and refreshes the page.

• The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt document as "Moved" only if the entire quantity of the received goods is moved to the respective warehouse. Else, the status is set as "Partially Moved".

Note: In the "Set Options" activity, if "Movement To Warehouse on Freeze Receipt" is set as "Not Required":

• The system updates the status of the CGR line item as "Freezed" for all the non-serial-controlled and non-lot-controlled parts.

• The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt document as "Freezed" only if all the serial-controlled and lot number-controlled part details are entered. Else, the system updates the status of the customer goods receipt document as "Partially Freezed".

To proceed further,

- Select the Edit Serial #/ Lot # & Storage Information link to record the serial number, lot number and the storage details for the customer goods receipt.
- Select the Move Goods to Warehouse link to move the customer goods to the warehouse at single storage location.
- Select the Edit References link to enter the reference details of the customer goods receipt.
- Select the Maintain External Stock Allocation link to map Customer # -Warehouse # as defined in "Storage Administration" business component.
- Select the Generate Part Barcode Label link to generate barcode label details of the individual parts of a customer goods receipt.
- Select the Generate Customer Goods Receipt Document Report link to generate a report format of the customer goods receipt document.
- Select Record Tracking Ref. Document Details link to record and view the details of processed tracking reference document.

## Creating purchase order based customer goods receipt

A Customer Goods Receipt can be created against the purchase order, to record the serviceable or maintainable objects such as the component or spares received, which is/are further moved and stored in the specific warehouse(s). The Purchase Order Based Goods Receipt is created based on the purchase order referring to the details of the Customer Parts sent to the Repair/ Maintenance shop for performing services. In this case, the "Purchase Order" would be treated as the reference document based on which the goods receipt is raised. Once the customer goods receipt details are freezed, the goods receipt cannot be modified.

 Select the Create Purchase Order Based Customer Goods Receipt link in the Customer Goods Receipt business component. The Select Purchase Order page appears. 2. Enter the **Purchase Order #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Create PO based Customer Goods Receipt** link provided along side.

Or

- 3. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Purchase Order #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Create Customer Goods Receipt** page appears. *See Figure 2.21*.
- 5. Select the **Numbering Type** in the **Customer Goods Receipt Details** group box to specify the numbering pattern for the generation of customer goods receipt.
- 6. Enter the Receipt Date on which the customer goods were received.
- 7. Enter the **Reference Document #** and the **Reference Document Date** in the **Reference Document Details** group box.
- 8. Enter the **Way Bill #**, **Way Bill Date**, **Gate Pass**# and **Gate Pass Date** in the **Delivery Information** group box.
- Note: The way bill date and gate pass date should be later than the reference document date.
  - 9. Enter the **No of Packs**, to specify the number of cartons or packages in which the customer part(s) have been packed.
  - 10. Enter the Packaging Condition of the customer goods.
  - 11. Select the **Warehouse #** in the **Warehouse Information** group box to specify the warehouse to stock the goods.
  - 12. Enter the Part # in the Receipt Information multiline.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Customer Order', ensure that a value is entered in "Part #" and the same value exists in "Customer Order" as defined in the "Customer Order" business component.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Purchase Order', ensure that a value is entered in "Part #" and the same value exists in "Purchase Order" as defined in the "Purchase Order" business component.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Purchase Order', and the received part number is different from the ordered part number, ensure that the "Alternate Type" dropdown list box is set as either "Allowed" or "Specific Alternate" as defined in the "Create Purchase Order" activity of the "Purchase Order" business component.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Purchase Order' and the received part number is different from the ordered part number and the "Alternate Type" is set to "Allowed" in the Purchase Order, ensures that the received part number is an alternate part to the ordered part number as defined in the "Part Administration" business component. The alternate part can be either a direct alternate or a conditional alternate or customer-specific alternate.

Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Purchase Order' and the received part number is different from the ordered part number, and the "Alternate Type" is set to "Specific Alternate" in the Purchase Order, ensure that the received part number is the same as the alternate part number set in the Purchase Order.

Create Customer Goods Receipt					式 Trailbar 🕶	≙	🗟 📮 📧
				Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy		
Customer Goods Receipt Details							
CGR #				Numbering Type	þgr 🛩		
Receipt Date	08/07/2009			User Status	<b>•</b>		
CGR Category	×			Status			
Reference Document Details							
Ref. Doc Type			Ref Document #	D22086A			
Ref. Document Date	04/10/2006			Ordering Point	ABC Limited		
Other References							
Customer Information							
Customer #	1390			Customer Name	ROYAL AUSTRALIAN AIRFO	RCE	
Delivery Information							
Way Bill #		]		Way Bill Date		•	
Gate Pass #		]		Gate Pass Date		•	
No. of Packs			C	onsignment Weight			~
Packaging Condition							
Warehouse Information							
Warehouse#	Н3 💌						
Receipt Information							
« • • • 1 - 1/1 • » + - • 4		<b>1</b>	HTME XLS ESU TXT 🛃 🏭	All	~		Q
# 🗏 Line # PO Line #	PO Part #		Part # 🍳		Received Qty		Material T <sub>1</sub>
1 🗉	1 557676		557676				Regular
2 🗊							Regular
							>
Other Details							
User Defined Detail 1							
User Defined Detail 2							
Remarks							
Document Attachment Details							
File Name							
	Create F	Receipt	Freeze Receipt				
Edit Serial # /Lot # & Storage Information Maintain External Stock Allocation Record Tracking Ref. Document Details	Move Goods to V Generate Part B Record Hazmat (	<u>Varehouse</u> arcode Label Compliance		Edit References Generate Custo	mer Goods Receipt Documer	nt Report	

Figure 2.21 Creating purchase order based goods receipt

- 13. Enter the **Received Quantity** to specify the actual quantity of parts received from the customer.
- 14. Use the **Material Type** drop down list box to select the material type of the part. The system lists the options 'Main Core' and 'Regular'.
- 15. Use the Stock Status drop-down list box to assign a user-defined stock status.
- 16. Enter the Customer Part #.
- 17. Enter the **Pack Slip Quantity** to specify the quantity of parts listed by the customer.
- 18. Enter the user-defined details in the Other Details group box.
- 19. Click the Create Receipt pushbutton to create the customer goods receipt.
- Note: The system generates the customer goods receipt number based on the numbering type selected and updates the status as "Fresh".

#### Freezing the customer goods receipt

- 20. Click the Freeze Receipt pushbutton to freeze the customer goods receipt.
- Note: The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt as "Freezed".

To proceed further,

- ▼ Select the Edit Serial #/ Lot # & Storage Information link to record the serial number, lot number and the storage details for the customer goods receipt.
- ▼ Select the **Move Goods to Warehouse** link to move the customer goods to the warehouse at single storage location.
- Select the Edit References link to enter the reference details of the customer goods receipt.
- ▼ Select the "Maintain External Stock Allocation" link to map Customer # Warehouse # as defined in "Storage Administration" business component.
- Select the Generate Part Barcode Label link to generate barcode label details of the individual parts of a customer goods receipt.
- Select the Generate Customer Goods Receipt Document Report link to generate a report format of the customer goods receipt document.
- Select Record Tracking Ref. Document Details link to record and view the details of processed tracking reference document.

# Entering the serial number, lot number and storage details for customer goods

You can enter the serial number, lot number and the storage information for the part(s) received from the customer. You can also specify the number of quantities of parts that are received and moved for a particular lot number and serial number. The sum of all these quantities must be equal to the total quantity of the part(s) received.

You can enter these details for only those customer goods for which the placement strategy is "Manual".

- 1. Select the Edit Serial #/ Lot # & Storage Information link in the Create Customer Goods Receipt page. The Edit Serial #/ Lot # & Storage Information page appears. See Figure 2.22.
- 2. Select the **CGR Line #** in the **Customer Goods Receipt Details** group box to specify the customer goods receipt line number for which the serial and lot details and storage details must be specified.
- Note: The system retrieves only those customer goods receipt line numbers for which the placement strategy is set as "Manual" in the main page.
  - 3. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the details for the selected line item.
  - 4. Enter the **Warehouse** #, **WH-Zone** # and **Bin** # in the **Default Value** group box to specify the default warehouse, zone and bin where the customer goods are to be stocked.
  - 5. Enter the Certificate Type, Certificate #, Certificate Date and, Default Expiry Date.
  - 6. Enter the **Manufacture Serial #** in the **Storage Details** multiline.
  - 7. Enter the **Component #** of the part received from the customer.
- Note: If the component ID already exists for the specified customer-supplied part serial number in the "Aircraft" business component, the system displays the same as the component number.
  - 8. Enter the Manufacturer Lot #.
  - 9. Select the **Part Condition** as "Serviceable", "Unserviceable", "Over hauled", or "New".
- Note: Ensure that the part condition is selected if the "Component #" is entered.
  - 10. Enter the **Received Quantity** to specify the quantity of parts received from the customer.
  - 11. Enter the Moved Quantity of parts.

Edit Serial # / Lot # & Storage Information		🔀 Trailbar 🔹 🏡 🖨 🌠 🚛
	Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy
Customer Goods Receipt Details		
CGR # CGR-003711-2008	Status	Fresh
Receipt Date 28/02/2008		
CGR Line # 1 🔨 Get Details	Total Received Quantity	1.00 EA
Part # s-1001	Customer Part #	
Part Description FUEL FILTER	Part Control Type	Serial Controlled
Customer Information		
Customer # 1	Customer Name	SAFE AIR LTD
Default Value		
Warehouse# H1	WH - Zone #	
Bin #	Certificate Type	~
Certificate #	Certificate Date	
Default Evoiry Date		, <u> </u>
Steware Details	5.	
		× ×
# Line # Manufacturer Serial # Q	Component # Q	Manufacturer Lot
1 0A2FA7B5-8C6C-4D3B-8E38-44E81E75A38E	COMP-1006	
	Get Storage Detail	
Update	Details Freeze Receipt	
Move Goods to Warehouse Edit Parameter D Generate Part Barcode Label Generate MMD R Record Hazmat Compliance	etail Maintain Extern eport Record Trackin	nal <u>Stock Allocation</u> g Ref. Document Detail <u>s</u>

12. Enter the **Warehouse #** to specify the warehouse where the customer is allowed to stock the goods.

Figure 2.22 Entering serial number, lot number and storage details for customer goods

- 13. Click the **Get Storage Details** pushbutton to retrieve the storage details of the zone and the bin for the selected warehouse.
- Note: If the "Placement Strategy" is set as "Automatic" for the selected customer goods receipt line item, the system automatically retrieves the storage details such as the warehouse/zone/bin information stored against the line item.
  - 14. Enter the **WH-Zone** # and **Bin** #.
  - 15. Select the user-defined Stock Status.
  - 16. Enter the Certificate Type, Certificate #, Certificate Date, Authorization # and Expiry Date.

- 17. Click the **Update Details** pushbutton to update the storage details.
- 18. Click the **Freeze Receipt** pushbutton to freeze the customer goods receipt details.
- Note: The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt as "Freezed".
- Note: In the "Set Options" activity, if "Movement To Warehouse on Freeze Receipt" is set as "Required":

• For the CGR Line #, the system moves the quantity of parts received to the designated warehouse, updates the status of the CGR line item as "Moved" and refreshes the page.

• The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt document as "Moved" only if the entire quantity of the received goods is moved to the respective warehouse. Else, the status is set as "Partially Moved".

- Note: In the "Set Options" activity, if "Movement To Warehouse on Freeze Receipt" is set as "Not Required":
  - The system updates the status of the CGR line item as "Freezed" for all the non-serial-controlled and non-lot-controlled parts.

• The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt document as "Freezed" only if all the serial-controlled and lot number-controlled part details are entered. Else, the system updates the status of the customer goods receipt document as "Partially Freezed".

To proceed further,

- ▼ Select the **Move Goods to Warehouse** link to move the customer goods to the warehouse at single storage location.
- Select the Edit Parameter Details link to modify the parameter details of the customer part(s).
- Note: This page can be launched only if the part type for the part number is "Component".
- Select the "Maintain External Stock Allocation" link at the bottom of the page, to maintain external stock allocation details.
- Select the "Generate Part Barcode Label" link at the bottom of the page, to generate barcode label details of the individual parts of a customer goods receipt.
- Select the "Generate MMD Report" link at the bottom of the page, to generate a stock status report in the form of a material movement document.
- ▼ Select "Record Tracking Ref. Document Details" link at the bottom of the page, to record and view the details of processed tracking reference document.

### Entering the parameter details of the customer part

You can enter maintenance parameter values for the part for which the customer goods receipt is created. You can enter parameters, such as the time or cycle since the component was manufactured or underwent maintenance like overhaul, repair and inspection.

- 1. Select the **Edit Parameter Detail** link in the **Edit Serial # / Lot # & Storage Information** page. This link can be launched only if the part type for the part number is "Component". The **Edit Parameter Detail** page appears.
- 2. Select the **Part Serial #** in the **Customer Goods Receipt Details** group box to select the serial number of the part to enter the parameter information.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the details for the part serial number.
- 4. Enter Since New, Since Overhaul, Since Repair, Since Inspection and Since Last Shop Visit to specify the cumulative flying hours or flying cycles of the component, since its manufacture, last overhaul in the shop, last repair in the shop, last inspection in the shop and last visit to the shop for maintenance respectively.
- Note: If the part condition is "New", then all the parameter values will be blank.
- Note: If the part condition is "Overhaul", then the parameter value for "Since New" should be greater than zero and other parameters such as "Since Repair", "Since Inspection" and "Since Last Shop Visit" should be set to zero.
- Note: If the part condition is "Serviceable", then "Since New" should be greater than or equal to "Since Overhaul" and "Since Overhaul" should be greater than or equal to "Since Repair", "Since Last Shop Visit" and "Since Inspection".
  - 5. Click the Edit Parameter Details pushbutton to update the parameter details.
- Note: This link can be launched only if the part type for the part number is "Component".

# Canceling the customer goods receipt

You can cancel the customer goods receipts, which are in "Fresh" status.

- 1. Select the **Edit Customer Goods Receipt** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The Select Customer Goods Receipt page appears.
- 2. Enter the **CGR #** directly and select the **Edit Customer Goods Receipt** link provided alongside.

Or,

- 3. Specify **Search Criteria** to search for customer goods receipt document, click the **Search** pushbutton and select the hyperlinked document number in the multiline. The **Edit Customer Goods Receipt** page appears. *See Figure 2.23*.
- 4. Click the Cancel Receipt pushbutton to cancel the customer goods receipt.
- Note: You cannot cancel the customer goods receipt which is in "Freezed" status.

#### Service Sales Management

Eur Customer Goods Receipt			鸿 Trailbar 🔹 🏠 🗎	🕦 🌄 🌆
		Date Format	aa/mm/yyyy	_
Customer Goods Receipt Details				
CGR #	CGR-003711-2008	Status	Fresh	
Receipt Date	28/02/2008	User Status	¥	
CGR Category	<b>•</b>			
Reference Document Details				
Ref. Doc Type	Other	Ref Document #		
Ref. Document Date		Ordering Point	Safe Air Limited	
Other References				
Customer Information				
Customer #	1	Customer Name	SAFE AIR LTD	
Delivery Information				
Way Bill #	75676	Way Bill Date	25/02/2008	
Gate Pass #		Gate Pass Date		
No. of Packs		Consignment Weight		~
Packaging Condition				
Warehouse Information				
Warehouse #	H1 V			
Paceint Information				
Receipt Information				
	🔿 🛛		level.	0
	20 m t 4		▼	P
≪     €     1 - 1 / 1 ▶ ≫ + - B <sup>2</sup> &       ±     □     Line #       PO Line #     1	PO Part #	2 25 All	Received Qty	P Material T <sub>1</sub>
≪     1     -1/1     >>>     +     -     □     ↓       #     □     Line #     PO Line #       1     □     1       2     □	PO Part #	an as so an <b>c in a a</b> An Part # Q s-1001	Received Qty 1.00	Material T <sub>1</sub> REG Main Core
(a)     1     -1/1     (b)     +     -     (c)     (c)       #     I     Line #     PO Line #       1     I     1       2     I	PO Part #	2 m 25 m 2 m 2 m All Part # 9. s-1001	Received Qty	Material Tr REG Main Core
(a)     1     -1/1     >>     +     - <t< td=""><td>PO Part #</td><td>2 m 25 53 53 13 1 m 4 All Part # 9 s-1001</td><td>Received Qty</td><td>Material T: REG Main Core</td></t<>	PO Part #	2 m 25 53 53 13 1 m 4 All Part # 9 s-1001	Received Qty	Material T: REG Main Core
((1)     1)     ((1)     ((1))     (	PO Part #	<b>Part # 9</b> s-1001	Received Qty 1.00	P Material T: REG Main Core
(a)     1     -1/1     >>>     +     -     DP     4       #     I     Line #     PO Line #     1       1     I     1       2     I	PO Part #	2 (m) 205 (m) 20 (m)	Received Qty	P Material T: REG Main Core
(     1     -1/1     >>     +     -     D' 4       #     I     Line #     PO Line #       1     I     1       2     I	PO Part #	2 m 25 50 m 2 m 4 All Part # 9 s-1001	▼       Received Qty       1.00	P Material T REG Main Core
((1)       (1)	PO Part #	Image:	Received Qty 1.00	P Material T: REG Main Core
Image: Contract of the second seco	PO Part #	Part # 9, s-1001	Received Qty 1.00	P Material Tr REG Main Core
(       1       -1/1       >>       +       - <td>PO Part #</td> <td>Image: Image: Image:</td> <td>Received Qty 1.00</td> <td>P Material Tr REG Main Core</td>	PO Part #	Image:	Received Qty 1.00	P Material Tr REG Main Core
(       1       -1/1       >>       +       - <td>Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status</td> <td>Part # 9. s-1001</td> <td>Received Qty 1.00</td> <td>P Material T REG Main Core</td>	Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status	Part # 9. s-1001	Received Qty 1.00	P Material T REG Main Core
Image: Contract of the second decision of the second decisio	Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status	Click this pushbutton freeze the customer of receint which is in "E	Received Qty  Received Qty  1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1	Material T: REG Main Core
Image: Constraint of the second se	PO Part # Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status	Click this pushbutton freeze the customer of receipt, which is in "F status	Received Qty 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	P Material T REG Main Core
Image: Constraint of the second se	PO Part # Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status	Click this pushbutton freeze the customer of receipt, which is in "F status	Received Qty 1.00 1.00 to goods resh"	P Material T; REG Main Core
Image: Constraint of the second se	Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status	Click this pushbutton freeze the customer of receipt, which is in "F status	Received Qty 1.00 1.00 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Material T REG Main Core
Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice       Image: Constraint of the second practice         Image: Constraint of the second practice	Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status Edit Receipt Cancel R Move Goods to Warehouse Generate Part Barcode Label Record Hazmat Compliance	Image:	Received Qty Received Qty 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0	Material Ty REG Main Core
Image: Constraint of the second statistics	PO Part #  Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status  Edit Receipt Cancel R  Move Goods to Warehouse Generate Part Barcode Label Record Hazmat Compliance	Click this pushbutton freeze the customer of receipt Freeze Receipt	Received Qty Received Qty 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0	Material T: REG Main Core
Image: Constraint of the second tracking Ref. Document Details         Edit Serial # /Lot # & Storage Information Maintain External Stock Allocation Record Tracking Ref. Document Details         Record Statistics	Click this pushbutton to modify the details of the customer goods receipt, which is in "Fresh" status Edit Receipt Cancel R Move Goods to Warehouse Generate Part Barcode Label Record Hazmat Compliance	Click this pushbutton freeze the customer of receipt Preeze Receipt Edit References Generate Custo	Received Qty Received Qty 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0	Material T; REG Main Core

Figure 2.23 Canceling the customer goods receipt

## Creating direct customer goods receipt

You can raise a customer goods receipt on a customer, for the part(s) received from the customer to the Repair /Maintenance shop, to perform the service or maintenance activity without any reference to the customer order. You are also provided with the option of freezing the customer goods receipt, when all the details pertaining to the customer goods receipt are recorded.

- Note: The details of customer goods receipts that are in "Freezed" status cannot be modified.
  - 1. Select the **Create Direct Customer Goods Receipt** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The Select Customer page appears.
  - 2. Enter the **Customer #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Create Customer Goods Receipt** link provided along side.

Or

- 3. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Customer #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Create Customer Goods Receipt** page appears.

To proceed further, follow the steps described under **Creating customer goods receipt** in the **Creating Customer Order Based Goods Receipt** section.

## Moving customer goods to warehouse

You can move the customer stock from the place of receipt to the warehouse designated for the customer.

Note: You can move the parts received through customer goods receipt only if the customer goods receipt is in "Freezed" status.

You can move the customer stock to the designated warehouse in two levels.

- Document Level Indicates that all the parts received through customer goods receipt can be moved to a single storage location after the details have been entered. The status of the customer goods receipt document is updated as "Moved".
- Line / Item Level Indicates that parts available in the individual lines of the customer goods receipt document can be moved to the multiple warehouses partially or fully and the status of the customer goods receipt document is updated as "Partially Moved" or "Moved" respectively.

## Moving customer parts at the document level to the warehouse

You can move the part(s) available in the customer goods receipt to storage location (warehouse/zone/bin). The system defaults the storage details depending on whether the picking strategy is selected as 'Automatic' or not.

- 1. Select the **Move Customer Goods to Warehouse** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The **Select Customer Goods Receipt** page appears.
- 2. Enter the CGR # in the Direct Entry group box and select the Move Goods To Warehouse link provided alongside.

#### Or

- 3. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer goods receipt based on which the parts are to be moved.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **CGR#** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Move Customer Goods** page appears. *See Figure 2.24*.
- 5. Enter the **Warehouse** #, **WH- Zone** # and **Bin** # in the **Default Value** group box to specify the default warehouse, zone and bin where the customer goods are allowed to be stocked.
- 6. Enter the **Warehouse #** in the **Receipt Information** multiline to specify the warehouse where the customer goods can be moved.
- Note: The warehouse should be selected either in the "Default Value" group box or "Receipt Information" multiline.
- Note: Ensure that the "Warehouse #" selected allows the stocking of goods of the specified customer.
  - 7. Enter the **WH- Zone #** and **Bin #**.
  - 8. Enter the **Moved Quantity** of the part to the respective warehouse.
  - 9. Select the user-defined **Stock Status**.
  - 10. Click the **Get Storage Details** pushbutton to retrieve the storage details of the zone and the bin for the selected warehouse.
- Note: The system ensures that the 'CGR' document is in "Freezed" status.
- Note: If the "Placement Strategy" is set as "Automatic" for the selected customer goods receipt line item, the system automatically retrieves the storage details such as the zone/bin information stored against the line item.

Move Customer Goods	🔀 Traibar 🛛 🏠 🚔 🌄 🌆
	Date Format dd/mm/yyyy
Customer Goods Receipt Details	
CGR # CGR-002509-2007	Status Partially Moved
Receipt Date 08/06/2007	Ref. Doc Type Other
Ref Document # DA\00117628\DS	Ref. Document Date 29/05/2007
Customer # 565	Customer Name AIR NEW ZEALAND ENGINEERING SERVICES
Default Value	
Warehouse# USR 💌	WH - Zone #
Bin #	
Receipt Information	
#	Customer Part # Part Description
1 I 3-15580PT2	WHEEL ASSY MAIN
2 <b>I</b>	
Enter the remarks pertaining to	
the movement of the parts to	e 🔰
warehouse at document level	Get Storage Details
Remarks	
Movement Remarks	
	Move Parts
Move Goods - Linewise         Maintain Ext           Record Tracking Ref. Document Details         Record Hazn	ernal Stock Allocation <u>Generate MMD Report</u> nat Compliance
Record Statistics	-
Created by 0463	Created Date 08/06/2007
Last Modified by 0463	Last Modified Date 08/06/2007

Figure 2.24 Moving customer parts at the document level to the warehouse

- 11. Click the **Move Parts** pushbutton to move the parts specified in the customer goods receipt to the designated warehouse.
- Note: The system updates the status of the customer goods receipt as "Moved" if all the parts present in the CGR line have been moved. Else, the system updates the status as "Partially Moved".
- Note: The system generates the internal serial number and lot number for serial number-controlled and/or lot number-controlled parts on movement to warehouse/zone/bin.
- Note: If the 'Ref Doc Type' is 'Purchase Order' then for the line item, the system retrieves and displays the receipt positive tolerance percent from "PO". If the tolerance percent is null or zero, then Moved Qty must be lesser than or equal to the Pending Qty. If it is greater than zero, then Moved Qty must be lesser than or equal to pending qty+ (order qty\*receipt positive tolerance percent specified/100).

To proceed further,

- Select the Move Goods Line Wise link to move the customer goods at the line item level to the warehouse.
- ▼ Select the **Maintain External Stock Allocation** link to maintain external stock allocation details.
- Select the Generate MMD Report link to generate a stock status report in the form of a material movement document.
- ▼ Select the **Record Tracking Ref. Document Details** link to record and view the details of processed tracking reference document.

#### Moving customer parts at the line item level to the warehouse

You can move the parts received from the customer through a customer goods receipt to the selected multiple storage location (warehouse/zone/bin). The movement is done at the line item level, that is, the part number available in the selected line number is moved to the selected warehouse.

1. Select the Move Goods Line - Wise link in the Move Customer Goods page. The Move Customer Goods – Linewise page appears. *See Figure 2.25*.

Move Customer Goods - Linewise				式 Trailb	oar 🗸   🏡 🗎 [	🤹 두 📧
			Date Fr	ormat dd/mm/yyyy		
Customer Goods Receipt Details						
CGR # CGR-002509-	2007		S	tatus Partially Moved		
Customer # 565			Customer	Name AIR NEW ZEALAND E	NGINEERING SERV	VICES
Receipt Date 08/06/2007						
CGR Line # 1 CGet D	etails					
Part #			Customer P	art #		
Part Description			Part Control	Туре		
Total Received Quantity						
Default Value						
Warehouse# USR 🗸			WH - Zo	one # 🔽		
Bin #						
CCP Line # Details						
< 🖪 [No records to display] 🕨 🔌 🕂 🖃 🗳			💴 💷 🛄 🏭 💾 📕 Al		~	Q
# Manufacturer Serial #	Manufacturer Lot #		Stock Status	Warehouse # 🤇	WH - Zone # 🭳	
1			Customer-Military			
<ul> <li>III</li> </ul>						>
	Get	Storage Detai	Is			
Remarks						
Movement Remarks						
		Move Parts				
Maintain External Stock Allocation	Generate MMD Report	, increased j	Perord Tr	acking Ref. Dogument Deta	sile	
Record Hazmat Compliance	<u>Generate Minb Report</u>		<u>Necora n</u>	dealing Ren. Document Dete	<u></u>	
Record Statistics						
Created by 0463			Created	Date 08/06/2007		
Last Modified by 0463			Last Modified	Date 08/06/2007		

Figure 2.25 Moving customer parts at the line item level to the warehouse

- 2. Select the **CGR Line #** to specify the customer goods receipt line number containing the parts, to be moved to the warehouse.
- Note: The system retrieves only those customer goods receipt line items, which are not in "Moved" status.
  - 3. Enter the **Warehouse** #, **WH- Zone** # and **Bin** # in the **Default Value** group box to specify the default warehouse, zone and bin where the customer goods are allowed to be stocked..

- 4. Enter the **Warehouse #** in the **Receipt Information** multiline to specify the warehouse where the customer goods can be moved.
- Note: The warehouse should be selected either in the "Default Value" group box or "Receipt Information" multiline.
- Note: Ensure that the "Warehouse #" selected allows the stocking of goods of the specified customer.
  - 5. Click the **Get Storage Details** pushbutton to retrieve the storage details of the zone and the bin for the selected warehouse.
- Note: If the "Placement Strategy" is set as "Automatic" for the selected customer goods receipt line item, the system automatically retrieves the storage details such as the zone/bin information stored against the line item.
  - 6. Enter the **WH- Zone** # and **Bin** #.
  - 7. Click the **Copy Lot** # pushbutton to copy the manufacturer lot number details of the part to the subsequent multiline.
- Note: You can copy the details of only those parts of type "Lot Controlled".
- Note: On copying the manufacturer lot details to the subsequent multiline, the system generates unique internal lot numbers for the manufacturer lot quantity. The sum total of part received quantity for all the rows will be equal to the quantity received for that manufacturer lot number.
  - 8. Enter the **Moved Quantity** to indicate the quantity of parts moved to the respective warehouse. The value entered here must be greater than zero.
  - 9. Select the user-defined **Stock Status**.
  - 10. Click the **Move Parts** pushbutton to move the selected parts specified in the CGR line item to the warehouse.
- Note: The system updates the status of the CGR line item as "Moved".
- Note: The system generates internal serial numbers and lot numbers for serial number-controlled and/or lot number-controlled parts on movement to the warehouse/zone/bin.

To proceed further,

- ▼ Select the **Maintain External Stock Allocation** link to maintain external stock allocation details.
- Select the Generate MMD Report link to generate a stock status report in the form of a material movement document.
- Select the Record Tracking Ref. Document Details link to record and view the details of processed tracking reference document.

# Recording tracking reference document details

You can record the tracking reference document details of customer owned goods received through customer goods receipt and facilitates tracking shipment of customer owned items.

1. Select the **Record Tracking Ref. Document Details** link in the **Customer Goods Receipt** business component. The **Record Tracking Ref. Document Details** page appears. *See Figure 2.26*.

•	Rec	ord Track	king Ref. Document De	tails				🛛 💐 Trailbar 🔹 🏠 🖨	) 🗟 📮 题	
								Date Format dd/r	mm/yyyy	
Se	arch	Criteria	Additional Search Criteria							
			Part #			Part Des	cription		1	
			Serial #				Lot #			
Customer #						CGR #				
Dicelay Option		All	~	Dirplay Serial / Let Nos		Yes ¥				
Display Option		Bossist Data: From			Boseint D	ator To 08/07/20	00			
Receipt Date: From		Receipt Date: From			Receipt D	ate: 10 00/07/20				
			Way Bill #						2	
	Get Details									
Defa	ault D	etails								
			Tracking Ref. Doc #				Remarks			
Tra	king	Reference	e Doc. Details							
~		1 - 10 /	6225 🕨 💓   🕂 🗖 🗗	4	1	🖸 🚥 💷 💷 💼 🛯 🚇 🚍 🛛	All	~	Q	
#	E	CGR #		Receipt Date	Way Bill	#	Part #		Tracking R	
1	E	CGR-00	00001-2006	12/12/2006	1		K614081-1			
2	Е	CGR-00	0002-2006	12/12/2006	1		697039293			
3	E	CGR-00	0003-2006	12/12/2006	1		660714255			
4	E	CGR-00	00004-2006	21/10/2006	1		6828456			
5	E	CGR-00	00004-2006	21/10/2006	1		6828456			
6	E	CGR-00	0004-2006	21/10/2006	1		6828456			
7	E	CGR-00	0005-2006	15/11/2006	1		4122-006009			
8	E	CGR-00	0006-2006	07/11/2006	1		802396-1			
9	E	CGR-00	0007-2006	16/11/2006	1		782701-4			
10	E	CGR-00	0008-2006	26/10/2006	1		6821322			
View	File			View Pack Slip						
					Reco	rd Details				

Figure 2.26 Recording tracking reference document details

2. Select the **Search Criteria** tab to retrieve the tracking reference document details of the customer owned goods received through customer goods receipt.

Refer to the topic "Entering the search criteria" for more details.

3. Select the **Additional Search Criteria** tab to retrieve the tracking reference document details.

Refer to the topic "Entering the additional search criteria" for more details.

4. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve record tracking reference document details.

In the **Default Details** group box:

- 5. Enter the number identifying the tracking reference document pertaining to customer owned items received through a customer goods receipt in the **Tracking Ref Doc #** field.
- 6. Enter any further information pertaining to the customer goods receipt in the **Remarks** field.

In the Tracking Reference Doc. Details multiline:

- 7. Use the **Tracking Ref Doc. Applicable?** drop-down list box list box to specify the applicability of the tracking reference document to the customer goods receipt. Select the option "Yes" if the tracking reference document is applicable to the customer goods receipt. Else select the option "No".
- Note: The system updates the "Tracking Ref. Doc Applicable?" field with "Yes" for records with tracking reference document number.
  - 8. Enter the number identifying the tracking reference document pertaining to customer owned items received through a customer goods receipt in the **Tracking Ref Doc #** field.
- Note: This field must not be left blank when the "Tracking Ref Doc. Applicable?" drop-down list box in the multiline is selected as "Yes".
  - 9. Enter the date of the tracking reference document in the **Tracking Ref Doc Date** field.
- Note: This field is mandatory if the "Tracking Ref. Document #" is specified.
  - 10. Enter the quantity of the part in the CGR that is shipped to the customer in the **Shipped Qty** field.
- Note: Ensure that the value entered here is a positive integer greater than zero.
- For lot controlled or none controlled parts, ensure that a value is entered in this field if the reference document type and reference document number is specified.
  - 11. Enter the type of the reference document, which could be "Pack Slip" or "Others" in the **Ref Doc Type** field in the multiline. The system leaves the field blank by default.
- Note: Data selection in this field is mandatory if the reference document number is specified.
- Note: Ensure that the customer number in the Pack Slip is the same as the customer number in the customer goods receipt number.

- 12. Enter code identifying the reference document that is associated with the customer goods receipt in **Ref Document #** field. Data entry in this field is mandatory if reference document type is specified.
- 13. Enter any further information pertaining to the customer goods receipt in the **Remarks** field.
- 14. Enter any additional details pertaining to the customer goods receipt in the **Other Details** field.
- 15. Enter the name of the reference file associated with the customer goods receipt in the **File Name** field.
- This field must be left blank if reference document type and number are not specified.

To proceed further,

- ▼ Select the View File link to view the file details.
- ▼ Select the View Pack Slip link to view the Pack Slip details.

## Entering the search criteria

Using this tab you can specify the search criteria for tracking reference document details.

- 1. Select the **Search Criteria** tab in the **Record Tracking Ref. Document Details** page. See Figure 2.26.
- 2. In the search criteria tab, enter the **Part #, Part Description, Serial #, Lot #, Customer #, CGR #, Receipt Date: From, Receipt Date: To, Way Bill #.**
- Note: Ensure that the entered CGR number is in "Freezed", "Partially moved" or "Moved" status only.
  - 3. Use the **Display Option** drop-down list box to specify the mode of retrieving the customer goods document details. The system provides the following options:
  - Pending Tracking Ref Doc. # entry Select this option if you want to retrieve all the customer goods receipt documents for which tracking reference document number is not available.
  - Pending for Shipment Select this option if you want to retrieve customer goods receipt details for which tracking reference document number is available but reference document number is not available.
  - Shipped Select this option if you want to retrieve customer goods receipt detail for which both the tracking reference document number and reference document number is available.
All – Select this option if you want to retrieve all the customer goods receipt that fall under either of the above (Pending Tracking Ref. Doc #, Pending for Shipment, Shipped)

The system displays "Pending Tracking Ref Doc. # entry" by default.

 Use the Display Serial / Lot Nos drop-down list box to specify the display of receipts in the customer goods receipt. Select the option "Yes" if the display must be serial / lot number wise and select the option "No" if the display must be partwise.

The system displays "No" by default.

If the Display Option field is not set as "Pending for Tracking Ref. Doc # entry" the system loads this field with the value "Yes" and defaults with the same.

### Entering the additional search criteria

Using this tab you can specify the additional search criteria for tracking reference document details.

1. Select the Additional Search Criteria tab in the Record Tracking Ref. Document Details page. See Figure 2.27.

#### **Service Sales Management**

•	Record T	racking Ref. Document Details			📑 Trailbar 🗸 🏠	🖨 🗟 🖉 🔟				
					Date Format	ld/mm/yyyy				
Sea	rch Criteria	Additional Search Criteria								
		Manufacturer Serial #		Manufac	turer Lot #					
		Tracking Ref. Doc. #			Pack Slip #					
		Tracking Ref Day, Applicable 2	~							
		Tracking Ret Doc. Applicable?	×	MIE						
	Get Details									
Defa	ult Details									
Delu		Tracking Ref. Dec. #			Bomarka					
<b>T</b>		Tracking Keil, Doc #			Remarks					
Trac	king keler	ence boc. betails								
<b>«</b>	1 -	10 / 6225 🕨 🔌 🕂 🗕 🗗 🐇	1		All	9				
#	CG CG	?#	Receipt Date	Way Bill #	Part #	Tracking R				
1		R-000001-2006	12/12/2006	1	K614081-1					
2		R-000002-2006	12/12/2006	1	697039293					
3		R-000003-2006	12/12/2006	1	660714255					
4		R-000004-2006	21/10/2006	1	6828456					
5		R-000004-2006	21/10/2006	1	6828456					
6		R-000004-2006	21/10/2006	1	6828456					
7		R-000005-2006	15/11/2006	1	4122-006009					
8		R-000006-2006	07/11/2006	1	802396-1					
9		R-000007-2006	16/11/2006	1	782701-4					
10		R-000008-2006	26/10/2006	1	6821322					
	<					>				
View F	File		View Pack Slip							
				Record Details						

Figure 2.27 Entering additional search criteria

- 2. In the additional search criteria tab, enter the Manufacturer Serial #, Manufacturer Lot #, Tracking Reference Doc. #, Pack Slip #,
- 3. Use the **Tracking Ref Doc. Applicable ?** drop-down list box to specify the applicability of the tracking reference document to the customer goods receipt. Select the option "Yes" if the tracking reference document is applicable to the customer goods receipt. Select the option "No" if the tracking reference document is not applicable to the customer goods receipt.
- The system updates the "Tracking Ref. Doc Applicable?" field with "Yes" for records with tracking reference document number and with "Tracking Ref. Doc Applicable?" field as "Blank"

- 4. Use the **Material Type** drop-down list box to specify the type of material of the part. The system provides the following options:
- Main Core Indicates the part on which the maintenance work is carried out.
- Regular Indicates the other parts.

The system leaves the field blank by default.

- The system displays only those customer goods receipts that are freezed, partially moved or moved status for which values are either "Main Core" or "Regular".
- Note: Ensure that at least one record is selected in the multiline.
- Note: If Ref.Document Type and Ref. Document # are to be entered for an Item received through CGR and if the Part is Serial controlled or lot Controlled or both, then the system mandates the user to enter the reference document details at the serial or lot number level.
- Note: If the 'Display Serial/Lot Nos' is set as 'No', then on execution of 'Get Details', the system would display the CGR details in the multiline without the serial or lot details information at the part level.
- Note: The reference document type and reference document number can be updated only for those customer goods receipt which are in "Moved" status.
- Note: If "Tracking Ref. Doc Applicable?" is either blank or "Yes" the system updates the "Tracking Ref Document #" in the multiline with the value available in the default details data cluster.
- Note: If "Remarks" in the multiline is blank, the system updates the field with the value available in the "Default Details" group box.

# **Executing service**

The maintenance or service work is carried out on the maintenance object through the execution of visit package, repair order or work scope as applicable.

Preparing Quotation is a document issued by the supplier to quote the price, availability and other terms of the requested parts. You can prepare the quotation against which the customer order is being created.

You can select a customer order and prepare quotation for resources utilized and for the materials.

- 1. Select the **Prepare Quotation** link in the **Customer Order Management** business component. The **Select Customer Order** page appears.
- 2. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 3. Check the box in the multiline to select the customer order for preparing the quotation.
- 4. Select the **Prepare Quote** link at the bottom of the multiline to prepare the quotation for resources utilized. The **Prepare Quotation** page appears. See *Figure 2.28*

#### **Service Sales Management**

■ • Prepare Quotation					式 Trailbar 🕶	☆ 🖨 🛱 🖉 📧
				Date F	ormat dd/mm/yyyy	
Customer Order Details						
Customer Order # C	O-000049-2006			Amendment # 3		
Order Description H	ARTZELL PROP REPAIR			Customer # 1	DO	
Quotation Level Ta	ask Level			Invoice Basis Q	uote	
User Status	<b>v</b>			Quotation Status Q	uoted	
Quote Basis	Standard 💌			Order Currency N	ZD	
Action E	Estimate Cet Details					
Customer Order Value Details PO Details						
Labor Rate / Hr	26.46		Fa	acility Rate / Hr		
Total Quoted Hrs - Routine	1.00		Total Quoted Hr	s - Non routine		
Total Material Price			Total	Resource Price		
Total Misc Cost			Tota	l Facility Hours		
Total Actual Labour Hours			Total Actua	l Facility Hours		
Total Order Value	26.46					
Work Content Details						
No records to display	កាធ				~	٩
# Customer Order Line #	Work Unit #		Work Unit Type	Est	Man Hrs.	Ouoted Labor
1 1						
						>
Quotation Comments						
Prepare Quote		Confirm Quote			Compute Price	e
Prepare Material Quote	View CO Cost Histo	<u>ory</u>				
Record Statistics						
Ouoted by				Quoted Date		
Last Modified By			L	ast Modified Date		

Figure 2.28 Preparing quotation

- 5. Select the User Status of the customer order.
- 6. Use the **Action** drop-down list and select "Estimate" if the estimation is done for work unit execution before confirming the quotation, or "Re-Estimate" if the estimation is done after confirming the quotation, and **Action** to be performed.
- 7. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to retrieve the customer order value details and the work content details.

To proceed carry out the following:

Click the Customer Order Value Details tab to enter the customer order value details.

Refer to the topic "Entering customer order value details" for more details.

▼ Click the **PO Details** tab to view the purchase order details.

Refer to the topic "Viewing purchase order details" for more details.

## Entering customer order value details

Using this tab you can enter the customer order value details for preparing the quotation.

- 1. Select the **Customer Order Value Details** tab in the main page. *See Figure* 2.28.
- 2. Modify the Labor Rate / Hr and Facility Rate / Hr.
- Note: The Labor Rate / Hr and the Facility Rate / Hr are calculated using the following formula:
- Note: Labor Rate / Hr= Total Labor Price / Total Labor Hours
- Note: Facility Rate / Hr = Total Facility Price / Total Facility Hours
  - 3. Modify the Total Quoted Hrs Routine, Total Quoted Hrs Non routine, Total Material Price and Total Resource Price.
- Note: If the "Quotation Level" of the customer order is "Order Level", the system calculates the total resource price as the sum of the Total Facility Price, Total Routine Price and Total Non-Routine Price, where
  - a) Total Facility Price = Facility Rate / Hr \* Total Quoted Facility Hours
  - b) Total Routine price = Labor Rate / Hr \* Total Quoted Routine Hours
  - c) Total Non-Routine price = Labor Rate / Hr \* Total Quoted Non-Routine Hours.
- Note: If the "Quotation Level" of the customer order is "Order-line Level" or "Task Level", the system calculates the total resource price as the sum of the estimated resource price for all the work units across for which "Billable?" is set as "Yes".
- Note: The system performs the resource price calculation only if the "Billable?" is set as "Yes" and Quotation Required" is set as "Yes" in the "Customer Order" business component.
  - 4. Modify the Total Misc Cost, Total Facility Hours and the Total Order Value.

# Viewing purchase order details

Using this tab you can view the purchase order details.

1. Select the **PO Details** tab in the main page to view the purchase order details.. *See Figure 2.29.* 

Prepare Quotation				😹 Trailbar 🗸	≙ 🗟 🐺 🔟
				Date Format dd/mm/yyyy	
Customer Order Details	2026			-	
Customer Order # CO-000049	-2006		Amendr	nent # 3	
Order Description HARTZELL P	KOP REPAIR		Custo	mer # 100	
Quotation Level Task Level			Invoid	Basis Quote	
User Status			Quotation	Status Quoted	
Quote Basis Standard Action Estimate	Get Details		Order Cu	rrency NZD	
Customer Order Value Details PO Details					
Customer PO # 1067			PO	ate 13/12/2006	
Material Value Limit			Resource Value	imit	
Total Routine Hrs - Budgeted			Total Non routine Hrs - Budge	eted	
Total Labour Hrs - Budgeted			Total Order	imit 0.00	
Work Content Details					
< 🖣 [No records to display] 🕨 📎 🕂 — 🗗 🎸	1		50 🔟 🛃 🊹 🗍 🖶 🗚	¥	2
# Customer Order Line #	Work Unit #		Work Unit Type	Est, Man Hrs,	Quoted Labo
					>
Quotation Comments					
Prepare Quote		Confirm Quote		Compute Pric	e
Prepare Material Quote	View CO Cost History				
Record Statistics					
Quoted by			Quote	d Date	
Last Modified By			Last Modifie	d Date	



 The system displays the following fields in the PO Details tab: Customer PO #, PO Date, Material Value Limit, Resource Value Limit, Total Routine Hrs – Budgeted, Total Non routine Hrs – Budgeted, Total Labour Hrs – Budgeted and Total Order Limit.

You will return to the **Prepare Quotation** page.

In the Work Content Details multiline,

- 3. Enter the Quoted Labour Hrs, Quoted Facility Hrs, Labor Rate / Hr, Facility Rate / Hr, Est. Resource Price, Est. Material Price: Flat and Est. Misc Price.
- Note: If the "Resource Pricing Method" is set as "As Entered" and the "Quotation Level" is set as "Order-line Level" in the "Customer Order" business component, the system performs the following:
  - a) Considers the Std. Labor Rate / Hr and Std. Facility Rate / Hr defined in the "Customer Order" business component, as the Labor Rate / Hr and the Facility Rate / Hr for each customer order line number.
  - b) Calculates the quoted labor hours as the sum of the labor hours reported across all the work units and customer order line number.
  - c) Calculates the quoted facility hours as the sum of the facility hours reported across all the work units and customer order line number.
- Note: If the "Resource Pricing Method" is set as "As Entered" and the "Quotation Level" is set as "Task Level" in the "Customer Order" business component, the system performs the following:
  - a) Considers the Std. Labor Rate / Hr and Std. Facility Rate / Hr defined in the "Customer Order" business component, as the Labor Rate / Hr and the Facility Rate / Hr for each customer order line number, Work Unit # and Work Unit Type.
  - b) Calculates the quoted labor hours as the sum of the labor hours reported across each customer order line number, work unit number, work unit type.
  - c) Calculates the quoted facility hours as the sum of the facility hours reported across each customer order line number, work unit number, work unit type.
- Note: The system calculates the estimated resource price based on the following formula:

Est. Resource Price = (Facility Rate / Hr \* Quoted Facility Hours) + (Labor Rate / Hr \* Quoted Labor Hours)

- Note: The system performs the resource price calculation only if the "Billable?" is set as "Yes" and Quotation Required" is set as "Yes" in the "Customer Order" business component.
  - 4. Set the **Billable?** Drop-down list box to "Yes" or "No" to indicate whether the work unit execution must be billed or not.

- 5. Click the **Prepare Quote** pushbutton to prepare the quotation for resources.
- Note: If the Quotation Level is "Order Level", "Workunit Level" or "Task Level", the system performs the following on clicking the "Prepare Quote" pushbutton:
  - a) Updates the Quotation Status for each work unit from "Pending Material and Labor Estimates" to "Pending Material Estimates".
  - b) Updates the Quotation status from "Pending Labor Estimates" as "Pending Confirmation"
  - 6. Click the **Confirm Quote** pushbutton to confirm the quotation.
- Note: The system updates the Quotation Status for each workunit as "Confirmed" and updates the order level quotation to "Quoted", on clicking the "Confirm Quote" pushbutton.
  - 7. Click the **Compute Price** pushbutton to compute the price details.
- Note: For the selected customer order number, if the "Resource Pricing Method" is set as "Service Price List" in the "Customer Order" business component, the system calculates the resource price using the pricing logic defined in the "Pricing Settings" business component.
- Note: For the selected customer order number, if the "Material Pricing Method" is set as "Service Price List" or "Part Price List" in the "Customer Order" business component, the system calculates the material price using the pricing logic defined in the "Pricing Settings" business component.

To proceed further,

- Select the Prepare Material Quote link to prepare the material quotation.
- Select the **View CO Cost History** link to view the customer order cost history.

# Preparing Material Quotation

You can prepare quotation for the materials utilized for the work unit execution.

- Select the Prepare Material Quote link in the Select Customer Order page or Prepare Quotation page. The Prepare Material Quotation page appears. See Figure 2.30.
- 2. Select the User Status of the customer order.
- 3. Use the **Action** drop-down list and select "Estimate" if the estimation is done for work unit execution before confirming the quotation, or "Re-Estimate" if the estimation is done for work unit execution after confirming the quotation.

•	Prep	are Material Quotation				式 Trailbar 🔹	≙ 🗠	🛤 🌄 🌆
					Date Format do	l/mm/yyyy		
Cus	tomer	Order Details						
		Customer Order #	CO-000026-2006		Amendment # 9			
		Order Description	T56 AFTERBODY OVERHAUL IAW NZAP 61	(	Order Currency NZD			
		Quotation Status	Quoted		Customer # 416			
		Quote Basis	Standard 💙		User Status 🔤 💌			
		Action	Estimate Get Details					
Par	t Requ	irement Details						
<b>«</b>	<ul> <li>N</li> </ul>	No records to display] 🕩 💓 🕂		1	al Al	~		Q
#	F	Part #	Description		Qty	Con	sumed Qty	
1	E							
		1						N
		Quatation Comments						
		Quotation Commente						
		Prepare M	aterial Quote		Confirm Material Quot	<b>e</b>		
Gene	erate Ma	aterial Pricing Report						
Rec	ord Sta	atistics						
		Quoted by	,		Quoted Date			
		Last Modified By	,	Las	t Modified Date			

Figure 2.30 Preparing material quotation

In the Part Requirement Details multiline,

- Enter the Unit Price Order Currency indicating the unit price of the part in terms of customer order currency.
- 5. Enter the **Embodiment Fee** specifying the fee charged by the service provider for holding parts supplied by the customer.
- 6. Enter the **Quotation Comments**, if any, below the multiline.
- 7. Click the **Prepare Material Quote pushbutton** to prepare the material quotation.
- Note: Based on the Quotation Level specified, the system updates the Quotation Status for each customer order line number of task number, from "Pending Material Estimates", "Pending Material and Labor Estimates", "Confirmed" or "Quoted" to "Pending Material Confirmation".

- 8. Click the **Confirm Material Quote** pushbutton to confirm the material quotation.
- Note: Based on the Quotation Level specified, the system updates the Quotation Status for each customer order line number of task number, from "Pending Material Confirmation" to "Pending Confirmation", if the labor estimates have been quoted. Else the system updates the Quotation Status as "Pending Labor Estimates".

To proceed further,

 Select the Generate Material Pricing Report link to generate the material pricing report.

# Authorizing additional work scope

After a customer order is processed into execution documents, it is allocated to the respective work centers for execution. During the work progress, conditions may arise that demand the addition of work units to the execution document. These work units can be termed as non-routines and must be authorized if "Approval of Additional Work Scope" is set as "Required" in the "Create Customer Order" page.

The work scope can be carried out only after approval.

- 1. Select the **Approve Additional Work Scope** link under **Customer Order** business component. The Select Customer Order page appears.
- 2. Enter the Customer Order # for which you wish to approve additional work scope and select the Approve Additional Work Scope link. Else, provide filter criteria to search for customer order, and click the Search pushbutton. Click the hyperlinked Customer Order # in the multiline to authorize additional work scope. The Authorize Additional Work Scope page appears.
- 3. Select the work unit in the multiline and click the **Approve Additional Work Scope** pushbutton to approve additional work scope.
- 4. Select the work unit in the multiline and click the **Reject Additional Work Scope** pushbutton to reject the work scope.
- 5. Check the box in the **Select All** field to select all work units listed in the multiline for approval or rejection.
- 6. Click the **Approve Additional Work Scope** or **Reject Additional Work Scope** pushbutton.

# **Reporting execution details**

The customer order is processed and a visit package, work scope and repair order is generated to carry out the maintenance work. In this activity, you can review the work execution details.

- 1. Select the **Review Work Execution** link under **Customer Order Management** business component. The **Select Customer Order** page appears.
- 2. Provide **Search Criteria** to search for the customer order and click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 3. Select the **Customer Order #** in the multiline and select the **Review Work Execution** link below the multiline. The **Review Work Execution** page appears. *See Figure 2.31.*

Rev	iew Work Execution		😂 Trailbar 🗸   🏡 🚔 羄	105
			Date Format DD/MM/YYYY	
Custome	r Order Details			
	Customer Order # 549246		Amendment # 0	
	Order Description 549246	43D50 PROP REPAIR/OVERHAUL E	Execution Status Inprogress	
	Customer # 1845		Customer Name UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORP.,	
	Order Date 17/11/2	003	Order Applicability Components	
	Aircraft Reg #		Order Category Customer Job	
	Part # 43D50-6	51	Serial # 231871	
Execution	n Details			
« •	1 -1/1 🕨 💓 🖃		🔁 💌 💷 🖬 👔 📳 📮 🗛	P
# 🗉	Execution Doc. Type	Exec Document #	Description	
1 🗉	Work Scope	WS-000021-2006		
				>
CO Porta	Details			
	Promised Delivery Date 30/12/2	006		
	Expected Delivery Date		% Completion	
	Portal Comments		is completion	
	r or tar conmertis			
Review Visi	<u>it Package</u> Jonent Work Order	View Work Scope View CWO Execution Information	n <u>View Repair Order</u>	

Figure 2.31 Reviewing work execution details

- 4. Select the **Exec Document Type** in the multiline.
- 5. Select the **Review Visit Package** link below the multiline to view the visit package execution.

- 6. Select the **View Work Scope** link below the multiline to view the work scope execution.
- 7. Select the **View Repair Order** link below the multiline to view the repair order execution.
- 8. Select the **View Component Work Order** link below the multiline to view the component work order execution.

# Maintaining Correspondence details

This activity allows you to maintain the customer correspondence details for a customer order. You can directly enter the customer order number and the amendment number or, you can perform a search based on the customer order number, amendment number, order description, customer number, order category, aircraft registration number, part number, serial number, order applicability and the order status.

- 1. Select the Maintain Customer Correspondence link under the Customer Order Management business component. The Select Customer Order page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Customer #** and the **Amendment #** and click the **Maintain Customer Correspondence** link provided alongside.

Or

- 3. Provide the **Search Criteria** to search for the customer order, which needs to be maintained. Click the **Search** pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Customer Order #** in the multiline. The **Maintain Customer Correspondence** page appears. *See Figure 2.32*.

■ * Ma	aintain Customer Corres	pondence		🔤 Trailbar 🔻 🔝 🗎	🛱 🍋 💯
			Date For	mat dd/mm/yyyy	
Custom	er Order Details				
	Custom	er Order # CO-004978-2008	Amendment # 0	<b>~</b>	
	1	Description CO Piece Part 577793	Status Pro	cessed	
	Order A	Applicability Others	Promised Delivery Date 08/	/08/2008	
		Priority Normal	Order Currency NZI	þ	
Custom	er Details				
	c	Customer # 416	Customer Name RN	ZAF	
		Address P O BOX 84 042			
Corresp	ondence Details				
« •	1 -1/1 🕨 💓 🕂 [	- 6 4	🔀 😰 ma 🔤 💷 🔳 🚛 🛏 🗛	×	Q
# ī	Date	Customer Remarks	Operator Remark	s	
1 7	09/07/2009				
2 7					
	<				>
			Maintain Customer Correspondence		
Record	Statistics				
ACCOLU.	Last	Indified by DMUSER	Last Modified Date 09/	07/2008	

Figure 2.32 Maintaining customer correspondence

- 5. Specify the **Amendment #** of the customer order in the **Customer Order** Details group box.
- 6. Enter the **Date** on which the correspondence details are recorded.
- 7. Enter any additional remarks provided by the customer with respect to the customer order, in the **Customer Remarks** field.
- 8. Enter any additional remarks provided by the operator with respect to the customer order, in the **Operator Remarks** field.
- 9. Enter **Special Instructions** pertaining to the customer order.
- Note: Ensure that "Customer Remarks", "Operator Remarks" or "Special Remarks" field is entered, if the "Date" is specified.
  - 10. Enter the **Contact Person** and the **Phone** number of the contact person.
  - 11. Use the **Correspondence Category** drop-down list box to specify the category of the customer correspondence.
  - 12. Use the **Correspondence Status** drop-down list box to specify the status of the customer correspondence.
  - Enter the Reference regarding the customer correspondence details and the name of the employee who attended the queries of the customer in the Attended By field.
  - 14. Click the **Maintain Customer Correspondence** pushbutton to record the customer correspondence details for the customer order.
- Note: The system throws an error message if any other concurrent user simultaneously tries to modify the record.
- Note: You can record the correspondence details for a customer order only if the customer order is in "Fresh", "Under Amendment", "Confirmed", "Authorized" or "Closed" status.
- Note: For customer orders in "Processed" and / or "Completed" status, the system checks whether the customer order document has maximum amendment number with the amendment status as "Under Amendment". If yes, then the system allows you to record the correspondence information against the amendment number. Otherwise, the system throws an error message on clicking the pushbutton.

# Initiating invoice processing

This activity allows you to update the invoice details for the customer orders raised against component work orders, hangar work orders and repair orders. On updating the invoice details, the customer order can be released for invoice processing. The invoice processing is carried out only for those work orders/ repair orders that are in "Closed" status. The system updates the status of the customer order to "Released" once the customer order is released for invoice processing.

The system updates the invoice status of the customer order from "Pending Invoice" to "Partially Invoiced" and maintains the status as "Partially Invoiced" unless invoicing stage is set as "Final".

This activity allows you to carry out invoice processing for parts, by updating the invoice price details for the parts consumed while executing a task or work order (Component work order or Hangar work order). You can also process the TCD details for invoice, using "Customer Order TCD" and "Additional Charges" tab pages. The additional charges reported against the work order can also be modified though the "Edit Additional Charges" page, if required.

This activity also enables you to stop the invoicing process of a customer order. Consequently, the system sets the status of the Release ID of the customer order to "Cancelled".

# Invoice processing for customer order

- 1. Select the **Initiate Invoice** link under the **Customer Order Management** business component. The **Select Customer Order** page appears.
- 2. Provide the search details in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton. The system displays the customer order details in the **Search Results** multiline.
- 3. Select the hyperlinked **Customer Order #** in the multiline. The **Initiate Invoice Processing** page appears. *See Figure 2.33*.
- 4. Specify the **User Status** of the customer order in the **Customer Order Details** group box.
- 5. Specify the **Order Status** of the customer order. The system provides the options "Processed" and "Completed".
- Note: Ensure that this field is set to "Completed", if the invoicing stage of the customer order is set as "Final".
  - 6. Use the **Invoicing Stage** drop-down list box to specify the processing stage of the invoice. The system provides the options "Interim" and "Final".

#### Service Sales Management

• I	nitiate Invoice Proce	ssing				式 Trailbar 🕶	☆ 🖨 🛱	<b>6</b>
					Date F	ormat dd/mm/yyyy		
Custor	mer Order Details							-
		ustomer Order #	<u>519670</u>		Release #			
		Amendment #	72		Release Status			
	-	Order Description	519670 BLADES REOLIRE STRAT	SHTENING	Invoice Status P	endina Invoice		
		Customer #	2048		Aircraft Pag #			
	Invoice	Dressesing Lovel	Order Level		Autoart Reg #	ask Level		
	Invoice	Processing Level	Actuals		Quotation Level -			
		Invoice Basis	Actuals .		User Status	70		
		Order Currency	050		Base Currency N	20		
		Exchange Rate	1.71233000		Priority N	ormai		
		Order Status	Completed Y		Invoicing Stage	interim 💌		
	Bi	II To Customer #	2048 💌		Bill To Address	1 🕶		
				Get Invoiceable Tasks				
Orde	er Summary: Till Date	Work Content	Details Order Statistics & Port	al Details				
Billin	g Summary							
Initiate Invoke Processing      Invoke Proc								
	Total Qu	uoted Facility Hrs	;		Quoted Facility Rate / Hr			
	A	ctual Hrs: Normal	I		Actual Hrs: Overtime			
	Bil	lable Hrs: Normal	I		Billable Hrs: Overtime			
	Invoice	able Hrs • Normal	0	00	Invoiceable Hrs : Overtime			
	Involcer	abie Hist Normal			Invoiced Hray Overtime			
		Diceu Hist Normai	I		Invoiced Hist Over time			
Billin	g Details							
<u>«</u>	<ul> <li>1 - 10 / 11</li> </ul>	» + -		TA THE RLS COU TRY		~		ρ
#	Billing Head	Ac	tual Cost	Quoted Price	Actual Price	Invoiced Amount		Invo
1	Labour							
2	Material							
4	Renair Expenses							
5	Ext. Services							
6	Addln Charges							
7	Miscellaneous							
8	Тах							
9	Charges							
10	Discounts							
	<					)		>
	Invoic	ing Comments	5					
	Reproce	- essing Comments						
	(tep) out	cooling connerto	, ,					
Initiate	Invoice Processing for Par	<u>'ts</u>	Process TCD fo	or Invoice				
Updat	e Invoice Processing		Release for Invo	ice	Cancel Release		Comp	oute Price
View Re	esource Wise Breakup		View Invoice		Amend Customer	<u>Order</u>		
Recon	d Statistics							
		Invoiced by			Invoiced Date			
		Last Modified by			Last Modified Date			
		22.5ct iodined by			cust mounied bate			



- 7. Use the **Bill to Customer** drop-down list box, to select the entity to be invoiced on behalf of the customer.
- 8. Use the **Bill to Address** drop-down list box, to select the address ID of the specified Bill to Customer #.
- 9. Click the **Get Invoiceable Tasks** pushbutton to retrieve the invoice details for the customer order.
- 10. Select the **Order Summary: Till Date** tab update the billing details for the customer order.

Refer to the topic "Entering billing details for customer order" for more details.

11. Select the **Work Content Details** tab to update the work content details.

Refer to the topic "Entering work content details" for more details.

12. Select the **Order Statistics & Portal Details** tab to update the customer order portal details.

Refer to the topic "Entering order statistics and portal details" for more details.

- 13. Click the **Update Invoice Processing** pushbutton to update the invoice details for the customer order.
- Note: You cannot modify the invoicing details in the "Work Content Details" multiline in the "Work Content Details" tab page, if the invoice processing level is set to "Order Level".
- Note: You cannot modify the invoicing details against the billing summary in the "Order Summary: Till Date" tab page, if the invoice processing level is set to "Task Level".
  - 14. Click the **Release For Invoice** pushbutton to release the customer order for invoice processing.
- Note: The system updates the status of the customer order to "Released".
- Note: You cannot modify the invoicing details in the "Work Content Details" multiline in the "Work Content Details" tab page, if the invoice processing level is set to "Order Level" or if the display option is set to "Order Line Level".
  - 15. Click the **Cancel Release** pushbutton to cancel the release ID of the of the customer order.
- Note: On cancellation, the system sets the Release Status of the customer order invoice to "Cancelled". You can cancel an invoice only if its Release Status is "Returned" or "Fresh".

- 16. Click the **Compute Price** pushbutton, to compute the pricing details for the customer order invoice.
- Note: The system performs price computation, only for those releases generated for the customer order that are in "Fresh" status.

To proceed carry out the following:

- Select the Initiate Invoice Processing for Parts link provided at the bottom of the page to initiate the invoice processing for parts.
- ▼ Select the **Process TCD for Invoice** link provided at the bottom of the page to process the TCD details for the invoice.
- ▼ Select the View Resource Wise Breakup link provided at the bottom of the page to view the priced details with respect the resource.
- ▼ Select the **View Invoice** link provided at the bottom of the page to view the invoice details for the customer order.
- Select the Amend Customer Order link provided at the bottom of the page to amend the customer.

## Entering billing details for customer order

Using this tab you can updated the billing details for the customer order.

- 1. Select the **Order Summary: Till Date** tab in the **Initiate Invoice Processing** page. See Figure 2.33.
- 2. Enter the normal working hours reported by the employee for which the invoice is applicable in the **Invoiceable Hrs: Normal** field in the **Billing Summary** group box.
- Note: Ensure that the value entered here is positive and greater than zero.
  - 3. Enter the overtime hours reported by the employee for which the invoice is applicable in the **Invoiceable Hrs: Overtime** field.
  - 4. Enter the Invoiceable Amount in the **Billing Details** multiline.
  - 5. Enter any additional comments pertaining to the invoice details in the **Invoicing Comments** field.'

## Entering work content details

- 1. Select the **Work Content Details** tab in the **Initiate Invoice Processing** page. *See Figure 2.34.*
- Use the Billable? drop-down list box and select the option "Yes" in the Default Details group box, if the work unit execution is billable. Else select the option "No".
- 3. Enter any **Default Comments** pertaining to the invoice raised against the customer order.
- 4. Use the **Display Option** drop-down list box in the **Work Content Details** multiline to specify the display option of the quotation level details. The system provides the following options:
  - "Order Line Level" Select this option to specify if the quotation details have to displayed at the customer order line level.
  - "Task Level" Select this option if the quotation details have to displayed at the task level.
  - "Resource Level" Select this option if the details have to displayed at the resource level.
- 5. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton provided alongside to retrieve the work content details.

•	Initiate Invoice Processing	式 Trailbar 🕶	<u> </u>	a 🚛 🔟
	Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy		
Custo	tomer Order Details			
	Customer Order # 519670 Release #			
	Amendment # 72 Release Status			
	Order Description 519670 BLADES REQUIRE STRAIGHTENING Invoice Status Pending	Invoice		
	Customer # 2048 Aircraft Reg #			
	Invoice Processing Level Order Level Quotation Level Task Lev	/el		
	Invoice Basis Actuals User Status			
	Order Currency USD Base Currency NZD			
	Exchange Rate 1.71233000 Priority Normal			
	Order Status Completed 🔽 Invoicing Stage Interim	~		
	Bill To Customer # 2048 💌 Bill To Address 1 💌			
	Get Invoiceable Tasks			
Ord	der Summary: Till Date Work Content Details Order Statistics & Portal Details			
Def	fault Details			
	Billable? Yes 💌			
	Default Comments			
Wo	ork Content Details			
	Display Option Resource Level Get Details			
<	] 🜒 [No records to display] 🕨 »   + - 🗗 🎉 🛛 🛛 🛐 😰 💷 💷 🚛   🚇 🚚 🗛	~		P
#	Customer Order Line # Work Unit # Work Unit Description			
1	<b>a</b>			
				>
View	w CWO Execution Details View Hangar Execution Details View Repair Order			

Figure 2.34 Updating work content details

- 6. Enter the reported hours for which invoice is applicable in the **Invoiceable Hrs** field in the multiline.
- 7. Use the **Billable?** drop-down list box to specify whether the work unit execution is billable or not.

- 8. Any additional comments pertaining to the invoice in the **Invoicing Comments** field. Entry in this field is mandatory, if the invoice processing level is set to "Order Level".
- 9. Enter the **Billable Labor Price**.
- 10. The facility price that is billable in the Billable Facility Price field
- Note: Ensure that the value entered in the "Invoiceable Hrs", "Billable Labor Price" and the "Billable Facility Price" field is positive and greater than or equal to zero.
- Note: if the invoice processing level is "Task Level", ensure that any one of either "Default Comments" or "Invoicing Comments" field is entered against each line number in the multiline.
  - 11. Enter the billable material cost that is incurred for executing the work unit in the **Billable Misc Cost** field.

### Entering order statistics and portal details

- 1. Select the Order Statistics & Portal Details tab in the Initiate Invoice Processing page. See Figure 2.35.
- 2. The system displays the No of Planned Tasks, No of Invoiced Tasks, No of Execution Documents Generated, Order Within Budget?, No of Unplanned Tasks, No of Pending Invoiced Tasks, No of Execution Documents Closed, Schedule Variation? In the Order Statistics group box.
- 3. Enter the **Expected Delivery Date** of the serviced maintenance object to the customer, in the **Customer Portal Details** group box.

#### Service Sales Management

Tinitiate Invoice P	rocessing				<b>⊒\$</b> Trailbar <del>•</del>	1 🏠 🚔 🎜 📧
					Date Format dd/mm/yyyy	
Customer Order Details						
	Customer Order # 51	<u>9670</u>			Release #	
	Amendment # 72				Release Status	
	Order Description 519	670 BLADES REQUIRE STRATGHT	INING		Toyoice Status Pending Invoice	
	Custemar # 20	48			Aircraft Bog #	
Terre	customer #	er Level			Airciaic Reg #	
11100	Tensio Desis Act	uale				
	Invoice Basis Act	,			User Status	
	Order Currency USL	,			Base Currency N2D	
	Exchange Rate 1.7	1233000			Priority Normal	
	Order Status Co	mpleted ¥		1	Invoicing Stage Interim	
	Bill To Customer # 20	48 💌			Bill To Address 1	
			Get Invoiceable Tasks			
Order Summary: Till Date	Work Content Details	Order Statistics & Portal D	etails			
Order Statistics						A 1
	No of Planned Tasks $^{1}$					
,	No of Invoiced Tasks <sup>0</sup>					
No of Execution Do	ocuments Generated 1					
c	Order Within Budget? With	hin Budget				
No	of Unplanned Tasks <sup>3</sup>					
No of Per	nding Invoiced Tasks 4					
No of Executio	on Documents Closed <sup>0</sup>					
	Schedule Variation? Wit	hin Sch.				
Customer Portal Details	5					
Pro	omised Delivery Date <sup>28/</sup>	08/2012				
Exp	pected Delivery Date					
	Portal Comments					~
initiate Invoice Processing for	<u>r Parts</u>	Process TCD for In	voice			
Update Invoice Processing	]	Release for Invoice	)	Cancel Release		Compute Price
/iew Resource Wise Breakup		View Invoice			Amend Customer Order	
Record Statistics						
	Invoiced by				Invoiced Date	
	Last Modified by			Lasi	t Modified Date	



- 4. Enter any additional comments pertaining to the portal details of the customer order in the **Portal Details** field.
- 5. Enter the percentage of completion of the work order in the % Completion field.
- 6. Click the **Update Portal Details** pushbutton to update the portal details of the customer order.

## ■ Invoice processing for parts

This activity allows you to perform invoice processing for parts that are consumed while executing a task or work order (Component work order or Hangar work order).

1. Select the **Initiate Invoice Processing for Parts** link provided at the bottom of the **Initiate Invoice Processing** page. The **Initiate Invoice Processing for Parts** page appears. *See Figure 2.36*.

•	Initi	ate Invoice Processing for Parts			🛛 💐 Trailbar 🕶 🛛 🏠 🚍	1 🛤 두 🚾
				Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy	
Cust	omer	Order Details				
		Customer Order # 684319		Release # 1		
		Amendment # 2		Release Status Fresh		
		Order Description 684319 IR(	QUOIS GROUP & PHASE C SE 🖉	Quotation Level		
		Invoice Processing Level Order Leve	C0887	User Status		
		Invoice Basis Actuals		Exchange Rate 1.00000	000	
		Base Currency NZD		Order Currency NZD		
Daut	Conc	upportion Dotails		order earrency		
Fait	COIIS					
		Display Option  Part-Status Level	Get Invoiceable Parts			
<b>«</b>	•	1 - 9 / 104 🕨 💓 🕂 🗕 🗗 🎸	🔂 📘 MIN (845 (50) 181	💵 🏭 🗐 🗐 🗛	*	Q
#	E	Part #	Part Description		Quoted Qty	UC
1	Е	1-080-026-01	Gasket			EA
2		1-080-083-02	Cup,Lock,Accessory			EA
3		1-080-275-02	Spacer,Plate			EA
4		1-300-232-02	Seal,Plain,Encased			EA
5		120-059-1	Shim,T/Boom Bearers			EA
6		1629686	Tape,Masking,24mm			RC
7		1743545	Filter,Element			EA
8		2-40-8003-14	Blade, Windscreen			EA
9		205-030-407-317S	Seal			EA
		<				>
		Invoicing Comments				
					_	
		Update Invoice Price	J	Confirm Invoice Price	ce	
Gene	rate M	aterial Pricing Report				
Reco	ord St	atistics				
		Invoiced by 0675		Invoiced Date 24/04/20	007	
		Last Modified By 0675		Last Modified Date 07/06/20	007	
		,				

Figure 2.36 Invoice processing for parts

- 2. The system displays the Customer Order #, Release #, Amendment #, Release Status, Order Description, Quotation Level, Invoice Processing Level, Invoice Basis, Exchange Rate, Base Currency and Order Currency in the Customer Order Details group box.
- 3. Specify the **User Status** of the customer order.
- 4. Click the **Get Invoiceable Parts** pushbutton to retrieve the part details in the **Part Consumption Details** multiline.
- 5. Specify the **Display Option** of the part consumption details whether "Part Status Level" or "Part Consumption Status Level", above the **Part Consumption Details** multiline
- 6. The system displays the Part #, Part Description, Quoted Qty, UOM, Consumed Qty, Component #, Condition, Stock Status, Billable Quantity, Quoted Unit Price, Quoted Material Price, Actual Issue Cost, Actual Unit Price, Billable Material Price, Margin %, Part Price List and Revision # in the Part Consumption Details multiline.
- 7. Enter the amount to be invoiced in the **To Be Invoice Amount** field in the multiline.
- 8. Enter the **Invoicing Comments**.
- 9. Click the **Update Invoice Price** pushbutton to update the invoice price details for the part.
- Note: The system throws an error message, if any concurrent user tries to modify the details in the multiline.
- Note: The system changes the invoice status from "Pending Material Invoice" to "Pending Material Invoice Confirmation".
  - 10. Click the **Confirm Invoice Price** pushbutton to confirm the invoice price details for the part.
- Note: The system updates the invoice status from "Pending Material Invoice Confirmation" to "Pending Release".

# Processing TCD for invoice

This page allows you to process the TCD details for invoice raised against the customer order. The TCD details and the additional charges for executing the customer order can be updated using the tab pages.

- 1. Select the **Process TCD for Invoice** link under the **Initiate Invoice Processing** page. See Figure 2.37.
- The system displays the Customer Order #, Order Description, Amendment
   #, Customer Status, Delivery Area, Order Currency and Release # in the Customer Details group box.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton to get the TCD details in the multiline.

•	Process TCD for In	ivoicing				💐 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	🛱 🗧 🔟
Custo	omer Details						<b>_</b>
Custom	er Order #			Order Descrip	otion		
Amendr	ment #			Customer Sta	itus		
Delivery	y Area			Order Curren	cy		
Release	e #						
				Get Details			
Cus	tomer Order TCD	Additional Charges	]				
Applic	table On						
TCD	Details						
<	1 - 5 / 5	» + - P .	3	🔂 💽 MM 215 650	🔟 🛃 💼 🗐 🗐 🖪	~	P
#	न TCD # 🭳		TCD Description		TCD Variant #	TCD Variant Description	
1	E						
2							
3							
4							
5							
	<		)				>
				Process TCD			

Figure 2.37 Invoice processing for parts

4. Select the **Customer Order TCD** tab in the main page.

Refer to the topic "Entering customer order TCD details" for more details.

5. Select the **Additional Charges** tab in the main page.

Refer to the topic "Updating additional charges for invoice" for more details.

- 6. Click the Process TCD pushbutton to update the TCD details for the invoice.
- Note: You cannot modify the TCD rate if the TCD basis is percentage.
- Note: The system ensures that the record existing in the multine has a valid TCD #-TCD Variant # combination as defined in the "Taxes, Charges and Discounts" business component. Also, the system ensures that the record does not get duplicated in the multiline.

## Entering customer order TCD details

Using this tab you can record the TCD details for the invoice raised against the customer order.

- 1. Select the **Customer Order TCD** tab in the **Process TCD for Invoice** page. See *Figure 2.37*.
- 2. Use the **Applicable On** drop-down list box to indicate if the TCD computation is applicable on "Material', "Resource" or "Order Level".
- 3. Enter the code identifying the tax, charge or discount in the **TCD #** field in the **TCD Details** multiline.
- 4. Enter the number identifying the variant of the TCD in the **TCD Variant #** field. Entry in this field is mandatory, if a value is entered in the "TCD #" field.
- 5. Specify the **Currency** in which in which the TCD details for the invoice must be updated and the **TCD Rate**.
- 6. Use the **Billable?** drop-down list box and the select the option "Yes", if the work unit execution is billable. Else select the option "No".
- 7. The code identifying the supplier to whom the payment is to be made in the **Pay To Supplier** field.

# Updating additional charges for invoice

Using this tab you can update the additional charges for invoice against the customer order.

1. Select the Additional Charges tab in the Process TCD for Invoice page. See *Figure 2.38.* 

<b>•</b> • •	Proces	ss TCD fo	r Invoicing				😹 Trailbar ▾	🏡 📑 📮 🖲
Custo	mer D	etails						
Custome	er Orde	er#			Order Description			
Amendm	nent #				Customer Status			
Delivery	elivery Area		Order Currency					
Release	#							
					Get Details			
Custo	omer O	rder TCD	Additional Charges					
			, isolational charges					
TCD	Detail	s						<b></b>
<b>«</b>	•	1 -6/6	🕨 🔊   🕂 🗖 🗗	]	🔂 [ 📶 💷 💷 💷	🛃 🚹   📮 🚍   All	*	9
#	E	TCD # 🤇		TCD Description		TCD Variant #	TCD Variant Description	7
1	E							
2								
3								
4								
5								
6								
		<						>
					Deserver TOD			

Figure 2.38 Invoice processing for parts

- 2. The code identifying the tax, charge or discount in the **TCD #** field.
- 3. The number identifying the variant of the TCD in the **TCD Variant #** field. Entry in this field is mandatory, if a value is entered in the "TCD #" field.
- 4. Enter the **TCD Rate** and the **Markup Factor** based on which the TCD amount is calculated.
- Note: Ensure that the value entered in the "TCD Rate" and the "Markup Factor fields are greater than or equal to zero.
  - 5. Specify the **Cost Center** that has been mapped to the TCD account.
  - 6. Use the **Account Usage** drop-down list box to select the usage of account.
  - 7. Enter the code identifying the supplier to whom the payment is to be made in the **Pay To Supplier** field.
  - 8. Enter any additional comments pertaining to the TCD details in the **Remarks** field.

# **Editing additional charges**

Using this page you can modify the details of the additional charges that are reported while executing a customer order.

1. Select the Edit Additional Charges link in the Amend Customer Order page. The Edit Additional Charges page appears. *See Figure 2.39*.

Edit Additional Charges		😂 Trailbar 🗸 🏠 📑	a 🔟 🧉
Customer Details			
Customer Order # 612027		Order Description 612027 PROPELLER OVERHAUL	
Amendment # 2		Customer Status Active	
Order Currency NZD			
	Get Details		
TCD Details			
< < 1 -1/1 >> + = P &	🔁 💽 📖 255 557 🎩		Q
# TCD Description	TCD Variant #	TCD Variant Description	
1 7	AST01		
2 同			
			>
	Edit Charges		

Figure 2.39 Modifying additional charges

- The system displays the Customer Order #, Order Description, Amendment #, Customer Status and Order Currency fields in the Customer Details group box.
- 3. Click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
- 4. Enter the TCD # and the TCD Variant # in the TCD Details multiline.
- Note: Ensure that a value is entered in the TCD Variant # field, if there exists a value in the "TCD #" field.
  - 5. Enter the **TCD Rate** and the **Markup Factor** based on which the TCD amount is computed.
  - 6. Specify the **Cost Center** mapped to the TCD account.
  - 7. Use the Account Usage drop-down list box to specify the usage of account.
  - 8. Enter the code identifying the supplier to whom the payment is to be made in the **Pay To Supplier #** field.

- 9. Click the Edit Charges pushbutton to modify the additional charges.
- Note: The system ensures that the record existing in the multiline has a valid TCD #-TCD Variant # combination as defined in the "Taxes, Charges and Discounts" business component. Also, the system ensures that the record does not get duplicated in the multiline.
- Note: The system throws an error message if any concurrent user tries to modify the details in the multiline.

# Generating pack slip for goods owned by the customer

Pack slip is a delivery notice sent to the customer along with the shipment of goods or parts. A pack slip is created in the following circumstances:

- For customer goods: The customer goods pack slip is created when you wish to return the core or parts belonging to the customer. This type of pack slip allows you to return the customer-owned goods or parts that are lying in excess in the maintenance shop.
- Against a customer order: A customer order communicates the details of the service to be performed on an aviation asset. It contains details such as the work units, sub-component information, customer-supplied part details, discrepancies and maintenance object details. After the service is performed, a pack slip can be created against the customer order, to return the serviced goods to the customer.
- For sale of parts: You can create a pack slip, to ship parts that are directly sold to the customer. You can sell parts that are in the maintenance shop, to any customer. The part sale pack slip refers to the delivery notice, which is sent to the customer along with the shipment.

The **Service Sales Management** sub process addresses the *Pack Slip for Customer Goods* and *Customer Order Based Pack Slip* activities of the **Pack Slip** business component.

Refer to the topic **Generating Pack Slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for details on creating part sales pack slip.

# Generating pack slip for customer goods

You can create the pack slip for returning the core or the goods belonging to the customer. You can return the customer-owned goods or parts that are lying in excess in the maintenance shop or the storage location.

- 1. Select the Create Pack Slip for Customer Goods link in the Pack Slip business component. The Select Customer # page appears. See Figure 2.40.
- 2. Enter the **Customer #** to specify the customer who owns the part in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Create Pack Slip** link provided along side.

Or

- 3. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Customer #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Create Pack Slip** page appears.

#### 5. Refer to the topic **Creating pack slip** under **Generating Pack Slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for further details on creating the pack slip.

<b>•</b>	Select Customer #	😂 Trailbar 🕶   🏡 🚔 🌄 📧 🤅
Direct	Entry	
	Customer #	ate Pack Slip
Searc	h Criteria	
	Customer #	Customer Name
		Search
Searc	h Results	
	] <mark>1</mark> - 5 / 518 ▶ ≫   ─	
#	Customer #	Customer Name
1	1	SAFE AIR LTD
2	100	SOUNDSAIR
3	1006	G A WATERMAN
4	1008	MASPORT NZ LTD CONSUMER DIVISION
5	<u>103</u>	AIR NELSON LTD
	<	

Figure 2.40 Selecting customer for creating customer goods pack slip

# Generating customer order based pack slip

You can create a pack slip based on the order from the customer requesting the return of the serviced parts or goods from the maintenance shop/storage location.

A customer order communicates the details of the service to be performed on an aviation asset. It contains details such as the work units, sub-component information, customersupplied part details, discrepancies and the maintenance object details. After the service is performed, a pack slip can be created against the customer order, to return the serviced goods to the customer.

Customer order based pack slip refers to the delivery notice, which is sent to the customer along with the shipment of the serviced goods or parts based on the order raised by the customer.

- 1. Select the **Create Customer Order Based Pack Slip** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The Select Customer Order # page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Customer Order #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Create Pack Slip** link provided along side to create the pack slip. *See Figure* 2.41.

Or

3. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer order for creating the pack slip.

4. Select the hyperlinked **Customer Order #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Create Pack Slip** page appears.

Refer to the topic **Creating pack slip** under **Generating Pack Slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for further details on creating the pack slip.

•	Select Customer Order #			式 Trailbar 🔹 🏠	🛤 📮 🌆		
			Date Format	dd/mm/yyyy			
Direc	t Entry						
	Curtanus Orden #	Create Back Sin					
	Customer Order #						
Searc	ch Criteria	The customer order number					
	Customer #	based on which the pack	Customer Name				
	Customer Order #	slip is to be generated	Ordering Point	SALOU			
	Order Date From		Order Date To	09/07/2009			
	Part #	Component #					
	Part #						
Conv	h Posulte	beau	J				
Searc							
</th <th>1 - 5 / 500 &gt;&gt;&gt; =</th> <th>1</th> <th></th> <th>*</th> <th>Q</th>	1 - 5 / 500 >>> =	1		*	Q		
#	Customer Order #	Order Description		Ordering Point	Customer		
1	519670 519670 BLADES REQUIRE STRAIGHTENING			SALOU	2048		
2	<u>519670</u>	519670 BLADES REQUIRE STRAIGHTENING	SALOU	2048			
3	<u>519670</u>	519670 BLADES REQUIRE STRAIGHTENING	SALOU	2048			
4	<u>519670</u>	519670 BLADES REQUIRE STRAIGHTENING	SALOU	2048			
5	<u>549246</u>	549246 43D50 PROP REPAIR/OVERHAUL EVALUAT	SALOU	1845			
					>		

Figure 2.41 Generating customer order based pack slip

# Allocating materials for pack slip

You can allocate the quantity of the specified parts to the selected customer. Once the materials are allocated for the pack slip, the status of the pack slip is updated as "Allocated".

You are also provided with the option of canceling the allocation. The cancellation of part allocation can be done only for those pack slips with status as "Allocated". On canceling the allocated pack slip, the status of the pack slip is reset to "Confirmed".

## Allocating materials for customer goods pack slip

- 1. Select the Allocate Materials for Pack Slip link under Pack Slip business component. The Select Pack Slip # page appears. See Figure 2.42.
- 2. Enter the customer goods based **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and click the **Allocate Materials For Pack Slip** link provided alongside.

#### Or

- 3. Enter **the Customer #** and/or select the **Reference Document Type** as General, and specify the other search criteria in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer goods based pack slip.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked customer goods based **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Allocate Materials For Pack Slip** page papers.

Refer to the topic Allocating materials for the selected pack slip under Allocating materials for pack slip in Chapter/3 Part Sales Management for allocating the material based on the selected pack slip.

	Selec	ct Pack Slip #					}	😂 Trailbar 🗸   🏡 📇	📑 📮 🔟
Date Format dd/mm/yyyy									
Direct	Ent	ry					Enter the c	customer who owns	the
		Pack Slip #	Allocate M	laterials for	Pack slip			e part that is to be re	lumeu
Searc	h Cri	teria	Enter the code identifying th	۵		L			
		Pack Slip #	customer goods based pack	slip		Custom	er #	$\checkmark$	
		Part #				St	atus	~	
		Component #				User St	atus 💌		
		Warehouse #				Part 1	Гуре	~	
		Reference Document #				Ref Doc 1		~	
		Pack Slip Ship Date From				Pack Slip Ship Dat	e To		
				Search		r dat olp onp out			
Searc	h Re	sults							
	1	1 - 5 / 19 🔊 🕞		1	ि जब बड का का			~	٩
#	-	Pack Sin #	Pack Slin Date	Shinmer	nt Date	Status		Licer Status	
1	E	CO-000610-2007	31/01/2007	31/01/2	007	Confirmed		0007 010100	
2	E	<u>CO-000930-2007</u>	16/02/2007	16/02/2	007	Confirmed			
3	П	<u>CO-000936-2007</u>	19/02/2007	19/02/2	007	Confirmed			
4	E	CO-001158-2007	28/02/2007	28/02/1	Click this push	utton to cancel t	tho		
5	Е	CO-001366-2007	09/03/2007	09/03/3	allocation for the customer goods				
		1			based pack slip	o oustonnor good			>
					7/				
Cancel Allocations									

See Figure 2.42 Selecting customer goods pack slip

## Allocating materials for customer order based pack slip

- 1. Select the Allocate Materials for Pack Slip link under Pack Slip business component. The Select Pack Slip # page appears. See Figure 2.43.
- 2. Enter the customer order based **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and click the **Allocate Materials For Pack Slip** link provided alongside.

Or

- 3. Select the **Reference Document Type** as "Customer Order", and/or specify the other search criteria in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer goods based pack slip.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked customer order based **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Allocate Materials For Pack Slip** page appears.
|                      | Selec   | t Pack Slip #  |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     | 式 Trailbar 🕶          | ☆ 🖨      | r 🔁 🖉 |  |
|----------------------|---|----------------|------------------|---------------|-------------|----------|--------------|----------------------|---------------------|-----------------------|----------|-------|--|
|                      |   |                |                  |               |             |          |              |                      | Date Format         | dd/mm/yyyy            |          |       |  |
| Direct               | Entr  | Y              |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     |                       |          |       |  |
|                      | Pack Slip # <u>Allocate Materials for Pack slip</u> |                |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     |                       |          |       |  |
| Searc                | h Cri   | teria          |                  | Enter the     | e code ider | ntifying | the          |                      |                     |                       |          | -     |  |
|                      |   |                | Pack Slip #      | custome       | r order bas | sed pa   | ck           |                      |                     |                       |          |       |  |
|                      |   |                | Part #           |               |             | e parts  |              |                      | ~                   |                       |          |       |  |
|                      |   |                | Component #      | +             |             |          |              | _                    | User Status         | <b>v</b>              |          |       |  |
|                      | Warehouse # Enter                                   |                |                  |               |             |          | mer order    |                      | Part Type           | Y                     |          |       |  |
|                      | Reference Document # number                         |                |                  |               |             |          | reference    |                      | Ref Doc Type        | ~                     |          |       |  |
|                      |   | Pack Sli       | p Ship Date Fron |               | documen     | t num    | ber          | Pac                  | k Slip Ship Date To |                       | •        |       |  |
|                      |   |                |                  |               |             |          | Sear         | ch                   |                     |                       |          |       |  |
| Searc                | h Re  | sults          |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     |                       |          | -     |  |
| <ul> <li></li> </ul> | ]   | 1 - 5 / 19 🕨 💓 |                  |               |             |          |              | 🔁 💽 🗰 KLS CSU TAT 🚮  | 🖺 🖨   All           | ~                     |          | Q     |  |
| #                    | E.  | Pack Slip #    | Pack Slip Date   | Shipment Date | Status      | User     | Customer #   | Customer Name        | Ref Doc Type        | Reference Docun Amend | lment #  |       |  |
| 1                    |   | CO-000610-2007 | 31/01/2007       | 31/01/2007    | Confirmed   |          | 104          | AIR NEW ZEALAND      | Customer Order      | co-000272-2007        |          | 0     |  |
| 2                    |   | CO-000930-2007 | 16/02/2007       | 16/02/2007    | Confirmed   |          | 4033         | NATIONAL JET SYSTEMS | The amon            | dmont number of the   | <b>\</b> | 2     |  |
| 3                    |   | CO-000936-2007 | 19/02/2007       | 19/02/2007    | Confirmed   | Clie     | this push    | utton to concol      |                     | order specifying the  |          | 2     |  |
| 4                    |   | CO-001158-2007 | 28/02/2007       | 28/02/2007    | Confirmed   | tho      | CINIS PUSH   | pullon to cancel     | changes in          | the contents of the   |          | 0     |  |
| 5                    | 5 🖹 CO-001366-2007 09/03/2007 09/03/2007 Confirmed  |                |                  |               |             |          | ed pack slip |                      | customer            | order                 | der      |       |  |
|                      |   |                |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     |                       |          |       |  |
|                      |   |                |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     |                       |          |       |  |
|                      | Cancel Allocations                                  |                |                  |               |             |          |              |                      |                     |                       |          |       |  |

Figure 2.43 Selecting customer order based pack slip for allocation

Refer to the topic Allocating materials for the selected pack slip under Allocating materials for pack slip in Chapter/3 Part Sales Management for allocating the material based on the selected pack slip.

# Issuing materials for pack slip

You can issue the quantity of the parts allocated from the warehouse .To issue the required quantity, you can specify the location or the warehouse from where the part can be issued.

Once the materials are issued for the pack slip, the status of the pack slip is updated as "Issued".

You are also provided with option of canceling the allocation. The cancellation of part allocation can be done only for those pack slips with status as "Allocated". On canceling the allocated pack slip, the status of the pack slip is reset to "Confirmed".

#### Issuing materials for customer goods based pack slip

1. Select the **Issue Materials For Pack Slip** link under the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Select Pack Slip #** page appears. *See Figure 2.44*.

•	Sele	ct Pack Slip #					3	🕏 Trailbar 🕶   🏡 🗎	🤹 🚛 💯		
						Date Fo	rmat dd/mm/yyy	y			
Direc	t Ent	ry				]			🖻		
		Pack Slip #	Issue M	Materials for Pack :	slip		Enter the cu core or part	istomer who owns th that is to be issued	e		
Sear	ch Cri	teria	Enter the code ident	ifving the		l	•		<b></b>		
		Pack Slip #	customer goods bas	ed pack		Custon	ner #				
		Part #	slip for issuing the pa	arts		User S	tatus 🔤 💌				
		Warehouse #				Part	Type	~			
		Reference Document #				Ref Doc	Type	~			
		Deels Olia Ohia Data Fran				Ref Doc					
		Pack Slip Ship Date From				Pack Slip Ship Da	te 10				
				Search							
Sear	ch Re	sults									
≪ [	•	1 - 5 / 8 🕨 💓 📄		1	HTM OLS CSU TOT	🏦 💷 🚍 🗛	I	*	Q		
#	E	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date	Shipment De	əte	Status		User Status			
1	E	CO-001902-2007	02/04/2007	02/04/2007		Allocated					
2	E	PSP-001679-2008	07/08/2008	07/08/2008		Allocated					
3	E	PSP-001693-2008	27/08/2008	27/08/2008		Allocated					
4	E	PSP-001694-2008	28/08/2008 Click th	his pushbuttor	to cancel the	cated					
5	E	PSP-001695-2008	29/08/2008 allocat	tion of custome	er goods based	cated					
	nack slip										
									· · · · ·		
			ſ	Cancel Allocation	s						

Figure 2.44 Selecting customer goods based pack slip

2. Enter the customer goods based **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Issue Materials For Pack Slip** link provided alongside.

- 3. Enter the **Customer #** and/or select the **Reference Document Type** as "General", and specify the other search criteria in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer goods based pack slip.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked customer goods based **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Issue Pack Slip** page appears.

Refer to the topic **Issuing materials for the selected pack slip** under **Issuing materials for pack slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for issuing the material based on the selected pack slip.

#### Issuing materials for customer order based pack slip

1. Select the **Issue Materials For Pack Slip** in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Select Pack Slip #** page appears. See Figure 2.45.

	ag Traibar▼											ibar 🔻 🛛 💈		74 (L)	<u>us</u>
										Date	Format dd/mm/yyyy				
Direc	t Ent	ry													
			Pack Slip #			Issue Ma	aterials for Pag	:k slip							
Searc	h Cri	teria		Enter	the code	e identifying	the custon	ner							
Jean			Pack Slin #	order	based pa	ack slip for	issuing the	parts		Cust	omer #				
			Doct #							Lloor	Status V				
			Fait #							User	Status				
			Warehouse #							Pa	rt Type	×			
		Refere	nce Document #							Ref Do	ос Туре	*			
		Pack Slip	Ship Date From	Enter t	he custo	mer order				Pack Slip Ship D	Date To		•		
				docum	ont numb	elerence	Search	]							
Searc	ch Re	sults		uocum											E
<b>«</b>	•]	1 -5/8 🕨 🚿	Ξ				1	📃 ma 215 (	50 TXT		All	~			Q
#	E	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date	Shipment Date	Status	User Status	Customer #	Customer Na	me	Ref Doc Type	Reference Document #	Amenda	ent #		
1	Е	CO-001902-2007	02/04/2007	02/04/2007	Allocated		104	AIR NEW ZEA	ALAND	Customer	CO-001827-2007			0	
2	Е	PSP-001679-2008	07/08/2008	07/08/2008	Allocated		100	SOUNDSAIR		General					
3	E	PSP-001693-2008	27/08/2008	27/08/2008	Allocated		100	SOUNDSAIR		General					
4	4 🖻 <u>PSP-001694-2008</u> 28/08/2008 24			28/08/2008	Allocated		100	SOUNDSAIR		General					
5	E	PSP-001695-2008	29/08/2008	29/08/2008	Allocated		100	SOUNDSAIR		General					
	Cancel Allocations														

Figure 2.45 Selecting customer order based pack slip

 Enter the customer goods based Pack Slip # in the Direct Entry group box and select the Issue Materials For Pack Slip link provided alongside.

Or

3. Select the **Reference Document Type** as "Customer Order", or/and specify the other search criteria in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer order based pack slip.

4. Select the hyperlinked customer order based **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Issue Pack Slip** page appears.

Refer to the topic **Issuing materials for the selected pack slip** under **Issuing materials for pack slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for issuing the material based on the selected pack slip.

# Holding or releasing pack slip

You can hold the pack slip from further processing or release the pack slip for further processing. Once a pack slip is held, it cannot be used for further actions, till it is released.

Only pack slips that are in "Confirmed", "Allocated" or "Issued" status, can be held till further information. The transient status of the held pack slip is updated to "Hold". You can release pack slips that are in "Hold" status. The transient status of the pack slip is then updated as "Released".

Refer to the topic **Holding or releasing pack slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for holding or releasing the pack slip.

# Short closing pack slip

You can short close the pack slip to prevent it from being used in further activities. You can short close only those pack slips that have been either confirmed or allocated.

If the pack slip has been confirmed, and if you wish to stop further allocation, then you can short close the pack slip. You can also short close the pack slip after allocation, so that it is not considered for further processing. Once the pack slip is short closed, it cannot be processed further for material issue or shipment.

Refer to the topic **Short closing pack slip** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for further details on short closing the pack slip.

# Shipping goods

You can ship the issued quantity of the parts from the respective warehouses to the customer, based on the pack slip.

#### Shipping goods based on customer goods pack slip

- 1. Select the **Ship Pack Slip** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Select Pack Slip #** page appears. *See Figure 2.46*.
- 2. Enter the customer goods based **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Ship Pack Slip** link provided alongside.

•	Selec	ct Pack Slip #					bis Trailbar ▼	🖸 🖨 🛤 🖉 🖾
						Date Format dd/mm/	лала	
Direc	t Ent	rγ						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		Pack Slip #	Ship Pack s	lip				
Sear	ch Cri	teria						
		Pack Slip #	Enter the code identifying	g the		Customer #	\	
		Part #	customer goods based p	back		User Status 🔤		
		Warehouse #	Silp			Part Type		
		Reference Document #				Ref Doc Type		
		Pack Slip Ship Date From				Pack Slip Ship Date To 09/07		
				Search		Enter the customer	who owns	
Sear	ch Re	sults				shipped	t is to be	
≪ [	•	1 - 5 / 70 🕨 🔛 📃		1	. HTM XLS CSU TXT		*	P
#	E	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date	Shipment	Date	Status	User Status	5
1	Е	CO-000233-2007	11/01/2007	11/01/200	)7	Issued		
2		CO-000298-2007	16/01/2007	16/01/200	)7	Issued		
3		CO-000732-2007	07/02/2007	07/02/200	)7	Issued		
4		CO-000965-2007	19/02/2007	19/02/200	)7	Issued		
5	E	CPS-000006-2007	21/02/2007	21/02/200	)7	Issued		
				)				
		<						>

Figure 2.46 Selecting customer goods based pack slip

Or

- 3. Select the **Reference Document Type** as "General", or/and specify the other search criteria in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer goods based pack slip.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked customer goods based **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Ship Pack Slip** page appears.

Refer to the topic **Shipping goods based on the selected pack slip** under **Shipping goods** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for details on shipping the goods based on the selected pack slip.

#### Shipping goods based on customer order based pack slip

- 1. Select the **Ship Pack Slip** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Select Pack Slip #** page appears. *See Figure 2.47.*
- 2. Enter the customer order based **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Ship Pack Slip** link provided alongside.

Or

- 3. Select the **Reference Document Type** as "Customer Order", or/and specify the other search criteria in the **Search Criteria** group box and click the **Search** pushbutton to retrieve the customer order based pack slip.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked customer order based **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Ship Pack Slip** page appears.

Select Pack Slip #		as Traibar 🕶 🚮 🖾 🍋 🍱				
		Date Format dd/mm/yyyy				
Direct Entry						
Pack Slip #	Ship Pack slip					
Search Criteria						
Pack Slip #	Enter the code identifying the customer order based pack	Customer #				
Part #	slip for shipping the parts	User Status				
Warehouse #		Part Type				
Reference Document #	Ref Doc Type					
Pack Slip Ship Date From	Enter the customer order number as the reference decument	Pack Slip Ship Date To 09/07/2009				
	number					
	Ja Status User Status Customer # Customer Name	Rei Doc Type Reference Document Americanette #				
	Issued     Iooo     VIETNAM AIRLIN     Iooud     Ioo     Ioo     ATD DDOD SEDVIC	ES Customer Order 600455 0				
3 E CO-000732-2007 07/02/2007 07/02/2007	) Issued 416 DN7AE					
4	) Issued 803 AIRWORK FLIGH	The amendment number of the				
5	Issued         1390         ROYAL AUSTRAL	customer order, specifying the				
		changes in the contents of the customer order.				

Figure 2.47 Selecting customer order based pack slip

Refer to the topic **Shipping goods based on the selected pack slip** under **Shipping goods** in **Chapter/3 Part Sales Management** for details on shipping the goods based on the selected pack slip.

# **Closing customer order**

You can close the customer order after the work execution. You can close the customer order after the respective execution documents such as visit package, work scope and repair order are closed.

1. Select the **Close Customer Order** link under **Customer Order** business component. The **Close Customer Order** page appears. *See Figure 2.48.* 

•	Clos	e Customer Order				式 Trailbar 🕶 🛛 🏠	🗎 📑 🎜 🔟
					Date Format dd/mm/y	гууу	
Sea	rch Cr	iteria					-
		Customer Order #			Description		
						p	
		Order Date From			Order Date To		
		Aircraft Reg #			Part #		
		Customer #			Customer Name		
		User Status	~		Order Category	~	
		Order Applicability	×		Priority	×	
				Search			
Sea	rch Re	sults					
<b>«</b>	•	1 - 5 / 500 🕨 💓 🖃		1	=   AI	~	Q
#	E	Customer Order #	Order Date	Order Applicability	Priority	Total Value	
1		639070	30/09/2005	Components	Normal		3
2		653531	10/01/2006	Components	Normal		
3		658750	21/02/2006	Components	Normal		
4		660800	08/03/2006	Components	Normal		
5		660881	09/03/2006	Aircraft	Normal		
		<					>
				_ close Order			

Figure 2.48 Closing customer order

- 2. Enter the **Customer Order #** in the Search Criteria group box.
- 3. Enter the textual **Description** of the customer order.
- 4. Enter the starting date in the range of dates during which the customer order was created in **Order Date From.**
- 5. Enter the ending date in the range of dates during which the customer order was created in **Order Date To.**
- 6. Enter the Aircraft Reg. # against which the customer order was created.
- 7. Enter the **Part #** against which the customer order was created.
- 8. Enter the **Customer #** for whom the customer order was created.

- 9. Enter the **Customer Name** for which the customer order was created.
- 10. Use the **User Status** drop-down list box to select the user status of the customer order.
- 11. Use the **Order Category** drop-down list box to select the category to which the customer order belongs.
- 12. Use the **Order Applicability** drop-down list box to select the order applicability. The system lists the options "Aircraft", "Engine", "Component" and "Others".
- 13. Use the drop-down list box to select the **Priority**, which could be, "High", "Low", "Normal" etc;
- Note: The system retrieves only the customer orders in "Processed" status.
  - 14. Provide Search Criteria to search for the customer order to be closed.
  - 15. Select the customer order and click the **Close Order** pushbutton to close the customer order.

# **Chapter 3/ Part Sales Management**

The Part Sales Management sub process addresses the process of managing the sale of parts/goods from the maintenance shop to the customer without any order management.

The part sales management sub process maintains all information pertaining to the direct sale of parts/goods to the customer. It provides the facility to generate a pack slip and handle the issue and shipment of parts/goods to the customer based on the pack slip generated.

**Pack Slip** business component enables you to generate a pack slip for the sale of goods to the customer, with or without a customer order. Pack Slip is the delivery notice sent to the customer along with parts/goods sold, containing the information such as customer details, item details, quantities and shipping details.

# Generating pack slip

Pack slip is a delivery notice sent to the customer along with the shipment of goods or parts.

A pack slip is created under the following circumstances:

- For the sale of parts to the customer which leads to the generation of Part Sales Pack Slip.
- To return the core or parts belonging to the customer lying in excess in the maintenance shop
- Against the customer order, to return the serviced goods to the customer.

The **Part Sales Management** sub process addresses only the **Part Sales Pack Slip** activity of the **Pack Slip** business component.

The process by which a part sale pack slip is generated and released to the customer for the sales of the part, is depicted in *Figure 3.1*.



Figure 3.1 Part sale pack slip generation process

### Setting options for pack slip

You can set the default options for the various activities of the "Pack Slip" business component. You can set the following options in this activity:

- Set the option for the subsequent action to be performed on confirmation. You can set the action as "Auto Allocation" or "Auto Issue" or "Auto Shipment".
- Set the auto invoice generation as "Required" or "Not Required", for the part sale pack slip.
- Set the numbering type for the auto issue .

- 1. Select the **Set Options** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Set Options** page appears. *See Figure 3.2.*
- 2. Set the **Subsequent Action on Confirmation** as "Auto Allocation", "Auto Issue" or "Auto Shipment".
  - a) Auto Allocation: Select this option to automatically allocate the parts on confirmation.
  - b) Auto Issue: Select this option to automatically issue the parts on confirmation.
  - c) Auto Shipment: Select this option to automatically ship the parts on confirmation.

Set Options	😂 Trailbar 🕶   🏡 🚔 🌄 🔟 🎯
	Date Format dd/mm/yyyy
Option Setting Details	
Subsequen	Action on Confirmation Auto Allocation
Auto Invoici	ig of Part Sale Pack Slip Not Required
Number	1g Type For Auto Issue PSPI
	Set Options
Record Statistics	
Last Modified by DMUSER	Last Modified Date 30/12/2008

Figure 3.2 Setting options for pack slip

- 3. Set the **Auto Invoicing of Part Sale Pack slip** as "Required" to automatically generate the invoice for the sale of parts to the customer from the warehouse. Select "Not Required" otherwise.
- 4. Select the **Num Type For Auto Issue**, to specify the numbering type for automatic issue of materials against a pack slip.
- 5. Click the **Set Options** pushbutton to set the options.

### Creating quick codes for pack slip

Quick codes are user-defined values, used to categorize details based on certain characteristics. You can define the quick code values for each of the quick code types. These quick codes are later used in other activities, where the details are classified.

The basic quick code types such as "Pack Slip Category" and "User Status" are defined in the system. Quick codes can be defined under each of these quick code types. For example, for the quick code type "Pack Slip Category", you can define quick codes such as "Pack Slip For Customer Goods", "Customer Order Pack Slip" and "Part Sale Pack Slip".

- 1. Select the **Create Quick Codes** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Create Quick Code** page appears. *See Figure 3.3*.
- 2. Select the **Quick Code Type** as "Pack Slip Category" or "User Status".
- 3. Enter the Quick Code and Description in the Quick Code Details multiline.
- 4. Click the Create Quick Codes pushbutton to create the quick codes.
- Note: The system assigns the "Active" status to the quick codes entered in the multiline.

)

•	Crea	te Quick Codes			💐 Trailbar 🕶   🏡 🚔 🐺 📒	6
		Quick Code Type	Pack Slip Category			
Quic	k Cod	e Details				
<b>«</b>	<ul> <li>IN</li> </ul>	lo records to display] 🕨 💓 🕂	- 6 4	A 🔁 📴 🚥 🚥 💷 💷 🗐 🚍 🗛	·	ρ
#	E.	Quick Code	Description			
1	F					
		<				>
			Cr	eate Quick Codes		

Figure 3.3 Creating quick codes

### Generating pack slip for part sales

You can create a pack slip, to ship parts that are directly sold to the customer. You can sell parts that are in the warehouse, to any customer. The part sale pack slip refers to the delivery notice, which is sent to the customer along with the shipment. It contains information such as the shipping address, part details, the quantity of the part, insurance terms, the person who bears the insurance and the carrier by which the goods are being shipped.

- 1. Select the **Create Part Sale Pack Slip** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Select Customer #** page appears.
- 2. Enter the Customer # and select the Create Pack Slip link provided along side.
- Or
- 3. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton.

4. Select the hyperlinked **Customer #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Create Pack Slip** page appears. *See Figure 3.4*.

#### Creating pack slip

- 1. Select the **Numbering Type** to specify the numbering pattern for the pack slip in the **Pack Slip Details** group box.
- Note: For details on creating numbering types, refer to the section "Defining numbering types for transactions" in the "Inventory Setup" User Guide.
  - 2. Select the Pack Slip Category and User Status.
  - 3. Enter the date of creation of the pack slip in the **Pack Slip Date** field.
  - 4. Set **Invoice Applicable** as "Yes" to indicate that the invoice is applicable on the pack slip. Select "No" otherwise.
  - 5. Select the **Ordering Point** from where the order is placed.
  - 6. Enter the **Reference Document #** to specify the reference document associated with the pack slip.
- Note: For a customer order pack slip, the reference document number is the same as the customer order number.
  - 7. Enter the Amendment # of the reference document.
  - 8. Select the **Ship To Customer #** and **Ship To Address** in the **Ship To Address Details** group box to specify the customer and address to where the goods have to be shipped.
  - 9. Enter the **Part #** to specify the part to be shipped.
- Note: For a customer order based pack slip, the "Part #" refers to the parts referred in the selected customer order.
  - 10. Enter the Customer Part # to specify the customer part.
  - 11. Select the **Condition** of the part as 'New', 'Over Hauled', 'Serviceable', 'Un-Serviceable' or 'Phased Out'.
  - 12. Select the user-defined Stock Status for the pack slip.
  - 13. Enter the **Warehouse #** from where the part is being shipped.
- Note: The warehouse entered must allow the transaction type "Pack Slip".
  - 14. Enter the **Pack Slip Quantity** to specify the quantity of part to be shipped to the customer.

#### Part Sales Management

Create Pack Slip						式 Trailbar 🕶	☆ 🖨 🛛	3 📮 📧
				Date & Tim	e Format dd/mm/y	лууу	hh:mm:ss	
Pack Slip Details								
Pack Slip #				Numb	ering Type SP	•		
Pack Slip Category	~				Status			
Pack Slip Type P	art Sale			L	Jser Status			
Pack Slip Date	09/07/2009			Invoice	Applicable Yes	-		
Shipment Date & Time	09/07/2009	14:36:47	1					
Customer Information								
Customer #	100			Custor	ner Name SOUNDS	AIR		
Reference Document Details	The	una of the rof		tudl bo				
Ref Doc Type	General "Gon	oral" for part s	erence documen	t will be	g Point SALOU	~		
Reference Document #		cial loi parts			ment #			
Document Date		9		Other Re	eferences			
Ship To Address Details								
Ship To Customer #	•			Ship To	Address 2 💌			
Address								
Contact Person				Work	Phone #			
E-Mail					Fax			
Delivery Area								
Part Details								
( [No records to display] ( )	- 🖻 🐇	1	arne als est far 🛃 🛛		All	~		Q
# 🗉 Line # Part # 🤇	Custo	mer Part # 🍳		Condition		Stock Status		
8								3
								<u>·</u>
Shipping Information								
ShipmentType	<b>v</b>			Carrier / Age	ency #Q			
Transportation Mode	<b>v</b>			Vehicle	/ Flight #			
Freight Billable	No 💙			Freigh	t Amount		NZ	D 🕶
Port Of Destination				Freig	ght Terms 🔤 💌			
Way Bill #					PRO No			
AWB No					BOL No			
INCO Terms				т	racking #			
Insurance Liability	None							
Insurance Terms								
Packaging Details								
Packaging Code : Cores	×			Hazardou	s Product No 🚩			
Packaging Code : Spares	×			Shipp	oing Label 🛛 💌			
Packaging Code : Serviceable Component	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0 1 1 2/						
Comments		Select "Yes	" if the part is haz	zardous				
Pack Slip Comments								
Document Attachment Details								
File Name								
		Create Pack Slip	Confirm Pack Slip					
Edit Storage Details Edit References Details	Edit Address De Generate Pack	<u>tails</u> Slip Report		Edit C Alloca	ertificate Details te Materials for Pa	ck Slip		

Figure 3.4 Creating pack slip

- 15. Select the **Picking Strategy** of the part as "Automatic" to automatically pick the part from the warehouse for shipment. Select "Manual" otherwise.
- Note: If the picking strategy is set as "Automatic", the system retrieves the picking strategy associated with the selected part from the "Part Administration" business component.
  - 16. Set the **Pack Slip For** drop-down list box to "Main Component", "Core Return", "Excess Returns" or "Part Sale".
  - 17. Select the **Shipment Type** and **Transportation Mode** in the **Shipping Information** group box.
  - 18. Set the **Freight Billable** as "Yes" to indicate that the freight is billable for the stock. Select "No" otherwise.
  - 19. Enter the **Freight Amount** to indicate the sum of freight charges that have been levied for the stock's transfer.
- Note: Ensure that the freight amount is entered, if the "Freight Billable" field is set as "Yes".
  - 20. Select the Fright Terms.
  - 21. Enter the **Way Bill #** to specify the document, containing the list of goods with shipping instructions related to the shipment.
  - 22. Enter the **PRO No** to specify the bill number identifying a carrier's contract and receipt for goods when transportation is by land.
  - 23. Enter the **AWB No** to specify the air way bill number identifying a carrier's contract and receipt for goods when transportation is by air.
  - 24. Enter the **BOL No** to specify the bill of lading number identifying a carrier's contract and receipt for goods when transportation is by sea.
  - 25. Enter the **INCO Terms** to specify the International Commercial Term indicating the party, such as the supplier, carrier or customer, with whom the risks and responsibilities lie, when parts are being shipped.
  - 26. Select the **Insurance Liability** as "Shipper", "Carrier" or "Consignee" to indicate the person who bears the insurance amount.
  - 27. Select the appropriate packaging codes in the **Packaging Code: Cores**, **Packaging Code: Spares** and **Packaging Code: Serviceable Component** drop-down list boxes in the **Packaging Details** group box.
  - 28. Click the Create Packslip pushbutton to create the pack slip.
- Note: The system generates the pack slip with the numbering type selected and updates the status as "Fresh".

- 29. Click the Confirm Pack Slip pushbutton to confirm the pack slip.
- Note: The system updates the status of the pack slip as "Confirmed".
- Note: The system performs the following on confirmation depending on the options set in the "Set Options" activity:
  - a) If the "Subsequent Action on Confirmation" is set as "Auto Allocation", the system updates the status of the pack slip as "Allocated" and the quantity of the part is allocated.
  - b) If the "Subsequent Action on Confirmation" is set as "Auto Issue", the system updates the status of the pack slip as "Issued".
  - c) If the "Subsequent Action on Confirmation" is set as "Auto Shipment", the system updates the status of the pack slip as "Shipped".
  - d) If the "Subsequent Action on Confirmation" is set as "Auto Shipment" or "Auto Issue", then the system maintains the cost of goods sold account code and cost center account code for each line item and for the pack slip document. The system retrieves these details from the "Account Rule Definition" and "Cost Center Rule Definition" business components respectively.

To proceed further,

- ▼ Select the Edit Storage Details link to enter the storage details of the pack slip.
- Select the Edit Address Details link to enter or modify the address details of the customer.
- ▼ Select the **Edit Certificate Details** link to enter or modify the certificate details associated with the pack slip.
- ▼ Select the Edit Reference Details link to enter the reference details of the pack slip.

#### Entering the storage details

You can enter the storage details such as the zone number and the bin number from where the requested part can be shipped. You can also specify the serial number and the lot number of the part.

You can enter the storage details of the pack slip only:

- if the pack slip is in "Fresh" status.
- if the picking strategy for the part is set as "Manual".
- Note: If the picking strategy for the part is set as "Automatic", the system automatically generates the storage details for the part, depending on the picking strategy as set in the "Part Administration" business component.
  - 1. Select the Edit Storage Details link in the Create Pack Slip page. The Edit Storage Details page appears. See Figure 3.5.

- 2. Select the **Line #** of the pack slip for which the storage details must be specified, in the **Part Details** multiline and click the **Get Part Details** pushbutton.
- 3. Enter the **WH Zone** # and **Bin** # in the **Serial / Lot Details** multiline, to specify the warehouse zone and bin where the part is stored.
- 4. Enter the **Serial #** and **Lot #** of the part.
- 5. Enter the Quantity of the part.
- 6. Click the Edit Storage Details pushbutton to update the storage details.

•	Edit	Storage Details					😹 Trailbar 🕶	1 🏡 1		🤹 🌄 🖭
						Date For	rmat dd/mm/yyyy			
Pack	Slip	Details								E
		I	Pack Slip # CO-000271-2	007	Pack Slip Date 15/01/2007					
Cust	omer	Information								
		c	Customer # 2726			Customer N	ame SKYTECH AVIATION(200	3)LTD		
Part	Deta	ils								
			Line # 👖 🖌 🛛 Get P	art Details						
Part	Deta	ils								
			Line # 1 🌱 🛛 Get F	art Details						
		W	arehouse# SC			Warehouse Descrip	otion Supply Central			
			Part # 245145			Part Descrip	otion FU24 AXLE			
			Part Type Component			Stock St	atus Customer-Civil			
			Condition Serviceable			Part Control T	Type Serial Controlled			
		Pickin	g Strategy Manual			Pack Slip Quar	ntity 1.00	EA		
Seria	al / Lo	t Details								E
<	•	1 -1/1 🕨 🔌   🕂 [	- 6 4		1 🔁 🔝 🚥 🚥	5 💷 💷 💶 🚹   💷 🚍   Al	~	1		۶
#	E	WH - Zone # 🔍	Bin # Q	Serial # 🍳		Manufacturer Serial #	Lot # 🔍			
1	E	TEMP		NSN		NSN				
2	E									
		<								3
					Edit Storage Details	]				
						,				

Figure 3.5 Entering storage details

#### Entering address details for the pack slip

You can enter or modify the address details of the customer to whom the goods are being shipped.

Note: You cannot modify the address details of the pack slip, which is in "Confirmed", "Cancelled" or "Shipped" status.

- 1. Select the Edit Address Details link in the Create Pack Slip page. The Edit Address Details page appears.
- 2. Select the **Bill To Customer #** and **Bill To Address** in the **Bill To Address Details** group box to specify the customer and the address of the customer against whom the pack slip is to be billed.
- 3. Enter the Address, Contact Person, Work Phone #, Email and Fax.
- 4. Click the Edit Address Details pushbutton to update the address details.

#### Entering the certificate details

You can record the certificate details associated with the part that is being shipped to the customer.

- Note: You cannot modify the certificate details of the pack slip, which is in "Confirmed", "Cancelled" or "Shipped" status.
  - 1. Select the Edit Certificate Details link in the Create Pack Slip page. The Edit Certificate Details page appears.
  - 2. Select the **Line #** of the pack slip in the **Part Details** group box, for which the certificate details must be updated and click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
  - 3. Enter the **Certificate #** in the **Certificate Details** multiline.
  - 4. Select the **Certificate Type**.
  - 5. Enter the **Issuer #**, to specify the person who issued the certificate.
  - 6. Click the Edit Certificate Details pushbutton to update the certificate details.

#### Entering document references for pack slip

- 1. Select the Edit References Details link in the Create Pack Slip page. The Edit References Details page appears.
- 2. Select the Line # of the pack slip in the **Part Details** group box, for which the reference document details must be updated and click the **Get Details** pushbutton.
- 3. Select the **Reference Document Type** in the **Reference Document Details** multiline.
- 4. Enter the Reference Document #, File name and Remarks.
- 5. Click the **Edit Reference Details** pushbutton to update the reference document details.

# Allocating materials for pack slip

You can allocate the quantity of the specified parts to the customer. Once the materials are allocated for the pack slip, the status of the pack slip is updated as "Allocated".

You are also provided with the option of canceling the allocation. The cancellation of part allocation can be done only for those pack slips that are in "Allocated" status. On canceling the allocated pack slip, the status of the pack slip is reset to "Confirmed".

### Selecting pack slip for allocation

1. Select the Allocate Material for Pack Slip link in the Pack Slip business component. The Select Pack Slip # page appears. See Figure 3.6.

Sele	ect Pack Slip #				💐 Trailbar 🔻   🏡 🗎	🔁 🚛 💯
				Date Format dd/mm/y	ууу	
Direct Ent	try					<b></b>
	Pack Slip #	A	locate Materials for Pack slip			
Search Cr	iteria					
	Pack Slip #			Customer #		
	Part #			Status	~	
	Component #			Liser Status		
	Warehouse #			Dart Turas	~	
	Warehouse #					
	Reference Document #			Ref Doc Type		
	Pack Slip Ship Date From			Pack Slip Ship Date To		
			Search			
Search Re	esults					<b>A</b>
« •	1 - 5 / 19 🕨 💓 📃		🔂 💽 ma sus esu m	🖬 🏰   🕂 🖨   All	~	Q
# 8	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date	Shipment Date	Status	User Status	
1 🗉	CO-000610-2007	31/01/2007	31/01/2007	Confirmed		
2 🗉	CO-000930-2007	16/02/2007	16/02/2007	Confirmed		
3 🗉	CO-000936-2007	19/02/2007	19/02/2007	Confirmed		
4 E	CO-001158-2007	28/02/2007	28/02/2007	Confirmed		
5 🗉	CO-001366-2007	09/03/2007	09/03/2007	Confirmed	_	
	c		Click this	s pushbutton to cancel the		
	<		allocation	n of the pack slip		>
			Cancel Allocations			

Figure 3.6 Selecting pack slip for allocation

- 2. Enter the **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Allocate Materials for Pack Slip** link provided alongside.
- Or
- 3. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton.

									0				
••••	Alloc	ate Ma	terials for Pa	ck Slip						😂 Trail	par 🔹 🏠 🚊	) 🖾 🐔 📧	
									Date Fo	rmat dd/mm/yyyy			
Pack	Slip C	etails											
				Pack Slip # CO-0	00610-2007				Pack Slip	Date 31/01/2007			
				Status Confi	med			Shipment Date 31/01/2007					
				User Status					Pack Slip	Type Customer Order Ba	sed		
Custo	mer	Informa	tion										
				Customer # 104					Customer N	Jame AIR NEW ZEALAND			
Refe	ence	Docum	ent Details									-	
- Teres	circe	Docum	circ D ctuils	Ref Doc Type Custo	mer Order				Ordering	Point SALOU			
	Reference Document # co-000272-2007							Amendment # 0					
			De	summer Data 15/01	/2007				Silicitane			_	
	Document Date 15/01/2007						The gu	antity of part	ner kerere	Enter the guan	tity of part		
Part	Detai	s					reques	ted in the pack s	slip	to be allocated	5 1		
[		1 - 1 / 1	• • • • +									Q	
#	E	Line #	Part #	Customer Part #	Condition	Stock Status	Warehouse # 🭳	Pack Slip Quantity	Allocated Quantity	UOM Q	Picking Strateg	79	
1		1	SAF551-001			Customer-Civil	НЗ	7.00	7.00	EA	Manual		
2													
		<										>	
Comr	nents	5										· · · · · ·	
			Allocatio	on Comments									
						Edit Qu	antity Details 🚺 Al	locate Materials					
-	Storace Dataile Edit Deferences Dataile					-1-1-			- Ch-				

4. Select the hyperlinked **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Allocate Materials for Pack Slip** page appears. See Figure 3.7.

Figure 3.7 Allocating materials for pack slip

### Allocating materials for the selected pack slip

- 1. Select the User Status of the pack slip in the Pack Slip Details group box.
- 2. Enter the **Warehouse #** in the **Part Details** multiline to specify the warehouse from where the part must be allocated.
- 3. Enter the **Allocated Quantity** of the part that must be allocated to the customer from the respective warehouse.
- Note: The allocated quantity of the part must be less than or equal to the pack slip quantity.
  - 4. Enter the **UOM** of the part.
  - 5. Enter the Allocation Comments in the comments group box.

#### To modify the quantity details

- 6. Click the Edit Quantity Details pushbutton to modify the quantity details.
- Note: You can modify the quantity of only those pack slips which are not in "Allocated" status.

#### To allocate the quantity

- 7. Click the **Allocate Materials** pushbutton to allocate the materials for the pack slip.
- Note: The system updates the status of the allocated pack slip as "Allocated" and the allocated quantity of the parts are allocated.

To proceed further,

- ▼ Select the Edit Storage Details link to enter the storage details of the allocated quantity of the parts for the pack slip.
- ▼ Select the Edit Reference Details link to enter the reference details of the pack slip.

#### Entering storage details for the allocated quantity

You can enter the storage details of the allocated pack slip. You can specify the quantity of part that must be allocated along with the storage details such as the zone number and the bin number from where the requested part can be allocated. You can also specify the serial number and the lot number of the part.

- Note: You can enter the storage details of the allocated pack slip only if the picking strategy for the part is "Manual".
  - 1. Select the Edit Storage Details link in the Allocate Materials for Pack Slip page. The Edit Storage Details page appears.
  - 2. Select the Line # in the Part Details multiline to specify the line number of the pack slip for which the storage details must be entered and click the Get Details push button.
  - 3. Enter the **WH-Zone** # and **Bin** # in the **Serial / Lot Details** multiline, to specify the details of the zone and bin from where the part has been allocated.
  - 4. Enter the Serial # and Lot # of the part that has been allocated.
  - 5. Enter the **Quantity** of the parts that has been allocated.
  - 6. Click the **Edit Storage Details** pushbutton to update the storage details of the pack slip.

# Issuing materials for pack slip

You can issue the allocated quantity of parts, from the warehouse to the customer. To issue the required quantity, you can specify the location or the warehouse from where the part can be issued.

Once the materials are issued for the pack slip, the status of the pack slip is updated as "Issued".

You are also provided with option of canceling the allocation. The cancellation of part allocation can be done only for those pack slips that are in the "Allocated" status. On canceling the allocated pack slip, the status of the pack slip is reset to "Confirmed".

### Selecting pack slip for issuing materials

1. Select the **Issue Materials for Pack Slip** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Select Pack Slip #** page appears. *See Figure 3.8.* 

	Seleo	ct Pack Slip #					💐 Trailbar 🔻		🛤 🗖 📷
						Date Format dd/mr	n/yyyy		
Dime									
Direc	C ENC	ry							L.
		Pack Slip #	Issu	ue Materials for Pack slip					
Searc	h Cri	teria							-
		Pack Slip #				Customer #			
		Part #				Licer Status			
		Fait #				User Status			
		Warehouse #				Part Type	<b>*</b>		
		Reference Document #				Ref Doc Type	*		
		Pack Slip Ship Date From	•			Pack Slip Ship Date To			
				Search					
Searc	h Re	sults							
	1								
<u>«</u>		1 - 5/8 🕨 🔌 😑					*		Q
#	E	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date	Shipment Date		Status	User Status		
1		CO-001902-2007	02/04/2007	02/04/2007		Allocated			
2		PSP-001679-2008	07/08/2008	07/08/2008		Allocated			
3		PSP-001693-2008	27/08/2008	27/08/2008		Allocated			
4		PSP-001694-2008	28/08/2008	28/08/2008	Click th	aic nuchbutton to			
5		PSP-001695-2008	29/08/2008	29/08/2008	Click this pushbullon to				
					Cancer				
						>			
	Cancel Allerations								

Figure 3.8 Selecting pack slip for issuing materials

2. Enter the **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Issue Materials for Pack Slip** link provided along side.

Or

- 3. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Issue Pack Slip** page appears. *See Figure 3.9*.

Issue Pack Slip			式 Trailbar 🕶	l 🏡 🖨 🗟 두	105
			dd (nam (manna		
			Date Format od/mm/yyyy		
Pack Slip Details					
Pack Slip #	CO-001902-2007	F	ack Slip Date 02/04/2007		
Status	Allocated		Issue Date 09/07/2009		
User Status		P	ack Slip Type Customer Order Based		
Customer Information					
Customer #	104	Cu	stomer Name AIR NEW ZEALAND		
Reference Document Details					
Ref Doc Type	Customer Order	c	rdering Point SALOU		
Reference Document #	CO-001827-2007	٩	mendment # 0		
Document Date	29/03/2007	Othe	r References		
Part Details					
					0
					~
	Customer Part #	Condition	Stock Status	Warehouse # 🤇	
1 87-1		Overhauled	Customer-Civil	CMC1	
2 1					
<					>
Comments					
Issue Comments					
	Edit Quantity Det	ails Issue Materials			
					_

Figure 3.9 Issuing materials for pack slip

### □ Issuing materials for the selected pack slip

- 1. Enter the **Issue Date** in the **Pack Slip Details** group box.
- 2. Select the User Status of the pack slip.

- 3. Enter the **Issued Quantity** in the **Part Details** multiline, to specify the quantity of the allocated parts that can be issued from the respective warehouse.
- 4. Enter the **Issue Comments** in the **Comments** group box.

#### To modify the quantity of parts issued

- 5. Click the **Edit Quantity Details** pushbutton to modify the quantity of the parts issued.
- Note: You can modify the quantity details of only those pack slips which are not in "Issued" status.

#### To issue the quantity of parts

- 6. Click the **Issue Materials** pushbutton to issue the quantity of the parts.
- Note: The system updates the status of the pack slip as "Issued" and the requested quantity of parts are issued.
- If the "Subsequent Action on Confirmation" is set as "Auto Shipment" or "Auto Issue", then the system maintains the cost of goods sold account code and cost center account code for each line item and for the pack slip document. The system retrieves these details from the "Account Rule Definition" and "Cost Center Rule Definition" business components respectively.

To proceed further,

- Select the Edit Storage Details link to enter the storage details of the issued quantity of the parts for the pack slip.
- ▼ Select the Edit Reference Details link to enter the reference details of the pack slip.

#### Entering the storage details for the issued quantity

You can enter the storage details of the part issued. You can specify details of the quantity of the part that can be issued along with the storage details such as the zone number and the bin number from where the requested part can be issued. You can also specify the serial number and the lot number of the part.

- 1. Select the Edit Storage Details link in the Issue Pack Slip page. The Edit Storage Details page appears. *See Figure 3.10*.
- 2. Select the Line # in the Part Details multiline to specify the line number of the pack slip for which the storage details are to be entered, and click the Get Details pushbutton.
- 3. Enter the **WH-Zone #** and **Bin #** in the **Serial / Lot Details** multiline, to specify the zone and bin from where the part is issued.
- 4. Enter the **Serial #** and **Lot #** of the part being issued.

- 5. Enter the **Quantity** of parts that have been issued.
- 6. Enter the **Remarks** if any pertaining to the modification of the quantity.
- 7. Click the **Edit Storage Details** pushbutton to update the storage details for the pack slip.

Edit Storage Details		5	🕸 Trailbar 🔻   🏡 🚔 🎉 🌄 🌆				
		Date Format dd/mm/yyyy					
Pack Slip Details							
Pack Slip # CO-001902-20	007	Pack Slip Date 02/04/2007	,				
Customer Information							
Customer # 104		Customer Name AIR NEW Z	EALAND				
Part Details							
Line # 1 🗸 Get Pa	art Details						
Part Details							
	ant Datala						
	art Details	Westerner Description Customer N	Inintenness Core - 1 Hannar				
Warenouse# Chici		Warehouse Description Customer Maintenance Core - 1 Hangar					
Part # 81558/-1		Part Description 568F IRANSFER TUBE					
Part Type Component		Stock Status Customer-Civil					
Pack Slip Quantity 1.00		Allocated Quantity 1.00 EA					
Issue Quantity 1.00		Part Control Type Serial Contr	rolled				
Serial / Lot Details							
≪ ◀ 1 -1/1 ▶ ≫   + = ₽ 4	🔀 🔝 🚥	5 💷 🗷 🏨   📮 🖶   All	<b>ب</b>				
# 🗉 WH - Zone # 🍳 Bin #	Serial # Q	Manufacturer Serial #	Lot # 🔍				
1 E REPAIR-CMC	991020	991020					
2 🗉							
<	]		>				
	Edit Storage Details	J					

Figure 3.10 Entering storage details for the issued quantity

# Holding or releasing pack slip

You can hold the pack slip from further processing or release the pack slip for further processing. Once a pack slip is held, it cannot be used for further actions, till it is released.

Only pack slips that are in "Confirmed", "Allocated" or "Issued" status, can be held till further information. The transient status of the held pack slip is updated as "Hold". You can release pack slips that are in "Hold" status. The transient status of the pack slip is then updated as "Released".

 Select Hold / Release Pack Slip under the Pack Slip business component. The Hold / Release Pack Slip page appears. See Figure 3.11.

🗐 🔹 Hold / Release Pack Slip 🛛 🔯 🏣 🙀 🖉 🖉										
							Date Format dd	/mm/yyy	The transient status of	1
Sear	ch Cr	iteria							could be "Hold" or	
		Pack Slip #				_	Status	1	'Released"	
Customer #				The type of the reference			Transient Status			
		Customer Name		"General" or "Customer Order"		User Status				
		Reference Document #					Ref Doc Type		Y	
		Pack Slip Date From					Pack Slip Date To			
					Search					
Sear	ch Re	esults								
[	•]	1 - 5 / 89 🕨 ≫ 📃 —			🔂 🔝 MA 215 CSU	🔤 🚹	🕂 🖶   All		~	P
#	E	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date		Status		TransientStatus		User Status	
1	E	CO-000233-2007	11/01/2007		Issued					
2	Е	CO-000298-2007	16/01/2007		Issued					
3	Е	CO-000610-2007	31/01/2007		Confirmed					
4	Е	CO-000732-2007	07/02/2007		Issued					
5	Е	CO-000930-2007	16/02/2007		Confirmed					
		P., 18								
		<								>
	Release Pack Slip Hold Pack Slip									

Figure 3.11 Holding or releasing pack slip

- 2. Enter the **Search Criteria** and click the **Search** pushbutton to search for the pack slips for holding or releasing.
- 3. Select the pack slip to be held or released, in the Search Results multiline.

#### Releasing the pack slip

- 4. Click the **Release Pack Slip** pushbutton to release the pack slip for future processing.
- Note: The system updates the status of the pack slip as "Released".
- Note: You can release only those pack slips that are in "Hold" status.

#### Holding the pack slip

- 5. Click the **Hold Pack Slip** pushbutton to hold the pack slip from future processing.
- Mote: The system updates the status of the pack slip as "Hold".
- Note: You can hold only those pack slips that are in "Confirmed", "Allocated" or "Issued" status.

# Short closing pack slip

If a pack slip has been confirmed, and if you wish to stop further allocation of materials against the pack slip, you can short close the pack slip. You can also short close the pack slip after allocation, so that it is not considered for further action. Once the pack slip is short closed, it cannot be processed further for materials issue and shipment.

- Note: You can short close only those pack slips that are either confirmed or allocated.
  - 1. Select the **Short Close Pack Slip** link in the **Pack Slip** business component. The **Short Close Pack Slip** page appears. *See Figure 3.12*.

•	Sho	ort Close Pack Slip			<b>3\$</b> Tr	railbar 🕶   🏡 🚍	) 📑 📮 🔟		
					Date Format dd/mm/yyyy				
Sea	Search Criteria								
		Pack Slip #			Status 📉				
		Customer #			User Status				
		Reference Document #			Ref Doc Type	~			
		Pack Slip Date From			Pack Slip Date To 09/07/2009	3	3		
				Search					
Sea	rch R	esults							
«	•	1 - 5 / 19 🕨 💓 📃		🔂 🔝 ma ma cau ma 📊	AI	~	Q		
#	E	Pack Slip #	Pack Slip Date	Status	User Status	TransientStatus	,		
1	E	CPS-000125-2008	05/10/2008	Allocated		Allocated			
2	E	CPS-000138-2008	27/11/2008	Confirmed		Confirmed			
3	E	PSP-001679-2008	07/08/2008	Allocated		Allocated			
4	E	PSP-001693-2008	27/08/2008	Allocated		Allocated			
5	E	PSP-001694-2008	28/08/2008	Allocated		Allocated			
		1					3		
Com	Comments								
	Short Close Comments								
			[	Short Close Pack Slip					

Figure 3.12 Short closing pack slip

- 2. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 3. Select the Pack Slip # to be short closed, in the Search Results multiline.
- 4. Check the **Select All** box to short close all the pack slips listed in the multiline.
- 5. Enter the **Short Close Comments** in the **Comments** group box, to specify any additional information pertaining to the short closing of pack slip.

- 6. Click the **Short Close Pack Slip** pushbutton to short close the pack slip.
- Note: The system updates the status of the pack slip as "Short Closed".
- Note: You can short close only those pack slips that are in "Confirmed" or "Allocated" status.

# Shipping goods

You can ship the issued quantity of the part from the respective warehouses to the customer based on a part sale pack slip.

### Selecting part sale pack slip for shipping goods

- Select the Ship Pack Slip link in the Pack Slip business component. The Select Pack Slip # page appears.
- 2. Enter the **Pack Slip #** in the **Direct Entry** group box and select the **Ship Pack Slip** link provided alongside.

Or

- 3. Enter the Search Criteria and click the Search pushbutton.
- 4. Select the hyperlinked **Pack Slip #** in the **Search Results** multiline. The **Ship Pack Slip** page appears. *See Figure 3.13*.

#### Shipping goods based on the selected pack slip

- 1. Select the Ship To Customer # and Ship To Address in the Ship To Address Details group box.
- 2. Enter the Address, Contact Person, Work Phone #, E-Mail and Fax of the person to whom the parts are to be delivered.
- 3. Enter the **Shipped Quantity** in the **Part Details** multiline, to specify the quantity of parts to be shipped to the customer from the warehouse.
- 4. Select the **Shipment Type** and **Transportation Mode** in the **Shipping Information** group box.
- 5. Set **Freight Billable** as "Yes" to indicate that the freight is billable for the stock. Select "No" otherwise.
- 6. Enter the **Freight Amount** to indicate the sum of freight charges that have been levied for the transfer of stock.
- Note: Ensure that the freight amount is entered, if the "Freight Billable" field is set as "Yes".
  - 7. Enter the **Port of Destination** to specify the port to which the stock is designated to arrive.
  - 8. Select the Fright Terms.

#### Part Sales Management

Ship Pack Slip		🔀 Trailbar 🗸 🏠 📮 🎩 💴
		Date & Time Format dd/mm/yyyy hh:mm:ss
Pack Slip Details		
Pack Slip # CO-000233-2007	Enter the date and	Pack Slip Date 11/01/2007
status Issued	time of the shipment	shipment Date & time 11/01/2007
		supinent Date Runne 11/01/2007
User Status		Pack Slip Type Customer Order Based
Customer Information		
Customer # 1005		Customer Name VIETNAM AIRLINES
Reference Document Details	r	Ordering Deint SALOU
Ref Doc Type Castonici Orac	а -	Amendment # 0
Document Date 21/09/2006		Other References
Shin To Address Details		
Shin To Customer # 1865		Shin To Address 1 X
Address Maintenance Co	atra A. 75 Tan San Nibat Air	
Address Maintenance Cer		West Places # 0004 4 070 0750
	ong	Vork Phone # 008448732753
		Fax 00054 4 873 2754
Part Details		
	Customer Part #	Condition Stack Status
	Customer Part #	Overhauled Oustomer-Civil
2 8		
<		Enter the carrier through which the
Chinning Information		Stock must be snipped
Shipping Information		
		Carrier / Agency # %
Freight Billable No		Freight Amount
Port Of Destination		Freight Terms
Way Bill #		PRO No
AWB No		BOL No
INCO Terms CFR		Tracking #
Insurance Liability None		Select "Yes" to indicate that the
Insurance Terms		part is hzardous. Select "No"
Packaging Details		otherwise
Packaging Code : Cores Box	×	Hazardous Product No
Packaging Code : Spares Box	×	Shipping Label
Packaging Code : Serviceable Component Box	×	
Comments		
Shipping Comments		
	Edit Quantity Details Ship Pack Slip	
Edit Shipped Lot & Serial Details Generate Pack Slip Shipping Report	Edit References Details	Generate Pack Slip Report

Figure 3.13 Shipping pack slip

- 9. Enter the **Way Bill #** to specify the document, containing the list of goods with shipping instructions related to the shipment.
- 10. Enter the **PRO No** to specify the bill number identifying a carrier's contract and receipt for goods when transportation is by land.
- 11. Enter the **AWB No** to specify the air way bill number identifying a carrier's contract and receipt for goods when transportation is by air.
- 12. Enter the **BOL No** to specify the bill of lading number identifying a carrier's contract and receipt for goods when transportation is by sea.
- 13. Enter the **INCO Terms** to specify the International Commercial Term indicating the party, such as the supplier, carrier or customer, with whom the risks and responsibilities lie, when parts are being shipped.
- 14. Enter the **Tracking #** to specify the document used for tracking the shipment.
- 15. Select the **Insurance Liability** as "Shipper", "Carrier" or "Consignee" to indicate the person who bears the insurance amount.
- 16. Select the appropriate packaging codes in the **Packaging Code: Cores**, **Packaging Code: Spares** and **Packaging Code: Serviceable Component** drop-down list boxes in the **Packaging Details** group box.
- 17. Enter the **Shipping Comments** to specify the any additional information pertaining to the shipping of the parts.
- 18. Click the Ship pack Slip pushbutton to ship the pack slip.
- Note: The system updates the status of the pack slip as "Shipped".
  - 19. Click the **Edit Quantity Details** pushbutton to modify the quantity of the part to be shipped.
- Note: You can modify the quantity details of only those pack slips, which are not in "Shipped " status.
- Note: Ensure that "Shipped Quantity" is the total of the lot number and serial number-controlled parts, if the parts are serial-controlled or lot and serialcontrolled.

To proceed further,

- Select the Edit Shipped Lot & Serial Details link to enter the serial and lot number details of the shipped goods.
- Select the Edit Reference Details link to modify the reference details pertaining to the pack slip.
- ▼ Select the **Generate Pack Slip Report** link to generate details of the pack slip document.

 Select the Generate Pack Slip Shipping Report link to generate details of the pack slip shipping document.

#### Entering lot number and serial number details for the shipped quantity

You can specify the serial number and the lot number of the quantity of parts that are to be shipped to the customer.

- 1. Select the Edit Shipped Lot & Serial Details link in the Ship Pack Slip page. The Edit Shipped Lot & Serial Details page appears. See Figure 3.14.
- 2. Select the **Line #** in the **Part Details** group box, to specify the line number of the pack slip which contains the part for which the serial number and lot number details are to be entered.
- 3. Enter the **Quantity** in the **Serial / Lot Details** multiline, to specify the quantity of the parts for which the serial number and lot numbers are to be entered.
- 4. Click the **Edit Quantity Details** pushbutton to update the serial and lot details of the shipped parts that are serial-controlled or lot-controlled.

Edit Snipped Lot & Serial Details				as Traibar •	1 🔐 🖾 🛱 📖	
			Date Forn	nat dd/mm/yyyy		
Pack Slip Details						
Pack Slip # CO-0002	33-2007		Pack Slip Da	ate 11/01/2007		
Part Details						
Line # 1 🌱 G	et Part Details					
Warehouse# PS			Warehouse Descript	ion Prop Shop		
Part # SFA13S1F	POA .		Part Descript	ion BLADE HSC		
Part Type Componen	nt		Stock Sta	tus Customer-Civil		
Condition Overhaule	ed	Part Control Type Serial Controlled				
Pack Slip Quantity 1.00	EA		Allocated Quant	tity 1.00		
Issued Quantity 1.00	EA		Shipped Quant	tity 1.00		
Serial / Lot Details						
≪ ◀ 1 -1/1 ▶ ≫ + - ₽ &		🔂 📃 MA 31.5 650 737 4	1 📠   💷 🚍   Al	~	<u>م</u>	
# 🖻 Serial #	Manufacturer Serial #	Lot #		Manufacturer Lot #	Quant	
1 🕅 88643111E	88643111E					
2 1						
<					>	
		Edit Quantity Dataila				
		Euit Quantity Details				

Figure 3.14 Entering serial and lot number details for shipped goods

Part Sales Management
# Index

#### Α

Allocating material for pack slip, 100 materials for customer goods based pack slip, 100 materials for customer order based pack slip, 101 materials based on the selected pack slip, 124 materials for pack slip, 123 Authorization #, 52 Authorizing additional work scope, 77

#### В

Bill to Address, 84 Bill to Customer, 84 Billable Facility Price, 88 Billable Labor Price, 88

## С

Canceling customer goods receipt, 54 Certificate #, 51, 52 Certificate Date, 51, 52 Certificate Type, 51, 52 Creating customer order based goods receipt, 44.47 direct customer goods receipt, 57 quick codes for customer goods receipt, 43 quick codes for pack slip, 115 Customer goods based pack slip issuing materials, 103 Customer goods pack slip allocating materials, 100 Customer goods receipt canceling, 54 creating quick codes, 43 setting options, 42 Customer goods receiving, 42

Customer order based goods receipt creating, 44, 47 Customer order based pack slip allocating materials, 101 issuing material, 104 Customer Order editing additional charges, 95 entering billing details, 85 entering order statistics and portal details, 88 entering work content details, 85

# D

Display Option, 65 Display Serial / Lot Nos, 66

# Ε

Entering address details for pack slip, 121 certificate details, 122 document references, 122 lot number and serial number details for the shipped quantity, 137 storage details, 120 storage details for the allocated quantity, 125 parameter details of customer goods, 54 serial number, lot number and storage details for customer goods, 51 Expected Delivery Date, 88 Expiry Date, 52

## G

Generating customer order based pack slip, 98 pack slip for customer goods, 97 pack slip for part sales, 116

#### Η

Holding or releasing pack slip, 106, 130

#### I

Initiate Invoice Processing for Parts, 85 Initiating invoice processing, 82 Invoice processing for parts, 90 Invoice processing initiating, 82 Invoice updating additional charges, 93 Invoicing Stage, 82 Issuing materials based on the selected pack slip, 127 materials for pack slip, 126 materials for customer goods based pack slip, 103 materials for customer order based pack slip, 104 materials for pack slip, 103

#### Μ

Maintaining customer correspondence details, 80 Material Type, 68 Moving customer parts to the warehouse document level, 58 line item level, 60 Moving customer goods to warehouse, 57 customer parts at the document level

to the warehouse, 58 customer parts at the line item level to the warehouse, 60

## 0

Order Statistics & Portal Details, 84

#### Ρ

Pack slip allocating materials, 100 customer goods, 97 customer order based, 98 holding or releasing, 106 issuing materials, 103 short closing, 107 allocating materials, 123 creating quick codes, 115 entering address details, 121 holding or releasing, 130 issuing materials, 126 setting options, 114 short closing, 132 Part sales generating pack slip, 116 Prepare Quotation, 69 Preparing material quotation, 74 Process TCD for Invoice, 85 Processing TCD for invoice, 91

#### R

Receiving customer goods, 42 Recording tracking reference document details, 63 Ref Doc Type, 64 Ref Document #, 65

# S

Selecting pack slip for allocation, 123 pack slip for issuing materials, 126 part sale pack slip for shiiping goods, 134 Setting options for customer goods receipt, 42 pack slip, 114 Shipped Qty, 64 Shipping goods, 108 goods based on customer goods pack slip, 108 goods based on customer order based pack slip, 109 goods, 134 goods based on the selected pack slip, 134 Short closing pack slip, 107, 132

## Т

Tracking Ref Doc #, 64 Tracking Ref Doc Date, 64 Tracking Ref Doc. Applicable?, 64 Tracking reference document details recording, 63

#### U

User Status, 82

## V

Viewing purchase order details, 72

#### W

Work Content Details, 84

Service Sales Management

www.RamcoAviation.com



#### Corporate Office and R&D Center

Ramco Systems Limited, 64, Sardar Patel Road, Taramani Chennai – 600 113, India Tel: +91 (44) 2235 4510. Fax +91 (44) 2235 2884 www.ramco.com